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HEEEBTIIR HKS$ Million 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
hRES Shareholders’ funds 9,096 10,045 10,469 9,892 11,396
BEEB Subordinated notes 3,290 3,480 5,148 5,269 4,602
RPRER Deposits from customers 58,107 66,989 78,728 80,418 88,370
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,713 8,768 8,843 4,655 2,060
FREE Total deposits 65,820 75,757 87,571 85,073 90,430
BERE Total liabilities
(BIEREER) (including subordinated notes) 82,479 96,638 111,427 108,243 108,397
EFER Advances to customers
(BRESEE) (including trade bills) 44,919 49,909 61,295 60,999 57,165
BEGE Total assets 93,496 109,048 124,209 120,180 122,576
e ey Profit attributable to shareholders 1,019 1,397 1,050 106 626
B including:
HERBAA Profit on disposal of interests in
w2 subsidiaries - 189 - - -
TRENEERZ Profit attributable to shareholders
R R IE &7 excluding the above 1,019 1,208 1,050 106 626
2EREH K Total dividend distribution 519 588 375 176 -
LB TS HK$
BREART Basic earnings per share 4.09 5.59 4.20 0.42 2.4
(B 5E) (note) 1
BRRE Dividends per share
o R R R Interim and proposed final 2.08 2.35 1.50 0.68 -
Al Special - - - - -
SRk EAE Total dividends per share 2.08 2.35 1.50 0.68 -
PERZIEN Percentage %
THRRESER Return on average shareholders’ funds 11.8 12.6 10.2 1.0 5.9
(F3E) (note) 2
FHREERT Return on average total assets 1.2 1.2 0.9 0.1 05
(B EE) (note) 2
ERHFERLE Loan to deposit ratio
(BIEEEITH (including certificates
FRE) of deposit issued) 69.2 66.8 70.0 7.7 63.2
M EE Notes:

1. RTBE L E B A TR 25 8RR R e R
et BHE—ZTZXR"F+_A=+—HILLFE
2 BRENREF F4.838 T o

2. HE-_ZZTAF+_A=Z+—HLFEZFHR
&S O] & 8 EER 2N NEIEHEH
BARERS 2B EEEEFTE -

Basic earnings per share calculated on the basis of profit attributable to
shareholders excluding profit on disposal of interests in subsidiaries for

the year ended 31 December 2006 is HK$4.83.

Profit attributable to shareholders excluding profit on disposal of interests
in subsidiaries is used for the calculation of return on average
shareholders’ funds and return on average total assets for the year ended
31 December 2006.
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DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Kunio Suzuki
Non-executive Director
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
Independent non-executive Director
Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent non-executive Director
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
Independent non-executive Director
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
Independent non-executive Director
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith
Independent non-executive Director
Tatsuo Tanaka
Non-executive Director
Eiichi Yoshikawa
Non-executive Director
John Wai-Wai Chow
Non-executive Director
Yiu-Ming Ng
Non-executive Director
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive
Roderick Stuart Anderson
Executive Director
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director
Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director
Kenichi Yonetani
Alternate to Kunio Suzuki
Tetsuya Wada

Alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Chairman
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Chairman
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

Telex: 74063 DSB HX

S.W.I.E.T.: DSBAHKHH

Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com

SECRETARY

Hoi-Lun Soo B.A. (Hons.), ACIS

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Board of Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Aged 69. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 1987. Chairman
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Bank, Limited, MEVAS
Bank Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping Company,
Limited and various other companies. Over 40 years of experience in
banking and finance. Member of the Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Association of
Banks, the Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong
Shipowners Association. Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, an executive Director of

the Company’s key operating banking and insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Kunio Suzuki

Non-executive Director

Aged 70. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
20083. Former Chairman of Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd, and currently as its

Counselor.

Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 72. Appointed as a Director of the Company in 1997 and served
the Board in an independent role since his retirement as the Chief
Executive of Abbey National plc. in 1998. Also an independent non-
executive director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Chairman

of Trigold plc. Advisor, Cambridge Place Investment Management LLP.
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Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 69. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 1997. Also an independent non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit
Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both
the Company and DSBG, and a non-executive Director to a number of
Hong Kong listed companies. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international

firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 59. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2002. Currently Chairman of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited and Fuji Photo Products Company Limited.
Vice Patron of the Community Chest, a founding member of the China
Charity Federation and Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong
Management Association. Awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
Government of Hong Kong SAR in 1999. Appointed as a Justice of The
Peace by the Government of Hong Kong SAR in 2002.

Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 68. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited in 2004.
Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Currently a non-executive Director of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited. Active in a number of trade
associations, government advisory bodies and community activities.

Over 30 years' experience in the trade and commerce industry.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Mr. Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company and its major operating banking entity Dah Sing Bank in
August 2009 and December 2009 respectively. Also acted as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Currently the Chairman and
an independent non-executive Director of The Link Management
Limited (which manages The Link Real Estate Investment Trust), and
an independent non-executive Director of Wynn Macau, Limited.
Formerly a non-executive Director of Standard Chartered Bank (HK)
Limited, Regional Chief Executive (North East Asia) of Standard
Chartered PLC, and the Chief Executive of Hongkong Land Holdings
Limited and the Chairman of MCL Land Limited. Over 35 years of
experience in the finance and treasury field in the United Kingdom and
in Hong Kong, and extensive knowledge of the property industry and

financial services industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
2006. Effective from April 2008, Deputy President, Chief Executive
Officer of Global Business Unit of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ,
Ltd. (“BTMU”) and the Managing Officer, Deputy Group Head of
Integrated Corporate Banking Business Group of Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group (“MUFG”). He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers during the last decade) in 1973.
Over 35 years' experience at BTMU including Senior Vice President of
Bank of Tokyo Trust Company (currently Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Trust Company in New York), Chief Manager of Corporate Banking
Group No.2 in Tokyo, General Manager of Shimbashi Branch in Tokyo,
Regional Head for Hong Kong Branch and Managing Director, Chief
Executive Officer for China. Rich expertise in Corporate Banking in Asia

and Oceania as well as Japan and the U.S.
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Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa

Non-executive Director

Aged 53. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
2007. Currently the Executive Officer, Regional Head for Hong Kong
and General Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
(“BTMU”) Hong Kong Branch. He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers during the last decade) in 1981.
During this period, he has been appointed to work in Ministry of Finance
of Japan (currently Financial Service Agency of Japan), New York Office
of Treasury Division, Tokyo-Mitsubishi Securities (currently Mitsubishi
UFJ Securities Co., Ltd). Strong expertise in the area of Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Corporate Planning activities. Over 28 years of

experience in banking and finance.

Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow

Non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as a Director in 1994 and currently a non-executive
Director of the Company. Deputy Managing Director of Winsor Industrial
Corporation Limited and Managing Director of Winsor Properties
Holdings Limited. Over 20 years of experience in textile, garment and

property business.

Mr. Yiu-Ming Ng

Non-executive Director

Aged 73. Appointed a Director in 1997 and currently a non-executive
Director of the Company. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company's Banking Group, in 1985 and
was promoted as a Director in 1991. Retired in 2002 but continued to
serve the Boards of the Company and Dah Sing Bank in a non-executive

role. Over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing finance.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 57. Appointed as a Director in 1993 and promoted as the
Managing Director of the Company in January 2002. Joined Dah Sing
Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the Company's Banking
Group, in 1977 and has served and managed various departments
before appointed as a director of Dah Sing Bank in 1989 and was
promoted as its Managing Director in 2000. Managing Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited, Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group.
Director of Great Wall Life Assurance Company Limited, and Bank of
Chonggqing in which the Group has a 20% equity interest. Associate of
The Institute of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the

U.K. Over 30 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Roderick Stuart Anderson

Executive Director

Aged 62. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2000
and a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
(“DSLA”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company, since 2004.
Joined DSLA in 1993 and had been its Chief Executive and Managing
Director for over 12 years. Also a director of Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited and Great Wall Life Assurance Company
Limited. Formerly, President of The Actuarial Society of Hong Kong,
Chairman of The Life Insurance Council, Chairman of the Governing
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and Chairman of
the Board of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau. Fellow of The
Institute of Actuaries with over 40 years of experience in financial

services and insurance in particular.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Executive Director

Aged 49. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2001.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted
as a Director of Dah Sing Bank in 1997. Currently Group Finance
Director responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over 20 years of experience in financial management mainly related to

banking.
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Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew

Executive Director

Aged 42. Joined the Company in 1998 and currently an executive
Director of the Company, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, Dah Sing Bank and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Head of
Treasury and Corporate Finance of Dah Sing Bank responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. 20 years of experience in

financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Kenichi Yonetani

Alternate Director to Mr. Kunio Suzuki

Aged 59. Appointed as an alternate Director to Mr. Kunio Suzuki, a
non-executive Director of the Company, in August 2006. Currently a
Director of Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd. He joined Mitsui O.S.K. Lines in
1974, and has over 20 years of experience in the Financial area including

Ship Finance and Investor Relations.

Mr. Tetsuya Wada

Alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Aged 56. Appointed as an alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka, a
non-executive Director of the Company, in August 2008. Currently the
Managing Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer for Asia and
Oceania, of BTMU. Rich expertise in Retail banking and Corporate
Planning, with over 32 years’ experience in banking and finance.

Senior Management

Mr. Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 60. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 1986 and was appointed as an executive Director of Dah
Sing Bank and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 1995 and 2004
respectively. Currently the Chief Executive and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. incorporated in Macau. Over 30 years of

experience in banking.
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Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 40. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company, in 2000, appointed as an executive Director in 2005 and
as the Vice Chairman in March 2010. Currently also a Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS
Bank, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited and Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited. Qualified
solicitor in England and Wales and Hong Kong. Son of David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Company and Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited.

Mr. Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau
Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 58. Appointed as an executive Director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited in 2007. Also an executive Director of Dah Sing Bank,
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and MEVAS Bank, key operating
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently Head of Group Risk of the
Banking Group, responsible for the strategic direction, overall business
and risk policy, ongoing management and control of risk of the Banking
Group's portfolio. Chartered Financial Analyst and Ph.D in Economics.
Member of Board of Trustees of Global Association of Risk
Professionals. 20 years of experience in governmental or quasi-
governmental departments in supervision of financial related

corporations.

Mr. John Cheung-Wah Lam
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank

Aged 55. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its executive Director in 2005 and as the
Head of Retail Banking Division responsible for retail banking business.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank and
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Fellow of The Institute of
Canadian Bankers. 30 years of banking experience in Hong Kong and

North America.
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Mr. Kwok-Leung Kwong (Thomas Kwong)

Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 61. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and was appointed as its executive Director in 2007, and a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008. Currently Head of
Commercial Banking Division in Dah Sing Bank, responsible for
overseeing and supervising commercial banking business and asset
based and trade financing. Over 30 years of experience in banking and

finance.

Mr. Xiaojiang Yan

Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 55. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2006. Appointed as an executive director of Dah Sing Bank
in 2007, and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008, responsible for the
banking development, and branch supervision and management in the
Mainland China. 20 years of banking experience in Hong Kong and
China.

Mr. James Chien-Kuo Wong
Executive Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Life Assurance

Aged 60. Appointed as an executive Director and the Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, a key operating subsidiary of
the Group, in August 2006, responsible for overseeing the operation of
long-term insurance business. Appointed as a member of The Banking
Advisory Committee by the Financial Secretary since 2005. Concurrently
being the Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and its
Governing Committee as well as member of the Life Insurance Council of
the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and ex officio member of the General
Committee of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau. Honorary Vice
President of the Advisory Board of the Economics & Finance Society of
The University of Hong Kong since 2006 and a member of the Advisory
Board on Insurance, Financial & Actuarial Analysis of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong during 2003-2009. Fellow Member of Life Office
Management Association (FLMI) USA. An industry veteran of 40 years’
experience in managing different insurance business and wealth

management business in Hong Kong and Canada.

Note: Interests of Directors and Senior Management in shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations, if any, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2009 are disclosed in the “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” of the Report of the Directors as included in this 2009 Annual
Report of the Company.
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During 2009, economic conditions broadly improved, with Hong
Kong benefitting from stronger economic growth and lower
unemployment, as well as positive economic conditions in the
Mainland continuing, in part due to the stimulus measures
promoted by the central government. Macau also followed a
similar trend. Globally, following the unprecedented and
substantial monetary and fiscal stimulus measures implemented

by many leading
countries in late 2008 in
response to the global
financial crisis, and
improved conditions in
the banking industry
following large scale
recapitalisation, there
were signs of economic
stabilisation, and also
evidence of a broad-
based recovery in the
second half of 2009. The
global economy and

financial market appear
to have passed the
worst point of the cycle.

The Hang Seng Index closed at above 21,800 points and Dah Sing
Financial Holdings and Dah Sing Banking Group share prices
recorded a stronger performance at the 2009 year end.

EZZZAEFE - BEEBURRER21,800% « KF SR AH
RTEERERRFESF LS -

In line with the stabilising and slightly more favourable economic
conditions, our performance improved substantially over 2008, with
profit attributable to shareholders rising from HK$106 million in 2008
to HK$626 million in the year. Our capital position also strengthened
notably, both due to the stronger operating performance, as well as
due to a number of capital raising initiatives during the year, with
Tier 1 capital adequacy and total capital adequacy of our Banking
Group increasing from 6.8% and 13.6% as at 31 December 2008
t0 10.2% and 16.8% respectively as at 31 December 2009.
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The conversion of our shareholders’ loan of HK$1 billion as equity
to Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) in September 2009
not only strengthened the capital base of DSBG, but also resulted
in an increase in our shareholding in this key subsidiary, from
70.86% to 74.13%.

Banking Business

Our separately listed banking subsidiary, DSBG, reported an
increase in profits for the year, with profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$601 million, an increase of 219% compared
with the previous year. Whilst net interest income was slightly lower
than 2008, fee income was weak, principally due to reduced activity
in the wealth management business. With the gradual improvement
in the economy, credit costs began to turn around, with impairment
charges dropping substantially for the year. We also did not
experience any exceptional or large losses on securities
investments during the year.

Core lending performance was steady, with a slightly lower loan
book. Our deposit position continued to be very healthy, with the
increase in customer deposits during the year more than
outweighing the reduction in wholesale funding.

We took part in an industry wide settlement scheme with Lehman
minibond investors during the course of the year, and have placed
great emphasis and effort to improve and upgrade our investment
product sales in line with the new guidance from regulators, as well
as market practice and expectations.

Our 20% associate, Bank of Chongqging, achieved a set of very
strong results in the year, contributing HK$196 million to our profit,
representing 62% growth when compared with 2008.
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Dah Sing Bank’s wholly owned and locally incorporated subsidiary
bank in China, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, continued its gradual
expansion, with the opening of new branches in Nanchang and
Zhenijiang, in addition to the existing operations in Shenzhen and
Shanghai. With China’s strong growth and huge development
opportunities, we look forward to the continued growth of this
subsidiary, and our business expansion, in China.

Senior management of the Group recently met with Mr. Liu Mingkang, Chairman of
China Banking Regulatory Commission.

(left to right) Mr. Derek Wong, Managing Director and Chief Executive, Mr. David S.Y.
Wong, Chairman, Mr. Liu Mingkang, Mr. Harold Wong, Director.
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Insurance Business

Whilst our core Hong Kong life assurance business continued to
report a set of respectable results including new sales, overall our
insurance premium income declined for the year, due mainly to the
discontinuation of certain lower margin life assurance products
previously marketed in Macau.

Balancing this was a much better investment performance, with the
value of our insurance investment portfolio increasing by HK$344
million, or a return of 5.1% during the year. This gain recognised in
our income statement resulted in the return to profitability of the
insurance business compared with the prior year. In aggregate, our
insurance businesses reported a total profit after tax, including the
change in embedded value, of HK$241 million. Our solvency position
remained strong, with net assets growing from HK$2.2 billion at year
end 2008 to HK$2.8 billion at year end 2009.
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Board of Directors

On 1 June 2009, Mr. Chung-Kai Chow retired as the Vice Chairman
and a non-executive Director of the Company after 22 years of
directorship in the Group.

Mr. David S.Y. Wong (right), the Chairman of Dah Sing Group, presented a souvenir
photo to Mr. Chung-Kai Chow (left) upon his retirement with effect from 1 June 2009,
after his 22 years of directorship in the Group.
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| am very delighted to have Mr. Nicholas Sallnow-Smith’s consent
to join the Board during the year, with his appointment as an
additional independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 12 August 2009. Mr. Sallnow-Smith is a prominent senior
executive in Hong Kong with extensive expertise in the finance,
investment and property management industries, and is currently
the Chairman and an independent non-executive director of The
Link Management Limited, in addition to his roles with other
companies and a number of community organizations.

| would like to welcome Mr. Sallnow-Smith in joining the Board and
believe his expertise and rich experience will be of great value to
the Group. | would also like to express my tremendous gratitude to
Mr. Chung-Kai Chow on his retirement from the Board for his
invaluable contribution during his tenure on the Board.
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Future Prospects

2008 and 2009 were two of the most difficult years for the global
financial industry in recent history. Whilst Asia was less badly
affected than Europe or the US, the past two years had also been
very challenging. We are optimistic that the improvement in our
results in 2009 under the healthier economic backdrop, as well as
the steps we have taken to strengthen our capital position, mean
that we are now through the worst of the storm.

Therefore, our strategy for 2010 will be one of cautions optimistism.
We believe that the prospects for the Greater China and Asian region
are still promising, and that over the medium to long term will
present many opportunities. However, in the short term we are still
mindful that the crisis is not fully over, and that will still need to
operate with caution.

With the turbulent decade ended in 2009 now behind us, we look
forward to the continued growth and prosperity of our Group during
this new decade, and above all, we believe that our Group’s future
prospects are encouraging.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support of our customers.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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Financial Highlights

The highlights of the Group’s financial performance for the year are
summarised in the table below:

—ETAF —ETNEF b=
2009 2008 Variance
BAEATT HK$ Million
MBRRE R B A Operating profit before
2 & A impairment losses 854.9 1,467.2 -42%
HETIRENBTEEE NS Operating profit before gains or
NBEBR 2 & E R T losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 421.6 808.6 -48%
B B4 AT g 1 Profit before income tax 885.5 183.0 384%
1% R FE 1 Vi Profit attributable to shareholders 626.0 106.2 490%
BESE Total assets 122,576 120,180 2%
BEEF Total liabilities 108,397 108,243 -
REES Shareholders’ funds 11,396 9,892 15%
FR WA EIRA Net interest income/operating income  86.1% 74.7%
B S YA L 2 Cost to income ratio 68.6% 53.7%
15 488 = O 3R Return on average total assets 0.5% 0.1%
FHREE S B R Return on average shareholders’ funds 5.9% 1.0%
Kot %5 ] it Financial Review

%ﬁ_Ytﬂiléﬂi%ﬁiﬁﬁ¢mf
F ZERNFILEREERRABE R
%oﬁa_2$ﬂ¢§%HZm£FfMﬁi
E - EE NG 2EBRABR_ZEZTNGF
TIREEVS AT EIE R - AFERREMRENEE
B BT NFEZ—EBENEBEBTEM
ECTENFARAEZTARABESET -

BR —ETNFR 2 EREBERRLE - FF
BRABR—ZZN\FHE - AMBSHETH
ERNMEBEEZNEARE KA TR - &£

B-FEAFRFREER_TE\FLASD
2B REEEHZBAL -

The economic and operating environment in 2009 was generally
better, after a very difficult year in 2008 caused by the financial
tsunami. While market conditions in the first few months in 2009
remained highly challenging, our Group was able to achieve a
substantially improved performance in 2009 when compared with
2008. Profit attributable to shareholders increased significantly for
the year, from HK$106 million in 2008 to HK$626 million in 2009.

Net interest income was slightly lower than 2008 with a mild
reduction in the loan book during 2009. Due to lower market interest
rates, both the yield on loans and interest earning assets, and the
funding cost decreased. Our net interest margin for 2009 full year
dropped to 1.95%, compared with 2.11% in 2008.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Fee and commission income continued to trend downwards, falling
by 35% during the year to HK$327 million. This was largely due to
continued declines in the fee income from our wealth management
business, a result of both market conditions, and our own caution
in distributing investment products to retail investors until we
ensured compliance with the various new and enhanced
compliance and regulatory requirements for this business. Loan
related fee income was also soft due to the loan contraction
experienced generally.

We reported a trading loss for the year, mainly due to the loss
incurred on the mark-to-market improvement in the valuation of
certain of our own issued subordinated securities. The losses
incurred in 2009 have largely reversed the profits booked on this
item in 2008.

Our insurance business reported a contraction in revenues, mainly
due to the significant drop in the life insurance sales of our Macau
insurance subsidiary as a result of the suspension of certain less
profitable products, with total net premium and other income
decreasing by around 32% to HK$1.45 billion. Our agency force
decreased in size in the second half of the year, compared with
strong growth in the previous periods. Bancassurance distribution
remained slow, similar to the subdued performance of our other
wealth management products and services. However, the returns
of our insurance investment portfolio improved substantially, relative
to the mark-to-market losses in 2008, assisting to improve the
contribution of our insurance business to an overall net profit in the
year, and moderating the trading and fair value losses reported by
our banking business in 2009.

Operating expenses for our core businesses were slightly higher
than 2008. However, due to the operating expense provisions
incurred for to the settlement of various claims in respect of Lehman
Brothers related investment products, total operating expenses
increased by 10% to HK$1.87 billion. The higher operating
expenses, coupled with the lower net insurance premium and other
income, as well as the lower fee and commission income led to a
decrease in operating profit before impairment charges of 42% to
HK$855 million.

There was notable improvement in credit quality, with loan
impairment and other credit provisions dropping by 34% from
HK$659 million to HK$433 million, largely as a result of the improved
economic conditions leading to better performance of our
commercial banking and retail lending portfolios, particularly in
relation to our SME lending and equipment finance portfolios, which
had suffered significant losses through the financial crisis.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Operating profit before gains and losses on certain investments and
fixed assets reduced by 48% to HK$422 million.

We recognised a revaluation gain of HK$73 million in aggregate on
our property assets due to improved property prices during the year.
In addition to this, we realised a profit of HK$244 million on the
repurchase of a portion of our own issued subordinated securities
at below par value during the year. These, coupled with a strong
performance from our associate company Bank of Chongqing and
our sharing of 20% of its robust profit in the year, resulted in a
significant improvement in profit before tax to HK$886 million.

After a tax charge of HK$96 million and profit attributable to non-

controlling interests of HK$163 million, profit attributable to
shareholders of the Group increased by 490% to HK$626 million.

Total assets of the Group recorded a mild increase of 2% in 2009.

iR -
AT Banking Business
—BBAE  —TT)\F 2
2009 2008 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.95% 2.11%
BEET HK$ Million
MBRRE R B Operating profit before
2 & A impairment losses 609.9 1,459.0 -58%
:Hxﬁ&lm;ﬁﬁ%lﬁé Operating profit before gains or
NBBR 2 & E R T losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 182.3 800.5 -77%
1% B P& A8 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 600.8 188.6 219%
EFEEM® Advances to customers 57,165 60,999 -6%
BERPEXK Customers’ deposits 89,572 82,362 9%
BETZ2IFRE Certificates of deposit issued 2,060 4,655 -56%
GHREE Total deposits 91,632 87,017 5%
BETZERE Issued debt securities - 2,804 -100%
“ERBD Subordinated notes 4,602 5,672 -19%
EREFR (BIEFRE) Loan to deposit (including
= certificates of deposit) ratio 62.4% 70.1%
B A U A LY 2R Cost to income ratio 73.9% 51.6%
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Banking Business (Continued)

Against the backdrop of a gradual stabilization and recovery in the
local and global economy especially during the second half of 2009,
our Banking Group reported much improved net profit in 2009,
assisted by non-operating or exceptional gains, and absence of
exceptional impairment losses.

Our Banking Group’s operating profit, however, both before and
after impairment losses, was much lower than 2008. This was
caused mainly by weaker operating income and higher operating
expenses.

Net interest income in the year was down by 3.3%, a result of a
mild contraction in our loan book, lower net interest margin due to
very low short-term money market interest rates and lower yields
earned on surplus funds. A much lower level of non-interest income
was recorded in the year, which was caused in part by a substantial
reduction in fee and commission income earned by our wealth
management business, with new business sales largely suspended
during most of 2009 after the collapse of Lehman Brothers in
September 2008, and due to our own caution in distributing
investment products to retail investors while we worked to upgrade
our operations and control processes for this business. Another
main factor adversely affecting our non-interest income was fair
value loss recognized on the mark-to-market improvement in the
valuation of certain of our own issued subordinated securities.

While operating expenses for our core businesses were only slightly
higher than 2008, additional operating expense provisions due
mainly to the settlement of various claims in respect of Lehman
Brothers related investment products were incurred, resulting in an
overall increase of 11% in our Banking Group’s total operating
expenses versus 2008.

With the lower operating income and higher operating expenses,
our Banking Group’s pre-impairment operating profit was down by
58% from 2008. With a notable improvement in loan asset quality
recorded in the second half of 2009, our total loan impairment losses
and other credit provisions decreased by 35% when compared with
2008. The improvement in loan losses was however insufficient to
offset the unfavourable impacts of the drop in operating income
and increase in operating expenses. A significant decrease in our
Banking Group’s operating profit after impairment losses in the year
was recorded.
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Banking Business (Continued)

A combination of the fair value gain on our investment properties,
our 20% share of a much stronger net profit reported by Bank of
Chonggqing, and an exceptional gain on the repurchase of certain of
our issued subordinated securities contributed to boost the pre-tax
profit of our banking business in 2009, resulting in profit attributable
to shareholders of the Banking Group increasing by 219% over
2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the Banking Group’s total gross loans
and advances amounted to HK$57 billion, down by around 6%
relative to the end of 2008. The major areas of contraction were
trade finance, affected by the fall in global trade volumes, and
equipment and vehicle finance. Equipment finance in particular had
been an area of weak performance due to the export oriented nature
of many of our manufacturing customers, and the portfolio was
managed down as part of a risk reduction exercise to mitigate the
high credit cost in the business experienced in the recent downturn.
In aggregate, the retail lending portfolio including credit card
advances and personal loans remained relatively stable.

Customers’ deposits totalled HK$91.6 billion, representing an
increase of around 5% over the previous year. The growth in
customers’ deposit reflected ample liquidity in the Hong Kong
market during the year. The loan to deposit ratio as at 31 December
2009 was 62.4%, slightly lower than 2008.

Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and private banking market segments of Hong Kong and
Macau, experienced another extremely challenging year in 2009
following the global financial tsunami and major market shocks in
2008. This business reported lower operating income, higher
operating expenses and an operating loss in the year, despite a
meaningful reduction in loan impairment losses.

The lower operating income was attributed to much lower fee and
commission income earned especially on lower sales of wealth
management products and lower investment trading volumes by
customers. Higher provisions relating to the settlement of claims of
retail investors pursuant to the general repurchase scheme (together
with another 14 banks in Hong Kong) for the Lehman Brothers
minibonds, and a voluntary repurchase scheme for certain Lehman
Brothers principal protected notes distributed by the Group’s
Personal Banking Division were charged in 2009, resulting in an
increase in the total operating expenses of this business.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

With the improvement in the local economy and a relatively stable
level of unemployment particularly in the second half year, there
were signs of stabilization and even improvement in the asset quality
of our unsecured retail lending portfolio toward late 2009, and a
reduction in the loan impairment losses in the year was recorded.

We continued with our cautious business and lending strategy
during the year, although we had moved to adopt a more proactive
approach in growing our retail lending business during the second
half amidst the recovery of the local economy. However, due to the
slower business momentum in the first few months in 2009 and
aggressive competition in the market particularly the keen price
competition in the residential mortgage market, our overall loans to
individual customers contracted by 3% when compared with 2008,
with a mild contraction in most types of retail lending including
mortgages and credit card advances.

The impact of the collapse of Lehman Brothers in September 2008
continued to resonate during 2009, and was particularly noteworthy
in Hong Kong due to the relatively large number of retail investors
having bought different Lehman Brother-related investment
products distributed by a large number of retail banks. We devoted
significant resources to resolve issues and customer complaints
arising from this incident, and made repurchase offers to and
voluntary settlements with retail investors in the year via repurchase
schemes that demonstrated our commitment to the upholding of a
high standard of conduct in operating our business and serving our
customers.

As of the end of 2009, our branch network includes 48 retail
branches in Hong Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank and
MEVAS Bank, and 15 branches in Macau under Banco Comercial
de Macau, and one subsidiary private bank in Guernsey, Channel
Islands providing offshore private banking services.

Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported a higher profit when compared to 2008, despite the
challenging operating environment in the first few months in 2009.
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Commercial Banking (Continued)

Overall loan balance under Commercial Banking businesses was
down by close to 13% relative to 2008, caused mainly by our more
cautious new business lending to small and medium sized
enterprises, decrease in trade finance business in response to the
drop in trade flows and exports business of our manufacturing and
trade finance customers, and our strategy to reduce lending to
equipment finance customers who were much affected by the
global slowdown and contraction in manufacturing orders since mid
2008. A stronger performance in growing customer deposits was
achieved by our Commercial Banking businesses, with deposits
from our commercial customers up by 7% relative to 2008.

Despite the relatively notable decrease in its loan book, the total
operating income of our Commercial Banking businesses in 2009
was slightly higher than 2008, driven by improved net interest
income, which was boosted mainly by a much lower funding cost
in line with the significant drop in short-term interest rates, and a
wider spread earned on a portion of its loan book with fixed rate
yields.

During the second half, the improvement in the operating
environment, gradual recovery in manufacturing and exports, and
appreciation in local property prices assisted in a marked
stabilization in the asset quality, followed by continuing
improvement in loan impairment charges in the last few months in
2009, which led to much lower loan losses when compared with
2008, and a significant increase in operating profit.

Treasury

The performance of our Treasury business improved compared with
the previous year, mainly due to the absence of significant
impairment losses on securities. Liquidity was managed cautiously,
with new investments concentrated in low risk and short tenor
money market instruments.

Overall operating income was higher than 2008, driven mainly by
higher net interest income amidst an environment of ample market
liquidity and very low market interest rates, despite a relatively lower
spread earned on new surplus funds investment and interbank
placements. The lower contribution from non-interest income was
mainly caused by negative fair value adjustments on some fair value
hedged investments, and lower trading gain.

The absence of significant or exceptional impairment losses
enabled our Treasury to register a stronger profitability in 2009,
against a loss made in 2008.
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Opening ceremony of Zhenjiang Branch of Dah Sing Bank (China)

Limited on 29 December 2009.
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Treasury (Continued)

The improvement in the global credit market in general during 2009
led to a general easing in credit spread and therefore an
improvement in the revaluation of our Treasury’s credit portfolio.

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

BCM achieved a much higher level of profit in 2009 driven mainly
by lower loan and securities impairment losses, which benefited
from a more stable and also improving operating environment and
credit market performance. BCM’s total loan and deposit balances
were broadly similar to 2008.

After a significant slowdown in its economic growth during the
second half of 2008 and the first few months in 2009, Macau’s
economy recorded a strong rebound during the second half year to
bring to an overall net positive, though mild, growth in its GDP in
2009.

Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a wholly owned new
subsidiary locally incorporated in China in 2008, completed its first
full year of operation in 2009 with a small net profit. DSB China, in
its early stage of development, focuses mainly on commercial
banking businesses. It is headquartered in Shenzhen (together with
a sub branch), and has branches located in Shanghai, Nanchang
and Zhenjiang. DSB China has started to offer retail Renminbi
banking businesses in China and is currently working to further
expand its branch network.

Opening of Nanchang Branch of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
on 23 July 2009.
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MEVAS Bank

MEVAS Bank (“MEVAS”), the separately branded Hong Kong
banking subsidiary under the Banking Group focusing on the
personal banking sector, recorded a modest level of net profit in
2009.

Bank of Chongqing

Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongging. Chongging is the largest city in Western China and
one of the 4 leading cities in China reporting directly to Beijing.
BOCAQ is operating with a branch network of around 80 branches.
Against the backdrop of the rapid economic development of China
in general and the greater Chongqing region in particular, significant
infrastructure investments, rising domestic consumption, strong
loan demand and high market liquidity, BOCQ achieved a set of
very impressive results in 2009.

BOCQ’s total assets, as of 31 December 2009, driven mainly by
loan and treasury asset growth, reached RMB80.9 billion, up 43%
relative to 2008. Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2009
was RMB876 million, up 34% on 2008.

Our interest in BOCQ was increased to 20% in October 2008. The
higher profit reported by BOCQ and our increased share of its net
profit during 2009 full year led to a significant increase in the
contribution from our investment in BOCQ on equity accounting
basis, which amounted to HK$196 million in the year, a growth of
62% over 2008.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business, consolidating the results of the life and
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau, achieved
a significant improvement in profit when compared with 2008,
largely attributable to stronger investment performance and gains
on the securities investment portfolio.

Total new sales dropped in the year due to the discontinuation of
certain lower margin life insurance products, and also slower sales
by both the agency force and bank branches as a result of the 2008
financial tsunami and weaker sentiment and customer demand for
life insurance and wealth management products. Overall premium
income was therefore lower than 2008.
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Insurance Business (Continued)

The lower new sales and the release of reserves due to the higher
valuation interest rates based on the higher medium to long term
risk-free rates in 2009 caused the change in the embedded value of
our in-force life policies to turn to a loss of HK$49 million, versus a
gain of HK$259 million in 2008.

The strong recovery in the global equity and bond markets since
the second quarter in 2009 was very favourable to our insurance
business’ investment portfolios, and enabled us to report a
substantial improvement in the return on the investment portfolios
in 2009, compared with the mark-to-market losses in prior year.
With the strong investment return performance, an overall net profit
of HK$241 million from our insurance businesses was recorded in
the year, against a net loss of HK$120 million in 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the total value of our Hong Kong and
Macau in-force life assurance businesses as calculated in
conjunction with the independent actuary was HK$1,225 million
(relative to HK$1,274 million at the end of 2008). With profit retention
and increase in the investment revaluation reserve of our insurance
subsidiaries’ available-for-sale investments, the shareholders’ funds
employed in our life and non-life insurance businesses increased
to HK$1,575 million, giving an overall value for the insurance
business in the accounts of the Group of HK$2,801 million, an
increase of 27% over 2008.

Risk Management and Compliance

In response to the severe financial turmoil in 2008 and the resultant
new challenges and increase in regulatory demands, the Group had
conducted appropriate reviews of its risk management system and
process, and business strategies pursued in the past few years prior
to 2008, and had taken actions to strengthen corporate governance
and risk management effectiveness. Additional resources and focus
were put into the upgrade of the Group’s risk function, including
the effort on further strengthening credit risk management and
enterprise risk management process and IT system.

During the year, we strengthened and expanded our compliance
function, and took action to deal with areas of improvements
brought to light by the financial crisis, and elevated the emphasis of
compliance awareness and best practices in all our key businesses
and operations.
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Combined Capital base of
banking subsidiaries
(HK$ million) — at 31 December

— Core capital 7,708 5,175
— Supplementary capital 4,963 5,174
Total capital base after deductions* 12,671 10,349
Capital adequacy ratio

— Core 10.2% 6.8%
— Overall 16.8% 13.6%
Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 57.3% 48.9%

The total combined capital base shown above reflects the consolidated
capital base of Dah Sing Bank calculated on a regulatory consolidation basis
specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“‘HKMA”), Mevas Bank and
D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) computed on Basel Il basis with
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules.

There were a number of capital actions during the year, particularly
relating to Dah Sing Banking Group (“DSBG”) and its main
subsidiary, Dah Sing Bank (“DSB”). A term loan of HK$1 billion was
extended from DSFH to DSBG in March 2009, which was injected
as additional equity capital into DSB. In September, this loan was
capitalised, and new shares of DSBG were issued to DSFH in
consideration for the capitalisation of the loan, at a price of HK$8.00
per share, which had the effect of increasing DSFH’s shareholding
in DSBG from 70.86% to 74.13%. In addition, in April 2009, DSBG
placed 54 million new shares to third party investors at a price of
HK$5.60 per share, raising net proceeds of HK$300 million, which
was then injected into DSB. The result of these capital raising
exercises, together with profit retention in the year, was to increase
the combined core capital adequacy ratio and total capital
adequacy ratio of DSBG’s banking business from 6.8% and 13.6%
as at 31st December 2008 (and on a proforma basis, 8.1% and
15.2% as at 31st December 2008, after considering the capital
injection to Dah Sing Bank announced in early 2009) to 10.2% and
16.8% respectively as at 31st December 2009.
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

Our Banking Group operated throughout the year with a very high
liquidity ratio due to a strong pool of liquid assets including cash
and placements with banks, and diversified marketable securities
held for investment and liquidity purposes.

DSB’s long-term credit ratings, at “A3” and “A-” assigned by
Moody’s and Fitch respectively, were affirmed in 2009.

Human Resources

In 2009, we continued our work to improve the service excellence,
teamwork, caring and trust culture throughout the organization.
Personal support and counseling services as well as crisis
management training were provided to staff-in-need through our
employee assistance program. Our staff social club continued to
promote staff and family well-being, and organized different social
and sports activities to help promote staff benefits, affinity,
friendship, health and community services. We are pleased to have
been recognised again by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
as one of the leading Hong Kong caring employers, a recognition
we achieved each year over the past eight years.

Due to slower business activities, drop in new businesses and
resource rationalization, the Group’s headcount during the year
reduced slightly. The total number of employees of our Group,
including our staff in Macau and China, slightly decreased from
2,046 at the end of 2008 to 1,939 at the end of 2009.
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Corporate governance practices

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and follows all of the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the provisions set out in
the Code.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted on 24 March 2009 a revised code for
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
prevailing required standard set in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the
Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year 2009.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets
the business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution

of those objectives by the management of the Company.

(2) Board composition and meetings

The Board is made up of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, four
executive directors including the Chief Executive, five non-executive
directors, and five independent non-executive directors. Brief

biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 13.

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately

quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as necessary.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

The following table sets out the attendance record of each director at

the board meetings held in 2009:

Number of Board meetings in 2009

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Peter Gibbs Birch

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun)

Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith
(appointed on 12 August 2009)

Non-Executive Directors
Chung-Kai Chow

(retired on 1 June 2009)
Kunio Suzuki
Tatsuo Tanaka
Eiichi Yoshikawa
John Wai-Wai Chow
Yiu-Ming Ng

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Roderick Stuart Anderson
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew

Average attendance rate

7/10
8/10
8/10
10/10
2/3

4/4

2/10
1/10
7/10
10/10
10/10

10/10
10/10
10/10
10/10
10/10

10

70%
80%
80%
100%
67%

100%

20%
10%
70%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

81%

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give all

directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,

reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the

Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,

matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board

meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept

by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,

and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice

by any director.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. In
circumstances where directors believe that independent advice is
needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive will endeavour to identify and engage an appropriate

professional adviser at the expense of the Company.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the executive management, and has delegated responsibility
for certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. There are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to
the committees of the Board or the executive management. These

reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a

conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals (i.e. an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market
capitalisation at the relevant time);

° Material investments or disposal of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course
of deploying the surplus funds of the Group);

o Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;

° Appointment of new directors;

° Approval of relevant policies; and

° Approval of annual budget.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal

action against its directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management - the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board. The
Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Company to provide business direction and operational leadership
for the benefit of the Group’s businesses, enhance shareholder value

and ensure sound internal control.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has five non-executive directors and five independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence

as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors is
normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive directors make
a positive contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors
Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made after

deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its role
and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible, among
other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors, approval
of the remuneration of directors and senior management. The majority
of the members are independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference for the Committee are available for inspection at the

Company’s registered office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held three meetings in
2009. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

records in 2009 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2009 3

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 2/3 67%
Peter Gibbs Birch 3/3 100%
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 3/3 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 3/3 100%
David Shou-Yeh Wong 3/3 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 2/3 67%
Average attendance rate 89%
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2009

included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for executive

directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior

management of the Company and of the Group

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages commensurate with market terms, and is based on business

needs, expertise and quality of the individual, and industry practice.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages

of executive directors:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be

involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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Auditors” Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for

performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be

maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services by rendering
regulatory compliance review services, review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s interim
financial disclosure, and a review of the update on the offering circular
of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note
Programme during the year.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-

related services are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised the
care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate

accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its
finding and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information under Risk
Management and described with appropriate financial quantification in
the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the annual financial

statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for

inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch, Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) and Mr. Nicholas
Robert Sallnow-Smith. All the members of the Committee are
independent non-executive directors with extensive experience in
banking, finance and business management. The Committee’s
chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified accountant and was a partner of a
predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None
of the other committee members are employed by or otherwise affiliated

with the former or existing external auditors of the Company.

The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2009, a total of three meetings were convened.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee

meetings in 2009 is set out below:
Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2009 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 3/3 100%
Peter Gibbs Birch 3/3 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 3/3 100%

Mr. Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith participated in a meeting of the
Audit Committee in 2009 on invitation prior to his appointment as a
member of the Audit Committee, which was made effective on 8
December 2009.

Average attendance rate 100%

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to

directors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during

2009 in discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2008 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2009 Interim

Report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2008 audit and financial

statements;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2008 for inclusion

in the Company’s 2008 annual report;

d. Review of a summary of major issues to be reviewed and
discussed at the Board level but with significant accounting and

disclosure relevance;

e. Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
Audit Committee in the second half of 2008 and the first half of
2009;

f. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

g. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of

external auditors;

h. Review of the findings and recommendations of the external
auditors, including the recommendations made pursuant to a
special review on regulatory compliance;

i Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

j- Review and approval of internal audit plan;
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Audit Committee (Continued)

k. Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and

recommendations;

Review of reports on applicable compliance and regulatory
matters and adoption of the minutes of the meetings of the

Compliance Committee;

m. Review of update from Group Risk on the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”)’s examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations; and

n. Endorsement of the amendments to the Charter of Audit

Committee for submission to the Board for approval.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the Board
to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial positions,
to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud and errors, to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to provide
oversight and guidance to management in achieving the Company’s
objectives. However, it should be recognized that the Group’s internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,

assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

° A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

° Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest

rate risks, operational risk and compliance risks.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees
including the Executive Committee. Actual performance results
against budgets are closely monitored. The Board reviews the

Group’s business and financial performance on a quarterly basis.

Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including accounting,
regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management accounting and
budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of various

functional committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance with
management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal control
reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits and
operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency
and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head of Internal
Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the

Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Board via the Risk
Management Committee and the Executive Committee, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of the
Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk and

return balance.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

The Group’s banking business is working on the upgrade of its
risk management framework and capabilities to progress toward
the implementation of the more sophisticated risk management
practices under the Basel Il capital accord, with the banking group
starting on the basis of standardised approach for regulatory
capital reporting and management commencing 2007. This
development will contribute to enhance the overall risk

management and internal control process of the Group.

The Group’s Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Legal and Compliance Division of the Group performs an
independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board

has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and

executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

The 2009 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control

system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal

controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s

Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management practices.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.
Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 61.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 50 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 51 to the financial statements.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,588,000.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets of the Group are shown in Note 35 to the

financial statements.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Kunio Suzuki

*Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.

*Robert Tsai-To Sze

*Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.

*Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

*Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith
(appointed on 12 August 2009)

Tatsuo Tanaka

Eiichi Yoshikawa

John Wai-Wai Chow

Yiu-Ming Ng

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Roderick Stuart Anderson

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew

Kenichi Yonetani

(alternate to Kunio Suzuki)

Tetsuya Wada
(alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka)

Chung-Kai Chow 0.B.E., J.P. (retired on 1 June 2009)

Vice Chairman

* Independent non-executive Directors
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Kunio Suzuki, Tatsuo Tanaka, Eiichi Yoshikawa and David Shou-Yeh
Wong retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with
Article 114 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Nicholas Robert
Sallnow-Smith who has been appointed as an additional Director shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,

offers himself for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors, and
the Company still considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent. The Company is aware that two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Peter Gibbs Birch and Robert Tsai-To Sze,
have served the Board for a period more than nine years but still
considers that they provide valuable independent advice and roles to

the Board in its deliberations and decision-making process.

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
have taken on or are deemed to have acquired under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities

transactions adopted by the Company were as follows:
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in shares of the Company and associated

corporation
RAEFD L
HEBC®T
RAFD L
Percentage
of share
RAZE interest
Number of shares in the
BAER EEER HiER BitER relevant
Personal Corporate Other Total issued
22 Director Interests Interests Interests Interests  share capital
BEAAAERER Number of ordinary shares of
2BHEBR KRB HK$2 each in the Company
B David Shou-Yeh Wong - 5,590,495 94,909,411@ 100,499,906 38.61
AEE John Wai-Wai Chow 930,520 - - 930,520 0.36
Peter Gibbs Birch Peter Gibbs Birch 50,000 - - 50,000 0.02
ZELE Roderick Stuart Anderson 60,801 - - 60,801 0.02
BEAFNBRTEEERAR Number of ordinary shares of
SREAIETH HK$1 each in Dah Sing
EERR G Banking Group Limited
s David Shou-Yeh Wong - 824,169,170 - 824,169,170 74.13
Peter Gibbs Birch Peter Gibb Birch 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01
EEE John Wai-Wai Chow 164,558 - - 164,558 0.02
BEEY Nicholas John Mayhew® 20,000 - - 20,000 0.00
i Notes:
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1)

The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in which
the director has an interest of one third or more.

2) WERMDIDBEATTFERARKBKEFSmAK L 2) Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
ZEREAZTAELERETEERAMER trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Ao Yeh Wong and his family members.

3) RIZZTZNF+ZA=+—AHzxsHA BEF 3) Such shares in DSBG represent the corporate interest of David Shou-Yeh
¥ LA A AR T100,499,906 % AL (D EE Wong under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial interest in
o HAEEREITIRAS8.61% + AMikES 100,499,906 ordinary shares of the Company, representing 38.61% of its
KEREIRBIEXVERH E BBARIER B 25 RHIR entire share capital currently in issue as at 31 December 2009 being the
TEERMD 2 EEESR - record date.

4) B EALATHER 2 RETIRITE B iR IN - BHERER 4) In addition to his interest in DSBG, Nicholas John Mayhew is also

DSE Investment Services Limited ([DSE]) 71
BEET00#E T2 BERMER - DSETIAR A
2EMBRF REEELSE -

beneficially interested in all of DSE Investment Services Limited’s (“DSE”)
preference shares in issue totalling HK$700. DSE, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is currently dormant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation
i) Share option scheme of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the
new Share Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April
2005.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSFH Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:
(1)  Purpose of DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the

Group.
(2) Participants of DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in the Group
as the Board may in its sole discretion determine to be

eligible to participate in DSFH Option Scheme.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2009:

The number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme is 9,580,462 shares, representing 3.68%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 20009.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSFH

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSFH Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in varying amounts between the

first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one

year from the date of grant.



P

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A AT B A ()
&) AEAS T B AR B 2 5] B 4 e 25

€ ))

AREZBRETE (B)

B R R BB AN S BARN K
FBAN RO HRKEE P EEE
AR

BEX BRSNS IR0 R
TETHRERE  MFARKRTHE
AT NARAREETSTRIORE 2R
RABIRE °

TTEENEEEE
BRI ITREE T RS K H B

CEEREARRERE - BEBEEE
AR GIBBRAR (HRAT) £
AI%E17.039)1& - 2R AT RN
ERTFERBRMEE 2 HME -
1R T B AT R ER 5 B R FT
BEE 2 FHWHE  MERZEaE
MEE °

R

(i

=

\

RFT & B R AR AT Bl 15 R A U

AH & BBBE 8l S EHEN
A=tNAEHFRER E-F
—REMA =+ AER -

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
@)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid;

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK?”) and is calculated as the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of DSFH Option Scheme:
DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and

expiring at the close of 27 April 2015.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors of the
Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted
options under DSFH Option Scheme. Details of the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2009 which have been granted

under the DSFH Option Scheme are as follows:

AREEE 2 ALARNEE

Number of the Company’s shares in the options

R-BE0E “EENER R-EEAE
-R-8B ZEEAER ZETAER AN/BE TZRZT-H il ]
BE ¥ i Lapsed/ bE:] fEEY Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RY¥EH ] E
ERA Grantee 1/1/2009  during 2009  during 2009  during 2009  31/12/2009 Price  Grant date From To
Br o (B/AE)  (BIRME)  (BIAE)
HK$ dimly dimly dimly
2 Directors
EER Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
ZEE Roderick Stuart
Anderson 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
IRz Gary Pak-Ling Wang 400,000 - - - 400,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011

R Nicholas John Mayhew 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013

Easage Aggregate of
Employees® 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
500,000 - - - 500,000 67.80 7/9/2006 7/9/2007 7/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting were determined
in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on
the SEHK for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the respective dates of grant are set out below:

BFHAADRARSG
REER Rzl mE
Closing price
®¥H TEE of the Company’s shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(R/R/%) BT BT
(d/m/y) HK$ HK$
25/8/2005 51.71 51.05
7/9/2006 67.80 68.90
28/9/2007 61.93 60.90
READBEREE-_ZETNF+_A=7 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements

— AL FEARERTITR R Z 28 M
B BIARRRRFARALIEZEMER
AIMBERZABBE  BABBRREED
BETEEAMN] TIENER -

ERFEBARMAET BT - WEARARE
BETZREEALRZ R -

ERF AL ST WEEAAR
AFAKE N E R RGHERER TR
Rt -

HE_ZThF+_A=+—HILFEAM
BEHRBRENEE

HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFERN
RERREEE 2 ETFBRRTBHRE
M 5E55 °

during the year ended 31 December 2009 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to two employees
who are directors of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries
and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

3. None of the grantees under DSFH Option Scheme were granted
share options exceeding respective individual limits.

4. No share options under DSFH option scheme were granted to the

Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

5. Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2009:

Details of the computation of the value of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2009 are shown in Note 55 to the
financial statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
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Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) was initially approved by the
Company, as the sole shareholder of DSBG, on 12 June 2004.
With the approval of the SEHK, the terms of DSBG Option
Scheme as disclosed in DSBG's initial public offering prospectus
remained valid after its public listing commencing from 30 June
2004.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSBG Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSBG Option Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the

Group’s business and growth.
(2) Participants of DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2009:

The number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme is 38,995,000 shares, representing 3.51%
of the issued share capital of DSBG as at 31 December
20009.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSBG

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSBG Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under the
DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vested in
varying amounts between the first and up to sixth
anniversaries from the date of grant, or in a shorter period

as the case may be.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG, and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under DSBG
Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year from

the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the closing
price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of DSBG shares
traded on the SEHK for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of DSBG Option Scheme:

DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and

expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to DSBG Option Scheme, certain directors of DSBG
and its major operating subsidiaries were granted options under

DSBG Option Scheme. Details of the share options outstanding
as at 31 December 2009 which have been granted under DSBG

Option Scheme are as follows:

IREREZANEAEARRHUE
Number of DSBG's shares in the options
RZBENE ZEENER RZBENE
-A-A ZEEAEM ZBIAERM AWEE tZASt-H il
BE R i Lapsed/ ] fTEEY Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RFAH # z
ARA Grantee 1/1/2009  during 2009  during 2009  during 2009  31/12/2009 Price”  Grant date From To
B (BAE) (BAE) (BIAE)
HKS (i) Gmh) ()
£z Directors
BEX Lung-Man Chiu
(John Chiu) 250,000 - - - 250,000 16.70  25/11/2004  25/11/2005  25/11/2010
e Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau 250,000 - - - 250,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
Easage Aggregate of
employees® 300,000 - - - 300,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
250,000 - - - 250,000 1432 30/12/2005  3012/2006  30/12/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.30 25/9/2006 25/9/2007 25/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2010
250,000 - - - 250,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2013
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

KRNFFEZRBHE — AMRTE i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
BlBR a2z R ERE () a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

BRK T 2TEETREBERIT EMRANE 1. The exercise price for each tranche of granting was determined in
17.03(9)1k + 2% AFiRTTER B MK ()EE accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
THREBAMES 2 IHE - BE()ERT force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of DSBG
AR AERZX S BRERMBEE 2 FHKH shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (i) the average
B MEFzZESEMEE E8KTAH closing price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK for the five
RIARBBRMDBHELNT - trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The closing

price of DSBG'’s shares immediately before the respective dates of

grant are set out below:

BFBEAMAFHBRITEBRD
REBXBAZKRHE
Closing price
B®FH TEE of DSBG shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/%F) op BT
(d/m/y) HK$ HK$
25/11/2004 16.70 16.60
25/8/2005 14.40 14.15
30/12/2005 14.32 14.35
25/9/2006 17.30 17.04
19/7/2007 17.84 17.58
RASBRETHZE-_ZTTNF+=A j‘?‘ 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
—BIEFERARMRITER HARITER during the year ended 31 December 2009 of DSBG’s outstanding
B2 BB RFE  MAHRTEERTH share options which were granted to certain eligible employees,
TELEBENBRARIZCEERES HAE who are the directors, senior executives or officers of DSBG’s major
- BRITBRABREZEZRRE  BA operating subsidiaries and are working under employment
EREFEEOIERTEEANITENE contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
g o purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.
ERFRITEERRIESET - WEARK 3. None of the grantees under DSBG Option Scheme were granted
ANERTZREFEA LR ZRARKE - share options exceeding respective individual limits.
ERFIRITE ERRERTEIT - WEW 4. No share options under DSBG option shares were granted to
PN T&ZIS‘% B8 M RS R DSBG’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.
TR HE o

BHE_ZTTNF+-A=1+—RHILFEFR 5. Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2009:

BEHARBRENEE

BHE_ZTNF+-_A=+—RHILEFER
BERREEEZ ETHFBHNRUBHRE
M 5E55 ©

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2009 are shown in Note 55 to the financial
statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at
31 December 2009, none of Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of

directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

Shareholders’ Interests

At 31 December 2009, the register of shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions maintained under section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had been notified of the following interests, which
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of Directors, being

5% or more held in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

HEAREGEZE
BRITRAZ
Bk
Percentage of

shares held in

&S 514 BT EE the entire issued
Shareholder Capacity Number of shares share capital
ETHREE AHEEHEEEATEEEaMGRIEEER

Christine Yen Wong

Deemed Interest by virtue of 100,499,906 38.61%"
her spouse having a notifiable interest

ELBERELEARAA]

EREAMEEER

HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interest 93,847,2490 36.29%*
ERAREEER
DSI Limited Trustee and corporate interest 46,559,426 17.89%*
SREA LB
DSI Group Limited Trustee and corporate interest 35,452,4240 13.62%*
—ZEUFJE 5 E EEER
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Corporate interest 39,214,574 15.07%
= ZEHRTUFJIRTT EL R
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd Beneficial interest 39,214,574 15.07%
WE IR
Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Ltd. Investment manager 18,048,800 6.93%"
AR
Capital Research and Management Investment Manager 15,668,200 6.02%
Company
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc wE KR
FEEZTZHBAR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment manager 15,295,609 5.87%
and its associates under mandates
* LA FIEE BB =5 AR A5 « DSI Limited &2DSI *  Each of the interests of HSBC International Trustee Limited, DSI Limited and
Group Limited& B Fi5l| 2 #1198 T P 58 £ P DSI Group Limited forms part of the 100,499,906 shares in the Company in
F5A#9100,499,906/% 78 22 A1 IR 0 7 2 BB 17 © % which David Shou-Yeh Wong has an interest as disclosed in the section
EFFEEEZRECONFEBE [EERITHE headed “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” on page 46. The interest
HEXIBEANEETURE  c THREZELTHE of Christine Yen Wong represents the whole of such shares. Therefore, these
HAZETTEEAEERARANRMDEE - shareholdings should not be aggregated, and rather form part or whole of
It - BEARNDTAREART  BIRBRIETESL the same interest of 100,499,906 shares in the Company disclosed by David
A T 1% ¥ 100,499,9060% A A B 15 7 2 2617 5% Shou-Yeh Wong.

2 3]
Eap°
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Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

1. Such shares represent the deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong by virtue
of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial shareholder of
the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant share capital of
the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1) of the SFO). This
interest comprises the same shares held by David Shou-Yeh Wong under
the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

2. Such shares are mainly comprised of the interest indirectly held by HSBC
International Trustee Limited in trust for a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members. Relevant
shares have been included in the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh
Wong as disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

3. Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by DSI
Limited and DSI Group Limited in trust for a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members. Relevant
shares have been included in the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh
Wong as disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

4. Such percentage of interest held by the named shareholder has been
adjusted with reference to the total number of shares of the Company
currently in issue as of the approval date of this report.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2009, no short positions were recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2009. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Connected Transactions

Details of other transactions with related parties of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009 have been set out in Note 54 to the

financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Information

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under

“Financial Summary”.

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group derived less than
30% of interest income and other operating income from its five largest

customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the

preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

IE3 For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Mizx Z—ZBAE —ZTT)N\F
Note 2009 2008
M EWA Interest income 3,177,222 4,738,962
FEZH Interest expense (833,093)  (2,369,497)
B E A Net interest income 6 2,344,129 2,369,465
RS E& & AE WA Fee and commission income 460,718 612,513
fRisE & Ae Fee and commission expense (133,519) (108,892)
FREBRASWA Net fee and commission income 7 327,199 503,621
FEEEE Net trading loss 8 (57,938) (104,295)
FARE R H AU Net insurance premium and other income 9 1,445,003 2,119,344
H =@ A Other operating income 10 55,389 88,575
EERA 3 Operating income 4,113,782 4,976,710
REERERY HFE Net insurance claims and expenses 11 (1,389,806)  (1,806,263)
HIBRRBEREZEERA Total operating income net of insurance
claims 2,723,976 3,170,447
EESH Operating expenses 12 (1,869,080)  (1,703,284)
1 BR 3RL{EL 85 18 A 2 & B E R Operating profit before impairment losses 854,896 1,467,163
BERREREEREMEEREE Loan impairment losses and other credit
provisions 15 (433,280) (658,535)
ETREREEEEWRZEDR Operating profit before gains or losses
EEA 2 & EEH on certain investments and fixed assets 421,616 808,628
HETEREMEEEER Net gain on disposal and revaluation of
TEEHZFRZE premises and other fixed assets 16 2,803 1,410
HEREN X RARNFEREZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of and fair value
Flies  (B518) adjustment on investment properties 17 76,597 (60,437)
HERHEEEFFERE Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale
securities (60,333) (3,119
JEIREEE N A Z 48 Share of results of an associate 195,770 120,589
MG KR T 2 ¥4& Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,103 5,674
Bl 1% (E S FZ%ML%T& Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts 18 243,983 =
REINEF 2 REBERR Impairment losses charged on held-to-maturity
securities - (357,684)
AHEEFES 2R EREIERE Impairment losses charged on available-for-sale
securities - (332,069)
FR B¢ A 72 A Profit before income tax 885,539 182,992
FHIES Income tax expense 19 (96,250) (29,375)
F B Al Profit for the year 789,289 158,617
FE (R & S m A 5 R Attributable to:
V8 12 il 7 R R Non-controlling interests 163,240 47,424
VNN |11 9= Shareholders of the Company 626,049 106,193
F 2 5 A Profit for the year 789,289 158,617
’E Dividends
EFERE Interim dividend paid 21 = 176,984
FR2F Earnings per share
HIA Basic 22 HK$2.41 HK$0.42
3] Diluted 22 HK$2.41 HK$0.42
FO8E EF246E MR IGE B ME 2 — The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated
#B o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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BE_ZTNF+_A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2009
(DAJ%SM:FTEMEJ/T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Mz Z=ZBAE —ZET)N\F
Note 2009 2008
FEERF Profit for the year 789,289 153,617
FEHMmEEKZE  (B8) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

AHEEES Available-for-sale securities

ERNERS 2 AFEKS (BB Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in equity 759,813 (1,584,062)

EREWmR s BYABHE Reclassification adjustments for amounts

transferred to profit or loss

— s — Disposal 60,333 3,119

— BB — Impairment 21,873 332,069

FERAFIIE (L) B 5 Related income tax (expense)/credit (79,334) 179,132

762,685  (1,069,742)

TE Premises

RN ER 2 A ERE (BE) Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in equity 411,918 (152,332)

TEAFERZ FBER Deferred income tax (recognised)/released

HEm (FER) B 2 EEFRIE on fair value gains/losses and disposal of
premises (18,106) 49,965
393,812 (102,367)
BREGIMEBEI S MENELEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign entities (3,005) 32,952

BRI IR 2 F 2 E A Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

2HE ks (E18) net of tax 1,153,492  (1,139,157)
HNBRBHERZFEZ2A Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Wi, (BE) BE8 for the year, net of tax 1,942,781 (985,540)
FEME 2 E U AR ERRS : Attributable to:

V8 2 | 7 AR R Non-controlling interests 350,259 (193,006)

ZIN/NET |95 Shareholders of the Company 1,592,522 (792,534)
HBRBEAZFEZA Total comprehensive income/(loss)

W (BE) B for the year, net of tax 1,942,781 (985,540)

F68E £ FE246B 2 MIFE I RN A I THREK Z —

5 o

financial statements.

The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e =—ZTBAFE ZZZZTN\F
Note 2009 2008
BE ASSETS
R RIRITH 4 B4 Cash and balances with banks 23 10,741,879 12,808,527
FRIT =2+ =@ AR HANFER Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 4,282,749 1,656,950
FFEERERE Trading securities 24 5,883,968 2,303,141
HENRFEGTER E """"" Financial assets designated at fair value
GtABRENEREE through profit or loss 24 4,509,393 4,258,874
PTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 25 594,391 1,122,486
SHEERREMERB Advances and other accounts 26 68,046,080 70,508,863
A & 75 5 Available-for-sale securities 28 12,901,024 14,724,195
?—r | Hﬂ ﬁ % Held-to-maturity securities 29 8,802,282 6,384,931
fEQRIRE Investment in an associate 31 1,299,257 1,132,461
/ji\ﬂ? B B IR A Investments in jointly controlled entities 32 60,791 59,973
= Goodwill 34 950,992 950,992
B|ILEE . Intangible assets 34 139,030 158,352
TTF REGETEE Premises and other fixed assets 35 2,426,531 2,069,694
BEME Investment properties 36 568,659 459,304
BIEAR 1H & 7 Current income tax assets 65,283 144,177
FER IR A B Deferred income tax assets 47 78,178 162,804
RISBREB 2 BRREEE Value of in-force long-term life assurance
business 37 1,225,668 1,274,452
BEAE Total assets 122,576,155 120,180,176
=L LIABILITIES
RITIE Deposits from banks 1,435,136 2,443,594
ﬁii@ilﬂ Derivative financial instruments 25 1,218,225 2,268,155
¥ f’E EERAAMNARE B Trading liabilities 39 2,068,300 1,791,419
HENRFETEBAZEHTA Deposits from customers designated
BHEE PR at fair value through profit or loss 40 - 471,065
BEPEER Deposits from customers 41 88,370,071 79,947,078
EETHOFNE Certificates of deposit issued 42 2,060,010 4,654,985
EBTNERE S Issued debt securities 43 - 2,803,640
BEER Subordinated notes 44 4,602,235 5,268,716
HafR B RTER Other accounts and accruals 45 3,814,136 4,074,266
BIEA A B 1E Current income tax liabilities 19,109 15,440
EIEF IS TE Deferred income tax liabilities 47 15,366 9,910
HEARBAEHNREZEAZAE Liabilities to policyholders under long-term
insurance contracts 46 4,794,792 4,494,456
=N Total liabilities 108,397,380 108,242,724
= EQUITY
V2 15 | R AR R Non-controlling interests 2,783,198 2,045,251
AATRREGER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
H§$ Share capital 50 520,541 520,541
7 Reserves 51 10,875,036 9,371,660
BERES Shareholders’ funds 11,395,577 9,892,201
Basast Total equity 14,178,775 11,937,452
EnRkEEAR Total equity and liabilities 122,576,155 120,180,176
EERN - ZETF=-A=-+tHAEREESR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
ffo ° March 2010.
ErE HERE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
EF EFEK Director Managing Director
F68EH EF246E L MFE ARG E B ME 2 — The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 December 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e —ZTBAE ZZZTN\F
Note 2009 2008
MEBLARRE Investments in subsidiaries 33 3,779,079 3,593,110
BN E E Current assets
RITHEER Bank balances 17,686 7,114
FEUER R H At BR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 354 349
18,040 7,463
mBEE Current liabilities
THIRERREMERE Accrued expenses and other accounts 9,290 13,872
FREBEE/ (AE) Net current assets/(liabilities) 8,750 (6,409)
3,787,829 3,586,701
= EQUITY
f& Zx Share capital 50 520,541 520,541
# Reserves 51 3,267,288 3,066,160
EmEE Total equity 3,787,829 3,586,701

EERN - ZTF-ATHBERERRER

{7;5 °

ErE HEE
E EFRE
F68HEFE2468 2 MiFE A

25 o

MBmER 2 —

March 2010.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Director

financial statements.

Hon-Hing Wong

Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated



E R B B R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_ZTTNF+_A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009
(D(i%%?ﬁhﬁ”?) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
ARARRESES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
REHE
BR
RE  BRHEE HtRE REEFA Non-  E#HAH
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
—EENE-A-REH Balance at 1 January 2009 520541 1,551,426 101,008 7,719,136  2,045251 11,937,452
FEXE(EE)  WaEs Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 966,473 626,049 350,259 1,942,781
TEEMRERLENERER Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (26,873) 26,873 - -
TEREMERIEER Premises revaluation reserve transferred
HERRART to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (8,775) 8,775 - -
RERAE—FHNBARRKR Placement and subscription of shares in
a subsidiary - - (132,383) - 434,753 302,370
REMRBAARDAERNEREE Subscription of shares in a subsidiary for
settlement of loan facility - - 43,237 - (43,267) (30)
MEARMEREHERRRERS Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary - - - - (3,798) (3,798)
“EEAFt-A=t-REH Balance at 31 December 2009 520,541 1,551,426 942,777 8,380,833 2,783,198 14,178,775
E+-A=+—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—EEAE —ZTZTN\F
2009 2008
BERRERBINAZ Proposed final dividend
FR AR AARR 2 included in retained earnings - =

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZTAFE+_A=1+—HILEE (&) For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Continued)

Iy

E;“J/\

By EEE

= = —
==
L g —

HHUY

iy

L

LAVS ¥ T T2 51 R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
KARRRESES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
REHIE
BR
k&  ROEE EitRE  RERA Non-  Em&it
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
“EZ\§-fA-REH Balance at 1 January 2008 500,176 984,286 1,014,002 7,970,839 2,311,970 12,781,273
EREZANRELE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year - - (898727) 106193 (193,006  (985,540)
TEBREERANLETEMER Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (3,636) 3,636 - -
TEREMERIEER Premises revaluation reserve transferred
HERRART to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (9,364) 9,364 - -
ETERRERR Issue of ordinary shares 20,365 567,200 - - - 587,565
BOBRREFEMBALFAE Additional net assets acquired via
scrip dividend arrangement - - 17,279 - 5,166 22,445
WIARK Bt 8l B g Subscription of additional interest in
WEBAR &R a subsidiary via scrip dividend
arrangement at a premium - - (18,456) - (3,989) (22,445)
XHETRHER Payment of share issue expenses - (60) - - - (60)
WEAmEREHERRRERS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries - - - - (74,890) (74,890)
EREERERE 2007 final dividend - - - (193912 - (193912
R \FHRERE 2008 interim dividend - - - (176,984) - (176,984)
“EZN\F+-RB=T-H&H Balance at 31 December 2008 520,541 1,551,426 101,098 7,719,136 2,045,251 11,937,452

F68E EHE246H L M ARG E M IwEK 2 — The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

HE_ZTTNF+_A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009
(txiﬁﬁg?ﬁfiﬁlJ/T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
iz =—ZThE —TTN\F
Note 2009 2008
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEERAR ©FRE Net cash from operating activities 52(a) 4,129,740 3,160,003
RETBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE REVER Purchase of premises, investment
HEEEE properties and other fixed assets (180,844) (92,972)
HETE - HEWHEREAM Proceeds from disposal of premises,
EEEEFMBHRIE investment properties and other
fixed assets 92,753 17,848
W B s i R Rl M 2w Acquisition of interest in an associate - (179,718)
KREEHMALE ©F5E Net cash used in investing activities (88,091) (254,842)
METBZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT GE Certificates of deposit issued 487,891 1,491,822
B 0 17 R 3% Certificates of deposit redeemed (3,143,618)  (5,499,765)
B iR ERR Repurchase of subordinated notes (371,056) =
BEBETESRH Repayment of issued debt securities (2,775,045) -
— P B8 2 R 2 R PR il e Capital contribution from non-controlling interests
IR R 3% AR A of a subsidiary 302,370 -
BATEERAR D Issue of share capital net of
(EMBREITEROHER) share issue expenses = 471,662
Bt &8 2 R ) LR $2E 1) 4 AR R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
IKE AR B of subsidiaries (3,798) (74,890)
Ik 35 3 58 AR AR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares - (255,053)
BB EETAREFE Net cash used in financing activities (5,503,256)  (3,866,224)
BeREFRSEBRDF Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,461,607) (961,063)
FRERERREER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 15,378,898 16,339,961
FRAESREFRLER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 52(b) 13,917,291 15,378,898
FO8E EF246E 2 IR IRA M IBRMEZ — The notes on pages 68 to 246 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

1L R

A EREBBERAF ([KARF]) BEM B AR
(FehE [N E ) £RE - BPIRPBRIRHRTT -
Rz - RN HEMARR RS

KA IEEABORARRAR -
Wik AEBEFELITBE-—BZ/SRAF2EP
/DE+/‘—\T«§ °

BB - M ERRBIAEE T T
IR WER-ZE—ZF=A-_THNEEERS
HEEFR o

2. EHEHBORME

AT RREATBERRAIRN 2 EESETHOR
BB - EREMBREEMRANE B -

2.1 Hmsdes

AEBzGEWBRERRRELESHAMAE ([F
BEITEAE]) R 2 EBM RS ER] ([F
B EmEER] - REEAEERERNEL
MEHELER  FAEGHER ([SFHER]) AR
HRBzoH)  ZETERMAZEARAINE
B R EHEDIM RS -

AR B ISR TIRIBE L N A T RERS - I
IR (BREEMR)  AHEEZESREE -
NRAFEH D 2 ERREEFOR - FIEEERE
ZEREENERAE UAFEHFELHEE
SFAESNEREERERAG (BEITETR)
ZEBIEHIERT ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. General information

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance, financial
and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s

Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing

Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2010.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of properties
(including investment properties), available-for-sale financial assets, fair
value-hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities

(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

2. EEGFFEURME @)
2.1 WS ()

AN BBV BREEN M BHRRACASE
TERzEt A TRAEEEEERARES
AR ZBRETEHAE - RAZKRREAZE
AT EE ) A B S BB HAfE 2 SRR IER B R
2 -EEERGEARNBRFEBRERAKE
Z IR AT 2 EM AR R ELE - &5
R EHE D RBEM 2 B - RS MR
RYBERZBERMET - IR FAPEE -

(F) B=ZFFNF—H—HHHEELEEN
ZER - BT R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009

BRARNUTAEE
HEMW U REE
%R RE Applicable for BRAREEE
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
BB HEERFE25% AR BEBN X —BEGERFZH @ —ZTTAF—H—H =
HKFRS 2 Share-based payments — Vesting 1 January 2009 Yes
Conditions and Cancellations
BB BRE LB (BEEHEm I B 2 %5 —ZETNF—-—HA—H P
HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about 1 January 2009 Yes
Financial Instruments
BB E LRI FE 85 (EEXEB D) —EENF-A—H =
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009 Yes
BB G ERE5R (Cupl el —ZEENF-—A—H =
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009 Yes
BB G ERE235% CEERAY —EENF-A—H A
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009 No
BB G ERE325% (AIOESrTARBRELEZEE) —ZEENF-A—H A
BB GTHELE15%
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and 1 January 2009 No
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
H5 (BRI B RS (REEFED T N\F+EHA—H =
RELZE®) REE13%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008 Yes
H5 (BRI B RS (B E R R =) —ZETNF—-—HA—H A
RELZE®)REE15%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of 1 January 2009 No
Real Estate
H5 (BRI B RS CBINERIRE FREE ) T NFE+HA—H A
RELZE®)REE165
HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in 1 October 2008 No

a Foreign Operation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

2.

21

EET R BORME @)

A P (1)

(F) B=FFNF—A—AXARBLEER
ZHER - AEFT R FE ()

BEM IS LERFE 25 ARG BEHER
A — BB R B RE )

E/E:Elﬂ Efﬁ@@ :¥ }\EE )E]’)}Eﬁﬁﬁ
B IS R B 257 CLARR (7 R BB Y

XY ZMERT - ZIARE T RN RE R
ZEE - ARAKRRRAINE T iHET 8 2
HIE ° Eilﬁﬁﬁﬁb?ﬁiig%ﬁ{l%ﬂ BIERY
REBGRN - ARNMEFTBBIRF 2 EE -
iﬁﬁvﬁé‘ﬁéﬁiﬂjZﬂx%IEZ’Aiﬁﬁvﬂq
— Gt E BIER B IR o Lbsh - UL IHEERI TR
ST R IR MR R B IR R ER 2
BERTZARDE - ERBBMBREE
RIE25R I M AL BN REHR 2 M ],
RERERTE - ZFEITEPER -

BEMBREE
EiE)

AETREETESRT

BEGHMASR _ZZNF=ARMGH
ARV BRE LR BT 2ER] o HIBEFT
RAAFEAEERBESRAR ZKE
LERBAVFEFERREH 2 AFER
BAFHBEEZER - RRZREFTER
HIMREE - BUEBAKEZHBHARNK
EHEWEENTE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

The HKICPA published an amendment to HKFRS 2 — Share-based
Payments in March 2008. The changes pertain mainly to the
definition of vesting conditions and the regulations for the
cancellation of a plan by a party other than the company. These
changes clarify that vesting conditions are solely service and
performance conditions. As a result of the amended definition of
vesting conditions, non-vesting conditions are now to be
considered when estimating the fair value of the equity instrument
granted. Furthermore, the Standard describes the posting type,
if the vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions are not
fulfilled. There is no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements by applying the amendment of HKFRS 2 at the end of

the reporting period. These amendments are applied retrospectively.

Amendment to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments

The HKICPA published amendments to the HKFRS 7 in March
2009. The amendments require enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurements and liquidity risk. In particular, the
amendment requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. The adoption of the
amendment results in additional disclosures but does not have
an impact on the financial position or the comprehensive income

of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

2.

21

FEHEFETBORME @)
A B BE YE ()

(F) B=-ZFFNF—H—HHHAELELEN
ZER - BFTREE (B)

BEMBRELEREH(LEEXEDR)

BEAVBHRELNESFNR - LF=H
B AERERZRBRPERALLIAER
MARAR-_ZETNF A —BEz&5
Bl o IWIRERIMAE B G ERIE 145D
BRE)EEEEARREREDHZE
Ko RBFEUZRE - REBESI 2D
BEREGBRBERITHEHRITREZE K
B AEERTEEEREKE 2R 2]
MIEBRDRERFFEERDOBERELZ
N EBEE RS EHE - AT BN B E &R
FERW BUALBERNEMEATE - B
HPBZBEBERNBREZABEEBHRY
o DEFECHMELESR -

ER G ERE 1R BRKR 25

RIEFTZMAR T LF+ - AHEM -
WEIRERT T ERFIRA RS HIR B (BN T FE 5k
BEZERED]) 2IINEZESHRE -
BEXRDEFEAEZREEH | N2 NKE
BRPEBREECEREHOREZS -
It AEERGEREEBRERDP 2R
BHREE 2 RGRE  MAANFEREZ
BEZ2PHANGAEZEBRRED - LR
BEREEEIINATERERTLEN - RBE
BETEAFIRZER] - SRR (B
HipzEbaE 2 & ERE) ARSI RIR
ZREEDETHR - AR EFTBR2E
BEFE27 5 BEFREENL EE

> By 48R
REE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 was issued in March 2007 and excluding early adoption
would first be required to be applied to the Group’s accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2009. The Standard replaces
HKAS 14 Segment Reporting with its requirement to determine
primary and secondary reporting segments. Under the
requirements of the new Standard, the Group’s external
segmental reporting will be based on the internal reporting to the
Chief Executive and members of the Executive Committee (in its
function as the chief operating decision maker), which make
decisions on the allocation of resources and assess the
performance of the reportable segments. The application of
HKFRS 8 does not have any material effects for the Group but
has an impact on segment disclosure and on the measurement
bases within segments. The segment results have been changed

accordingly.
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised version was issued in December 2007. It prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, “non-
owner changes in equity”) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring “non-owner changes in equity” to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result, the Group presents in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes
in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also
conforms with the revised Standard. According to the amendment
of HKAS 1, each component of equity, including each item of
other comprehensive income, should be reconciled between
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation

aspects, there is no impact on retained earnings.
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EET R BORME @)

A P (1)

(F) B=FFNF—A—AXARBLEER
ZHER - AEFT R FE ()

BRE G ERFE23RABEXE)

KBTI ZRAR=ZE
HEFTBUB TRl BN RZEE — B KK
MEBEERERGECEEZEERAR
X ZEE - [EREA SR ERZFE23% 2
BRI M S AN B 2 476 R S B SR
SRR IE B SRR -

TERARM - Uk

EFREHEAERR BB G ERF 1R
(TREERTAREREL ZEE)

RZZZENERA  BEGHAGESR
BEGHERIE32  RERBARET
NEsHMABETEZERIANESE
7o ERRBEEFENSERZTEE

EMTARS B AL  BATSEERK
o NERE REAUBERBEAZEZE
BEEFEZDHLINERTE - 71
bR ERERABERZHIIMER - &K
MBIER] 2 BB & TR 3257 & H K
KEZPWBHRRERNTE -

FE (BRPBHRE
FCRBER P E)

REZEBE)RER1S

B (BRVBREZRBEZES) REE13
AN E R R  HEMTREERE
BEEZRE (WBRSIKEEBER) BN
ZnREELEH  BKEP 2 HEARA
FESEEGEBLZHE 2 SEKG - ARA
SERLENBARBITE TEERPAR
=tEl E&éi/%(lﬁ%ﬁﬂ%iﬁ uﬁ%é,\a)
REEIREARAEERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

A revised version was issued in June 2007. This eliminates the
option of immediate recognition of borrowing costs as an expense
regarding assets that require a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use. The application of HKAS 23
Amendment does not have an impact on the consolidated results

or items in the statement of financial position of the Group.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

In June 2008, the HKICPA amended HKAS 32 by requiring some
financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability
to be classified as equity. Puttable financial instruments that
represent a residual interest in the net assets of the entity are
now classified as equity provided that specified conditions are
met. Similar to those requirements is the exception to the
definition of a financial liability for instruments that entitle the
holder to a pro rata share of the net assets of an entity only on
liquidation. The adoption of the amended HKAS 32 does not have
an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK (IFRIC) —
together with a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty

Int 13 clarifies that where goods or services are sold

points or free products), the arrangement is a multiple element
arrangement, and the consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components of the arrangement using
fair values. HK (IFRIC) —
as certain subsidiaries of the Group operate some of the loyalty

Int 13 is relevant to the Group’s operation

programmes.
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ZER - BFTREE (B)

2R (BRVBREREZES)2EBF15
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BB EHERFEIRCERSR) AR
RBEXRS  LEHEBSTELF18HE
AREEANREZBEZRS - ILAREY
BHAKE M BRFENTE

72 (AR BHREREZES)2EFR16
OB RIS E FREE )

HWRREHAERFREY T 2GR
B BIERFHRE B E e B M 3k
2HER 2 EZRERE  AREMP T AR S
AEEEFR—FHKERARE  WHRE
WERREE 2 PERRERTE -

(Z) ERMEIREMZEAR 2R

ATERRZ2EEBMIEAEAREEERR
BE-ZEZNFtA—BxEEHERZER
HAfE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

The Interpretation clarifies whether HKAS 18 “Revenue” or HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” should be applied to particular
transactions. It is likely to result in HKAS 18 being applied to a
wider range of transactions. This Interpretation does not have an

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign

Operation

This Interpretation clarifies the accounting treatment in respect
of net investment hedging. This includes the fact that net
investment hedging relates to differences in functional currency
not presentation currency, and hedging instruments may be held
anywhere in the Group. This Interpretation does not have an

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods:
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FE T BORMEE &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
A L () 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Z) BEBMHEIRLERLZ ER R 25 (&) (b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
BERRUTBER/
HERBZHRFE
b S Applicable for BRARKEE AEBREHEN
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to Early adopted
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group by the Group
B BREEFE15 (RIEEAR - HFRZEHEER —ZETNFELA—H & i
REB G ERE2TH FH R R A 2 REKAK)
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1 July 2009 No No
Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate
BB S LR F 35 (EBadh) —ZETNFELA-H b= P
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2009 Yes Yes
BB EIE27R (e KB I #*K) —ZETNFELA—H = =
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 1 July 2009 Yes Yes
Financial Statements
BB T ERE 395 (ERTA  BAKGE-SAREHIER) Z—EThFLA—H = &
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 1 July 2009 Yes No
and Measurements - Eligible Hedged ltems
& (BRI BRS (MEBEEH IR CEE) —ZETNFLA—H A i
RBEE®)RERITH
HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009 No No
B (BRI BRS (BERRP2BE) —ZTAFELA-H & &
RBEE®)REF18%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009 No No
BB B s LR F 25 (EEUREINZURDBEERS) —T-ZF-f—H I~ A
HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based 1 January 2010 Yes No
Payment Transaction
BB G T ERE 325 (2 258 —Z-ZF_F-H I~ i
HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issue 1 February 2010 Yes No
& (BRI BRS (FHMSRATA 2 2RAE) —T-ZF+A-H b= o
REZEQ)REE19%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities 1 July 2010 Yes No
with Equity Instruments
BB TR E 245 (EBEATZRE) —T—%-H—H = i
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011 Yes No
B (BRI BRS (BERNERAIE, BE 2R —T—%—-H—H & i
REZEQ) REE145% RERE 2T RMERZBE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 1 January 2011 No No
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction
BB RS LA F 9% (ERIAS1HH - K E) —Z-=f-H—H = i
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: 1 January 2013 Yes No

Classification and Measurement
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate

The amended Standard allows first-time adopters to use a
deemed cost of either fair value or the carrying amount under
previous accounting practice to measure the initial cost of
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates in the separate financial statements. The amendment
also removes the definition of the cost method from HKAS 27
and replaces it with a requirement to present dividends as income

in the separate financial statements of the investor.
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The revised Standard continues to apply the acquisition method
to business combinations, with some significant changes. For
example, all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded
at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income
statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs should
be expensed. The Group has early adopted HKFRS 3 (Revised)
and the consequential amendments to HKAS 27 (as discussed
below), HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 which are originally effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised Standard requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The Standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. The revised Standard will tend to produce higher
volatility in equity and/or earnings in connection with the sale or

acquisition of interests by the Group.

As disclosed in Note 54(a)(l), there was a placement and a
subscription of shares of a subsidiary in 2009 which resulted in
dilution of the Group’s interest in the subsidiary. The effect was
accounted for by the Group using the early adopted revised
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 and reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement —
Eligible Hedged Items

The amendment was issued in November 2008. It provides
guidance in two situations: On the designation of a one-sided
risk in a hedged item HKAS 39 concludes that a purchased option
designated in its entirety as the hedging instrument of a one-
sided risk will not be perfectly effective. The designation of
inflation as a hedged risk or portion is not permitted unless in
particular situations. This is not expected to give rise to any

changes to the Group’s financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

(Continued)
HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

HK (IFRIC) -
how the non-cash dividends distributed to the shareholders

Int 17 was issued in December 2008. It addresses

should be measured. A dividend obligation is recognised when
dividend was authorised by the appropriate entity and is no longer
at the discretion of the entity. This dividend obligation should be
recognised at the fair value of the net assets to be distributed.
The difference between the dividend paid and the amount carried
forward of the net assets distributed should be recognised in

profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are to be made if the net assets being held
for distribution to owners meet the definition of a discontinued
operation. The application of HK (IFRIC) 17 is not expected to

have any impact on the financial statements of the Group.
HK (IFRIC) -

Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

HK (IFRIC) -

to account for transfer of items of property, plant and equipment

Int 18 was issued in February 2009. It clarifies how

by entities that receive such transfers from their customers. The
Interpretation also applies to agreements in which an entity
receives cash from a customer when that amount of cash must
be used only to construct or acquire an item of property, plant
and equipment and the entity must then use that item to provide
the customer with ongoing access to supply of goods and/or
services. The Group is not expected to be impacted by applying
HK (IFRIC) - Int 18.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaction

The amended Standard addresses the accounting in the separate
financial statements of a subsidiary when its suppliers/employees
will receive cash payments from the parent that are linked to the
price of the equity instruments of an entity in the group. The
parent, and not the entity, has the obligation to deliver cash. The
amendments state that the entity shall account for the transaction
with its suppliers/employees as equity-settled, and recognise a
corresponding increase in equity as a contribution from its parent.
The subsidiary shall remeasure the cost of the transaction
subsequently for any changes resulting from non-market vesting
conditions. The adoption of these amendments is not expected

to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issue

The amendment requires rights issues to be classified as equity
if they are issued for a fixed amount of cash regardless of the
currency in which the exercise price is denominated, provided
they are offered on a pro rata basis to all owners of the same
class of equity. The adoption of this amendment is not expected

to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments

The interpretation clarifies the accounting by the debtor when
the debtor renegotiates the terms of its debt with the result that
the liability is extinguished through issuing its own equity
instruments to the creditor (i.e. a “debt for equity swap”). A gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the
fair value of the equity instruments issued and the carrying
amount of the financial liability. The adoption of this interpretation
is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 24 Related party disclosures

The revised Standard introduces an exemption from all of the
disclosure requirements of IAS/HKAS 24 for transactions among
government-related entities and the government. The Standard
also clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party. The
adoption of the revised Standard results in revised disclosures
but does not have an impact on the financial position or the

comprehensive income of the Group.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The interpretation clarifies when refunds or reductions in future
contributions for defined benefit type of employee benefits should
be regarded as available and how a minimum funding requirement
might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions
or might give rise to a liability. The Group does not operate any
defined benefit type of employee benefits. This interpretation is

not relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and

Measurement

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts
of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of

financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the instruments.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and

Measurement (Continued)

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only “basic loan
features”). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather than profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and

loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the Standard, the

impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.
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2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
(¢) Improvements to HKFRS

“Improvements to HKFRS” contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
“Improvements to HKFRS” comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS. Most of
the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009 or 1 January 2010 respectively, with earlier
adoption permitted. No material changes to the Group’s
accounting policies are expected as a result of these

amendments.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls

another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)
(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate

share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any

accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in associate are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction

costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a
part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants. Wealth
management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised

rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition, except for subsequent reclassification

meeting specified definition of relevant asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as

held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition as
designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option) if

the following criteria are met:

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.1 Classification (Continued)
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(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-
sale; or (c) those for which the Group may nor recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of

credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or equity prices.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.1 Classification (Continued)

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold

to maturity.

2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category only
in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and
highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require adjustment

to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed and,

if necessary, separately accounted for.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest income
and expense and dividend income and expenses derived from
and incurred on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are included under “Net trading loss” in the consolidated income

statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject to
fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the loans

and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value which is the cash given including any transaction costs.
They are measured subsequently at fair value with gains and
losses (except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses) recognised in equity and reported in the reconciliation
from results of the year to total comprehensive income until the

financial assets are derecognised.
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2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

2.7

(c)  Available-for-sale (Continued)

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity and reported in the reconciliation from results of the year
to total comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign
currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement under “Other

operating income”.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the consolidated income statement and is
reported as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as a
deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the separate income statement as impairment

charge on held-to-maturity investments.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal and
interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
that asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of

conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the

allowances for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income

statement.
(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past

due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All

financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at

fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of financial

liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair

value are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel such as the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading loss”

in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between the
carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the consolidated income

statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of
derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when

fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled by
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts

at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities.
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way

provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gains/(losses) arising from
financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(@)  Fair value hedge (Continued)

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity and remains in retained earnings until

the disposal of the hedged item.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gains/(losses) from financial instruments designated

at fair value through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The counterparty liability in respect of securities sold subject to
repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreement’s using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The

obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with

appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment

performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury, Overseas

Banking, Insurance Business, and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the

functional currency of the Company and major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the income statement.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of

comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale, a
distinction is made between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the
carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,

except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are

reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which a
reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the remaining period of
lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 5 and 10

years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of premises charged to the income statement and depreciation
based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from premises

revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and

buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,

continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from

future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other
legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They include core
deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible assets, and
trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
based on estimated useful lives, and/or accumulated impairment

losses.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these

losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is
also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant

investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by

the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to

vesting fully in the contributions.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a cash settled, share-based compensation
plan, which requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option to a grantee at the date of exercise. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. At each end of the
reporting period, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the
share options and any change is recognised in the income

statement.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation

can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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222

2.23

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
(@  Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on a basis consistent with similar owned fixed assets. Rental
income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under

finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding for each accounting period.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities

that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,

trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the

Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the financial

statements in the period in which they are approved by shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to

the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control

of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.28 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both
insurance and financial risks. Insurance contracts are those contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contract may also transfer
financial risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant
insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence
of an insured event that are at least 10% or more than the benefits

payable if the insured event did not occur.
Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

(i) Premiums

Premiums for long-term insurance business are recognised as
revenue when they become due. Premiums for general insurance
business are accounted for in the period in which the risk
commences. Unearned premium is provided and is calculated
on a time-apportioned basis as the proportion of the business
underwritten in the accounting year relating to the period of risk
after the end of reporting period. Reinsurance premiums are

accounted for on the same basis as gross premiums.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)  Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing new contracts are charged
to the income statement on a basis consistent with premium
revenue recognition and are presented in the income statement

under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(i) Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims and
movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related claims
handling expenses. For long-term insurance business, claims and
benefits are accounted for on notification of claims or when
benefits become payable. Liabilities to policyholders under long-
term insurance contracts are the amount recognised for future
claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as estimated by
appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory requirements.
Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the same basis as

the related claims or benefits.

(iv)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

The value of in-force long-term life assurance business is the
present value of expected future earnings to be generated from
in-force business, using appropriate assumptions. Movements
in the value of in-force long-term life assurance business are

reported as “Net insurance premium and other income”.

(v)  Liability adequacy test

At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, current best estimates of future cash flows
relating to insurance contracts and claims handling and
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the

assets backing such liabilities, are used.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)

3.

(vi)  Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which
the Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts
issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirement
for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts
held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well
as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised

as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance
asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the income statement. The Group decides
whether an insurance receivable is impaired based on its age and
relevant information on the financial health of the counterparty. If
the Group deems an insurance receivable to be impaired a full
and specific provision will be made against the balance in

question.

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those

activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management

of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the

financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence

of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an

appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,

products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
under the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly managed
and dealt with by the Group Risk Division and different functional
committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the

independent review of risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group
seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and
lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient

liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposure that can be
taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts

required to liquidate market positions.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate term liabilities. Certain of these
financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms
of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value

hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties may
default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee and for each business
division a credit committee made up of certain Executive Directors and
senior credit officers and chaired by the Chief Executive. Each credit
committee has the responsibility for formulating and revising credit
policies and procedures for that division within the parameters of the
Group Risk Policy and regulatory framework. Credit policies and
procedures define the credit assessment and approval criteria and
guidelines, use of scoring, review and monitoring process and the

systems of loan classification and impairment.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis, in
accordance with the credit approval and review policies, by evaluating
the credit-worthiness of different types of customers and counterparties
based on assessment of business, financial, market and industry risks
applicable to the types of loans, collateral and counterparty dealings
including dealing in or use of derivative financial instruments. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines. Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly
monitored and controlled by management, credit committees and
Group Risk Division. The Group’s internal auditors conduct regular
reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies and

procedures and regulatory guidelines.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The individual business’ credit policies also establish policies and
processes for the approval and review of new products and activities,
together with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes

and impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group reflects three components (i) the differentiation of credit
risk of the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (ii)
current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future
development, from which the Group derive the “exposure at
default”; and (iii) the likely loss on the defaulted obligations after

considering recovery and collateral realisation.

These credit risk measurements, which operate to control and
monitor credit performance of individual and pools of borrowers
through on-going credit review, loan classification, collection,
credit risk mitigation including realisation of collateral, and
provision of impairment on problem loans as required by the
Group’s credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines,
are embedded in the Group’s daily operational management.
Based on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, the Group is also required to assess expected loss of
individual and portfolios of credits, and to set aside sufficient loan
loss reserve against any expected loss. The operational
measurements to also cover expected losses can be contrasted
with impairment allowances required under HKAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the end of the
reporting period (the “incurred loss model”) rather than expected
loss (Note 3.2.3).
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

@
@)

(i)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of individual
counterparties using internal rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparty. They have been
developed internally and combine general analysis and
judgements of credit officers, and are reviewed, where
appropriate, by comparison with externally available data.
Clients of the Group are segmented into three broad rating
classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown in Note
3.2.3, differentiates credit quality for each rating class. This
means that, in principle, exposures migrate between
classes as the assessment of credit quality and business
environment changes. The rating tools are kept under
review and upgraded as necessary. The Group regularly
reviews the performance of the rating and their predictive

power with regard to default events.

The Group uses both internal data and market information
(e.g. credit rating migration, credit scoring) for internal credit
risk assessment. Observed migration data per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an economic

cycle.

Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for
a loan, exposure at default is the face value. For a
commitment, the Group includes any amount already drawn
plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the

time of default, should it occur.

Estimated credit loss or loss severity represents the Group’s
expectation of the event of loss on a claim should default
occur. It is based on actual loss experience and typically
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim

and availability of collateral or other credit risk mitigation.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that
the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties — carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are
normally collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to
which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct
lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external rating such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used by Group
Risk Division for managing the credit risk exposures. The
investments in these securities and bills are made to gain a better
credit quality, to diversify risk exposures and income streams,
and to maintain a readily available source of funds to meet the

funding and liquidity requirement of the Group from time to time.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps and
options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange and
equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for both
trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in using
derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by acting
as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to risks and

to generate revenues through trading activities within acceptable

limits.

(i) Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

The Group transacts derivative contracts on behalf of
customers or to address customer demands in structuring
tailored derivatives. The Group also takes proprietary
positions for its own accounts. Trading derivative products
used by the Group are primarily over-the-counter

derivatives transacted based on interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, credit spread and equity prices.

(i)  Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

Derivatives held for hedging purposes primarily consist of
derivative instruments or contracts used to manage interest

rate risk and foreign exchange risk. All of these are over-

the-counter derivatives.

The Group uses the following derivative instruments:

(i) Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot
transactions. Foreign currency and interest rate futures are
contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to
buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a
future date at a specified price, established in an organised
financial market. The credit risk is negligible, as futures
contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable

securities, and changes in the futures contract value are

settled daily with the exchange.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(@
(ii)

(iii)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Derivatives (Continued)

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination
of all these (i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). No
exchange of principal takes place, except for certain
currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk represents the
potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level
of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties
using the same techniques as for its lending activities.

Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or
during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency
or a financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller
receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for
the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate risk.
Options may be either exchange-traded or negotiated
between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed
to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the
extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

Credit default swaps are contractual agreements under
which the buyer makes a series of payments to the seller
and, in exchange, receives a payoff if a credit instrument
undergoes a credit event defined as events such as
restructuring, downgrading of credit rating or even
bankruptcy. The Group uses credit default swaps to mange
the credit risk arising from the trading and investment
portfolios of its insurance business and is exposed to the
credit risk of the referred counterparty or credit events
underlying the credit default swaps.

The Group may be exposed to counterparty risk arising from its

positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either

“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market

gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled

settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not receiving

the expected cash value of a derivative transaction or upon the

expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and credit market conditions. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments
on hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or
unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time

to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount
subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to

express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages, controls and limits concentrations of credit risk

wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties

and groups, and to industries and countries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing

limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or

groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such

risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or

more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level

of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved

by relevant credit committees and Group Risk Division.
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BEASEEENEDTRERREH - XNF2
RERT M EREFLER

RBRRBBMNET  HENEFPXEAEEE
ZARBEREBATRRNRERERNXEE DL
HE1THE  BRMEEOERTRERIERE
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

The exposure to any one borrower or counterparty including banks and
brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on— and off— balance
sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items
such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against

limits are monitored daily.

Exposures to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of
the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by regular review and revision of

these limits where appropriate.

To avoid concentration of risk, large exposures to individual customers
or related groups are limited to a percentage of the capital base, and
exposures to industry sectors and countries/regions are managed

within approved limits to achieve a balanced portfolio.

(@ Loans and advances

In order to mitigate the credit risk and where appropriate, the
Group will obtain collateral to support the credit facility. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
each financial institution counterparty, including valuation limit
for derivatives, is approved by the Group Credit Committee with
reference to the financial strength and credit rating of each
counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are

the respective margins of finance.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,

cashflow position and ability to repay.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security
for funds advanced, which is a common practice. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types

for loans and advances are:
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3.2.2
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5 BB (80
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o  HEWEEWE:

s HEMEBEEWNFE FEREWK
B &

e HEAESMTEAMEBESFMKE -

BTEEZEHAREREFREERSER
o EAEREERBALESEER
o BEAKRERBIRAIZHTFERZ
BRI SRR BREBRBER - §ERKER
HEIMEHMIARREEERK -

(Z) EFEF
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BITAS  EREFREEESFLERE
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(A) PT£TA
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g ARREE SN ERBEBZEE
Rzt REERFERE s —#H 0 85
SEENNREEERRZBIRE
REERBREERGHFETEREER
ARG e thSN - AREBEATEERENSE
- BERFRGE/EEBHEZEED
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FHEFRIABBREHRARITEESNHE 1
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R °
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HamkHMER  EAREEREF IR
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

o Mortgages over residential properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory

and accounts receivable; and

o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are
generally secured; revolving individual credit facilities are
generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimise credit loss,
the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual

loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,

which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for each counterparty. Moreover, the Group
requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice of
close-out arrangement in the event of default, settlement

procedure, valuation/pricing methods.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires

margin deposits from counterparties.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the
credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a
master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and

settled on a net basis.

The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative
instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each

transaction subject to the arrangement.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described in Note 3.2.1 focuses more on
credit-quality assessment from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment allowances are recognised
for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred
at the end of the reporting period based on objective evidence of
impairment (see Note 2.7). Due to the different approaches applied, the
amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements
may be different from the amount determined from other loss estimation
approach that is used for internal operational management and banking

regulation purposes.

The impairment allowance shown in the statement of financial position
at year-end is derived from each of the three broad internal rating
grades. However, the majority of the impairment allowance comes from
the bottom two gradings. The table below shows the percentage of the
Group’s on-balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and
the associated impairment allowance covering on— and off-balance

sheet amounts for each of these broad internal rating categories.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

—EEZhE —TENE
2009 2008
AEERE B
HE T HE ST
Bak ERasd
EXR#K  Impairment EFKEK  Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
58 Group % % % %
E& Grades

1-IE% 1 - pass 97.9 0.5 97.1 0.3
2— KR EE 2 — special mention 0.5 11.3 1.0 8.1
3— KRBT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.6 42.2 1.9 54.0

BRAAREBZEBERTER < EEF D ERME
WwoEMT

e AN EN LB P
ZE-BEAM  REERARBDBEN R
HA2BTRABMERAS 2 AL TER -

F_ERFRET B ARERNLERFRR
P 2B TR KRERALBREE » R
REBHEERRERL  AIAESAKERRE
B8k -

F=FEMIRBIAT] BEAREERNTFERFTR
ERRZBET—EFT=F KKREKALERSE
REER RN EZ N - XA E2ERE AR
SELEZRHKHERRZERB A FER B
HAARAE R/ SFBBRZER » XEFFZ
ERERBEMABE REWERSEERD -

100.0 100.0

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,

the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Grade 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and

principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the

Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Grade 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in which
borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that are considered

uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists under HKAS 39, which is based

on the following criteria generally considered by the Group:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to

debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

o Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis,
and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment
normally encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its
enforceability) and the anticipated receipts and liquidating collaterals

for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been identified, by using the available historical experience,

experienced judgement and statistical techniques.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements

—EEAE —ZTTN\EF
& Group 2009 2008
EHREEBBERANEEZEERBRERNT : Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
H & RERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 10,741,879 12,808,527
ERITHF R Placements with banks 4,282,749 1,656,950
BIEEERERNZES Trading securities 5,883,968 2,303,141
EENRAFEFEBEEZFHT AR Financial assets designated at fair value
MNEREE through profit or loss 4,509,393 4,258,874
MTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 594,391 1,122,486
EEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
A AE R Loans to individuals
—fEAR — Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972
—RiaaMN - Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215
—HAh — Others 3,283,575 3,802,967
TEER Loans to corporate entities
—BHEX — Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960
—RIBEK - Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416
—B5mE - Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482
— HAth - Others 8,931,945 11,846,061
RITERRERK Loans and advances to banks 150,000 179,226
Hith & B Other assets 2,606,802 3,283,472
BEEERK Investments in securities included in
FEWRIELR R 2 BHIRE the loans and receivables category 8,799,348 6,896,648
A & & 5 Available-for-sale securities
—BBES - debt securities 11,942,883 14,115,446
BEFHES Held-to-maturity securities 8,802,282 6,384,931
115,478,854 114,008,774
fHEEAGBERINER Credit risk exposures relating to
ZIEERRERT : off-balance sheet items are as follows:
MEEREEMEER Financial guarantees and other credit
HABME related contingent liabilities 1,179,965 1,075,576
EFURE R EAM Loan commitments and other credit
EEEE related commitments 36,885,225 36,535,397
38,065,190 37,610,973
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 153,544,044 151,619,747

ERIRAEER_ZTTNFR_ZFTN\F+
A=t—RE-EREBRN THWAETR - %A
ERAAFAZERmIEMERRANZE
SRR

A

o>
(\Q\y

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk

exposure to the Group at 31 December 2009 and 2008 without taking

into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Rl A fFH Z H fh s H b 15 B 1257 3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
Bl Z 5 15 e 50/ e e (%) credit enhancements (Continued)

AEEZEERBELSE T3 FritEE — 5T The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

& with reference to the following:

. BERRBREEFI%H D IBAENI TR R . 3% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top
GHER=BHERRN(ZZEZENEFE grade of the internal rating system (2008: 3%);

3%)

. HEFZHRADBE2BBERTIBEER @ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
ZBE portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. ER R B E 97 % 4 6 Hi K 21 7 . 97% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
WE(ZEZENE  95%) neither past due nor individually impaired (2008: 95%);

. RS RELEPERRBREERE . Loans and advances to customers that are either individually or
RAEBRBEBEBN1I0%(ZTEENEF collectively impaired constituted 1.0% (2008: 1.7%) of the total
1.7%)  HIRTERR=_ZTZTNFE+=A= loans and advances to customers. No advances to banks were
F+—BWEERIRE(CTEENE - #) - & individually impaired as at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil); and

o ERBFNHEMESREDEB2% (ZF e Close to 62% (2008: 63%) of the investments in debt securities
TN\F : 63%) ZDEAEERA - and other bills have at least A- credit rating.

3.2.5 Bk KBk 3.2.5 Loans and advances

ERRBZBMAT Loans and advances are summarised as follows:

“ZTNE ZTENF
2009 2008
EFEX RITEX BEFEX RITEK
)5&-E KRB R E#R EE
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and

advances to advancesto advancesto  advances to

£8 Group customers banks customers banks
g B N B BRI E Neither past due nor individually

impaired 55,383,407 150,000 57,882,997 179,226
wE AR ERRE Past due but not individually impaired 1,252,353 - 2,102,897 =
(EhINERES Individually impaired 529,399 - 1,013,179 -
g Gross 57,165,159 150,000 60,999,073 179,226
B REER Less: allowance for impairment (674,435) (155) (849,554) =
HE Net 56,490,724 149,845 60,149,519 179,226
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. B )R B A P () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R Hak (4) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
“EEAE —ZTT)N\F
EFEX BEPER
kB &E
2009 2008
Loans and Loans and
advances to advances to
£8 Group customers customers
HEERRBR Impaired loans and advances
—{ERRE GEF) - Individually impaired (Note (a)) 529,399 1,013,179
—fREREGE2) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 17,767 23,571
547,166 1,036,750
B Impairment allowances made
— (BRI & (EA) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (316,378) (550,909)
— e GE2) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (16,941) (22,367)
(333,319) (573,276)
213,847 463,474
REERMAFE Fair value of collaterals held* 215,514 463,556
REERERBIERFERK Impaired loans and advances as a % of
BHREE L ASL total loans and advances to customers 0.96% 1.70%

ERRATFEDREERDHEREFREERS
7 MEPREEETE °

ERREERIZEBVRERREERELET
— R EEREERENERERER ([
REMDWET - MBREFEHZERZ AT
ARBREEXNTZE - WL SFEHEE

AR E R R BRI S I & B ET
IR R 2 98 P R A A BB+ X
ZERRBR - HEN A2 A ERRES
MR DB AR ELEDH 0 -

A EERREEREERERERN T A=+
—ARZERREE -

*

Note:

(@)

()

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be reliably
estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date. The
collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a part
of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.



U 265 i A PR i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. BAE B B ()
3.2 fEEmEbE @)
3.2.5 Bk R #Hk ()

BRI 2GR 2 R (B 2 1 42 58 /2674,590,000/% 7T
(ZZZ)\£ : 849,554,000/87C) * & LHE B
HE R 2 %£1%316,378,000/8 T (Z T T )\ £ -
550,909,000/ 7T) & #iizhr & EEFEH ER 2
47 A ¥ {5 358,212,000 T (Z T T )\ F
298,645,000/ 7T) ° MfizF26R I EZ RE P EK
REF - RITERRBRKREALR B (EL 2 RE
EHEER o

HE_ZTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE ~A5E
ZERRBSRETETIR6.3% © BEARKEEAFT
SRBREMBEBRDETNRAERDIRE - A8
BEEBRMEFARNTARBENEEN G - BH
MMt EERE - RETRAFEEENRER
E®zHBEREERH - RBDEBEEEINEER
REBREAIEEN AEEREBERTEEERR
IHEERRZARAEESLIRT - BARELE
EERERRR BRI 2 EifmEEAt R K
RHEETZRitzd/ I dEs RRETER
FE2ZWA - BE - FEFD - BHZEFRMT
REFERAFZEERE  ROEERAMER
REETEERR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$674,590,000 (2008: HK$849,554,000), comprising an allowance of
HK$316,378,000 (2008 HK$550,909,000) for the individually impaired
loans and a collective allowance of HK$358,212,000 (2008:
HK$289,645,000) provided on loans assessed on a collective basis.
Further information on the impairment allowance maintained for each
of loans and advances to customers, loans and advances to banks and

other accounts is provided in Note 26.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s total loans and
advances decreased by 6.3%. When entering into new markets or
expanding business focus or allocation to different loan segments, the
Group undertakes proper risk assessment in accordance with credit
policies and procedures, review and approval of new risk limits, financial
and credit reviews with an emphasis on proper risk and return balance.
In order to minimise the potential increase of credit risk exposure, the
Group focused more on the business with large corporate enterprises
or banks with good credit rating, extending credit to a diversified pool
of small-and-medium sized enterprises approved with proper
consideration of their risk profiles and collateral pledged to the Group,
and granting secured and unsecured credit to retail customers based
on customers’ income, occupation, credit scoring, collateral to be

pledged, and credit limit allowed for different loan types.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R Hak (4) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) fmze0 B % (] 5L Rt (8,2 B3k I B4k (a)

impaired
ERRBRFTEEFEEREREDARE

ERIRET — 2 EAREBRA 2 AEDTF
MAGAEH A -

Loans and advances neither past due nor individually

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were
neither past due nor individually impaired is normally assessed

with reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

EFEHR

BREE ROER

BA(BEEF) i 3 Total loans R BHEE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

&8 ik ERE advances and

“EENE Group Credit RBEX Bt HHER RBEX Trade Hfh to  advances

+=ZA=+-H At 31 December 2009 cards Mortgages Others Term loans Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks
& Grades:

1-I% 1- pass 3,241,443 18,686,536 3,197,349 11,225,154 7,884,547 3,196,359 7,830,666 55,262,054 150,000

2-FAEE 2 - special mention - - - 6,304 18,410 4,807 26,218 55,829 -

3= REBFEHT 3 - sub-standard or below 14 2,971 - 6,000 19,123 3,084 34,332 65,524 =

Rt Total 3,241,457 18,689,507 3,197,349 11,237,458 7,922,080 3,204,340 7,891,216 55,383,407 150,000

EPEHR

BRAE  ROER

EA(ZEER) % Total loans  BE# 2%

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

&5 HiRS 258E advances and

“EE)\E Group Credit  RIBEH £t BHER REBER Trade £t to  advances

T-A=t-H At 31 December 2008 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others  customers  to banks
£ Grades:

1-I% 1-pass 3414884 18,184,315  3.681.508 10,108212 8213246 4,247,311 9,867,871 57,717,347 179,226

Pyl i 2 - special mention - - - 7,597 27,265 14,206 96,897 145,965 -

3-RAFT 3- sub-standard or below 130 3,899 - - 5,735 1,700 8,221 19,685 -

ait Total 3415014 18188214 3,681,508 10,115,809 8246246 4263217 9,972,989 57,882,997 179,226

ERESIATER 2 ZBERLCEBER
fin 2 MU EREFERRBE

values and recovery of collaterals.

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were

assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

EFERR
BA(REER) 1 ByaE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
BRAF E5RE and
&8 Group Credit  RBEF i AHER  RBER Trade Eft advances to
ZEZAETZHE=1-H At31 December 2009 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BHE-EALUT Past due up to 1 month 22,571 221,957 58,847 - 100,275 19,349 481,780 904,779
BH—EANLE=[ER  Pastdue more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 15,149 41,300 17,925 217,000 330 459 123,928 226,091
BE=EANLZERMEAR  Pastdue more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 7,110 1,719 4,586 - 13,732 - 38,756 60,903
BEAEANL Past due more than 6 months 3,173 450 1,039 - 16,026 - 39,892 60,580
At Total 48,003 265,426 82,397 217,000 130,363 19,808 679,356 1,252,353
BERARIATE Fair value of collaterals* - 265,165 3,04 27,000 128,438 12,849 640,441 1,076,934
EFEHR
AAZEER) ¥ BHER
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
iR UL and
£@ Group Credit  1RIBER £t BAHER BBER Trade Eft advances to
ZTR)\ETZA=1—H At31 December 2008 cards  Mortgages Others ~ Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
ol R E N Past due up to 1 month 39,412 267,641 84,567 - 173,333 89,694 943790 1,598,437
@H-EANEE=A Pastduemorethan 1 month
and up to 3 months 17,012 49,631 22,464 - 19,489 17,125 332,676 458,397
BH=EANEEREA  Pastduemore than 3 months
and up to 6 months 9,226 1,305 7,571 - 2,257 5,059 9,874 35,292
aMAEANE Past due more than 6 months 2,307 - 1,085 - - - 7,379 10,771
At Total 67,957 318,577 115,687 - 195,079 111,878 1,293,719 2,102,897
BEERRZATE Fair value of collaterals* - 317,972 3,919 - 193,049 6,983 1,081,955 1,603,878
* B R 2 AFEDBRBEERRTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market

RNEESH  MEPREEME °

VIR TER E R R B - 4 2 A F(E
DERBEEFEEREETBRAZMGES
AME - R - EAFEDNSEMS

ERXFBEERRMESN -

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of
collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for

the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value

is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar

assets.
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3.

3.2

S 265 T\ B A B (f80)
5 B2 B ()

3.2.5 Bk R #Hk ()

(A) EFREZ &FBEHEBH

REERFTAREFHFEHER Z RS RATZ
ERRER P E R &2 A529,399,0007%8
T (ZZZ)\4F : 1,013,179,000/8 7T) °

BRI E SRR B 2 A5 RN E TR
EER 2 BRAER oA T ERER ST
e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(c)

Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of

the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$529,399,000 (2008: HK$1,013,179,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans

and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

£9 Group BRER -0

HEER

A (BERF) % - fERIHE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
508 allowances

EHER  REER Trade it &5 - individual

Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment

ZEEAETZA=T-A  At31December 2009 Mortgages Others

{ERREE Individually impaired loans 17,635 3,830 53,185 35,992 57,384 361,378 529,399 316,378
FEERRZATE" Fair valug of collaterals* 16,558 700 10,307 33,672 11,851 142,426 215,514

HEER

AL (ZERF) % - Rl

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

BARE allowances

<8 Group RIRER A HHER RIREH Trade At Ait - indvidual

ZZS\ETZA=1—-H  At31 December 2008 Mortgages Others  Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

{ERREE R Individually impaired loans 19,425 5772 86,787 55,001 263,387 582717 1,013,179 550,909
REERm ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 15,463 762 16,178 35,888 63,210 332,055 463,556

* BER Rz A FEDREERRTELER
RAEEERR  MEPREEME -

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(T) BE=EAU Lz
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

“EZhF —ETN\F
2009 2008
BEARER WEIARER
B BmzE
Gross {H# %8 Gross ks
amount of BAL amount of Anth
overdue % of overdue % of
&M Group loans total loans total
KEEEFER Gross advances to customers
EE - s which have been overdue for:
—Z@ANAEEREA — six months or less but
over three months 102,346 0.18 203,430 0.33
- ~ARREE—F - one year or less but
over six months 185,079 0.32 143,438 0.23
——FE — over one year 267,141 0.47 131,592 0.22
554,566 0.97 478,460 0.78
(iy BEREEERRIBRZREERR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances against
R HmE overdue loans and advances
BRRBXK ERm HEER
REBEE EmfE ERR ERR HtfzE - BRI
Outstanding Current FIREDH REREDG EREBERE Impairment
amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances
£@ Group loans and value of  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
ZEEAETZAZT-H At 31 December 2009 advances  collateral  collateral  collateral  mitigation assessment
BHARERPERRBN Overdue loans and advances
to customers 554,566 350,867 256,960 297,606 - 282,455
LEVES il REER
KrEEHE RifE il il EfEE - AR
Outstanding Curent  FrAfEHH RetAEHH ERFEREE  Imparment
amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other  allowances
&5 Group loans and valueof  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
S e = At 31 December 2008 advances  collateral collateral ~collateral ~ mitigation  assessment
BHARERPERRBN Overdue loans and advances
to customers 478,460 202,978 141,593 336,867 - 305,217

FFERmI2ARAS  BERFEREY

o

properties.

Collateral held mainly represented cash, pledged deposits, and
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3. BAE B B ()
3.2 fEEmEbE @)
3.2.5 Bk R #Hk ()

(k) BEMHEN (EHEESRBH=1F
AU EREEBENZ )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

advances overdue for more than 3 months

{h# %58 G #B%E

—EZAFE BAL —ETN\F Ant

] Group 2009 % of total 2008 % of total

BEFEX Advances to customers 236,637 0.41 294,506 0.48
REREE Impairment allowances

3.2.6 W ETHEHE 4
RERZTA ZWEHEBRHOT :

24,242 18,504

3.2.6 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

ZEEAF ZZZNF

&5 Group 2009 2008

BEEE Nature of assets
I qEIE/ES Repossessed properties 49,109 53,075
Hh Others 8,240 26,090
57,349 79,165

WEHERRZATEREREE - BRKIBBAMN
BAEA B2 BERARERET -

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.
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(F) HAREESEE RN
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 Debt securities

(@)  Analysis by rating agency designation

—EENFFZA=T The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency

o

designation at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

AHHE R

FFEE BEMN rE RE ERK

A%EE AFEFE  Available- Held-to- EWRE
£F Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and &t
“EENFE+=A=1+—H At31December 2009 assets  atfairvalue investments investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - 1,255,784 621,338 - - 1,877,122
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 5,581,585 470,944 3,729,687 636,628 - 10,418,844
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ 80,793 1,538,306 5,217,334 3,543,850 1,953,883 12,334,166
B REERA- Rated but lower than A- 128,721 330,246 2,123,342 3,205,826 6,472,644 12,350,779
AEAR Unrated 3,354 194,392 251,182 1,325,978 372,821 2,147,727
A Total 5,794,453 3,789,672 11,942,883 8,802,282 8,799,348 39,128,638

At & el

HERE HEEM K& ®E ERR

B#EE ATFERE Available- Held-to- e R
& Group Trading Designated for-sale maturity Loans and Ch
“ZETN\F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2008 assets at fair value  investments  investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - 1,849,300 410,039 93,831 - 2,353,170
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,844,721 682,042 2,297,849 245,154 103,097 5,172,863
A-ZA+ A- to A+ 289,166 619,011 5,927,231 3,712,244 2,987,195 13,534,847
B RBERA- Rated but lower than A- 71,076 409,863 4,653,048 2,333,702 3,806,354 11,274,043
AEAR Unrated 4,279 48,630 827,279 - - 880,188
A Total 2,209,242 3,608,846 14,115,446 6,384,931 6,896,646 33,215,111
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. A R AE B ()
32 fEE B (%)
3.2.7 HB#EF )
(2) ‘BB

REZZNFYRERE D EAER R EWFIE
ZBHEE  RERARR_ZEZNFT A=+
—ARBHMIRMAT - RZEENET A=
+—B  WESBRERES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.7 Debt securities (Continued)

(b)  Analysis by overdue period

Investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial
recognition in 2009 were overdue at the time of recognition, and as at
31 December 2009 as shown below. There were no overdue debt

securities as at 31 December 2008.

—EThEF —ZTT)N\F
EJL] Group 2009 2008
RAEHERE D BAEER R Investments in securities classified as
[EWRIB 2 BHRE loans and receivables upon
initial recognition
pnkai Overdue for
- —EMNE — over one year 302,236 -

REERR D ABRREWHIBZ BHFEE
BESTEIRERR FaiE Rk 2 BEEN
BRI KRIER o ZEFFHILE R IIAFEREF KR
—ETAF+ A=+ —BZEEEAHK
302,236,000/ 7t (K1 7%26) °

RZZZTNAFE+—A=+—8 ' ERREZES
B2 #EEE/102,758,000/8 7T o AEE B EE
HIESE RS - WE R E17,941,00058 TR
BXi - BRFBIEHNH 27 -

The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition was recognised in the statement of
financial position at a value after taking into account the above overdue
status. The total carrying value as at 31 December 2009 was
HK$302,236,000 (Note 26).

The total gross amount of individually impaired debt securities as at 31
December 2009 was HK$102,758,000. No collateral is held by the
Group, and impairment charge amounting to HK$17,941,000 had been
provided against the impaired debt securities. Please refer to Note 27

for further details.
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S 5 e o 4 B ()

5 B2 B ()

FH A 1 60 I e 2 < 7 2 D B
R

(FF) =13
BEPFERZBESTHIRECZEERARE
Bz ZGHFREMSIE - —RME -

EERNERIERERGEHFIRZE
e - B wERE -

TRAXFERERRRHEDN - —TF
NEMES 2 43 E B i ERZ R
REBITE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area. The position presented for 2008 has been
restated to incorporate the effect of transfer of risk under

guarantee arrangements described above.

—EEAE  CTTF
+=HA=+—-H t=—A=+—H
As at As at

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

BEFEERMGE
-&E
- E
_\‘F@Fﬂ
- Hift

R_BENFR_FENFT_A=1+—
H EEERREBRZZEZANEERE
BENAHAREEERREBETEBES ZN
TEIBEETERT °

Gross advances to customers

— Hong Kong 48,779,171 52,094,469
— China 1,479,379 1,229,503
— Macau 6,151,486 6,578,169
— Others 755,123 1,096,932

57,165,159 60,999,073

In relation to the Group’s impaired advances and overdue
advances, over 90% of the outstanding balance as at 31
December 2009 and 2008 were classified under Hong Kong after

taking into account the effect of transfer of risk.
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3.2

3.2.8

S 255 i A L (o)

i BB (20

P78 1 I < 7 2 I B A o
L

(F) &1 (%)

TERRAAEEZ RITHBARABBERK

B BHRERERTHEBRANTRZ
B R T

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(Continued)

(@)  Geographical sectors (Continued)

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
banking subsidiaries of the Group in relation to loans and
advances, investments in securities, and balances and

placements with banks.

BITRHEM
SRS
Banks NEHRE
“EENE and other Public
+=A=+-H As at 31 Dec 2009 financial sector Hith st
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR  TEERBEAR  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,965 98 8,120 18,183
EEREE North and South America 552 = 3,116 3,668
BUM Europe 13,870 - 2,910 16,780
24,387 98 14,146 38,631
RIT R E M
TRVEAE
Banks NEHE
—EEN\F and other Public
+=-A=+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 financial sector Hit KSRy
BEET In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR - TEERBHEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,415 240 9,761 19,416
tERmEE North and South America 602 - 3,051 3,653
BUM Europe 13,628 - 2,761 16,389
23,645 240 18,578 39,458

LB RERENREBRREERNER
& - ARIEX 5 BT 00 B A2 b 1 4% B& F2 %40
WRZEHFRAMENER - —RMF
ERSGHFNEERERHETNRBRN S —
HER  RBETERE —HERITNEIND
17 MEABEERTRAMNER - 1 &
RERH -—BEREEES —BXR - EHH
BEABRNEBRERBITR10%IIA LK
Mol BFE o

The above information of cross-border claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk
lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer
of risk from one country to another is recognised if the claims
against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a
different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in a different country. Only
regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border

claims are disclosed.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

“EENE —EENF
&6 Group 2009 2008
ERAFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 611,218 448,282
—MEKRE — Property investment 11,209,001 10,102,405
-~ SR — Financial concerns 333,243 373,243
e - Stockbrokers 52,265 9,707
—ftEETERE - Wholesale and retail trade 1,001,216 1,187,833
— % - Manufacturing 657,570 885,724
— B BRI RE - Transport and transport equipment 3,207,328 4,241,249
— REE B - Recreational activities 157,565 23,507
— BB — Information technology 902 418
— HAth - Others 1,847,970 2,140,815
19,078,278 19,413,183
& A Individuals
-BEIEEBHEME - - Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLA2EEE 2 Home Ownership Scheme, Private
RIMEBEHEE] Sector Participation Scheme
BFER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,398,373 1,625,129
- BEEHMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,462,174 10,715,925
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,173,620 3,371,802
— HAth - Others 6,510,864 6,513,226
21,545,031 22,226,082
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 40,623,309 41,639,265
BHME Trade finance 3,136,776 4,457,618
EREBIMEARNER GE) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note) 13,405,074 14,902,190
57,165,159 60,999,073

it EEBMEANEREERTEERR
BEBBAIMERZ TR

Note: Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to

customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside

Hong Kong.
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3. BAE B B ()
3.3 TG E R

mIZRKR T s BT i5 R R RERE(L W5 ZE
BE BEMEERBRIFRAZEBEERAR

BERXHZTERBROEESEE TREREER
MERBEZERAZEZRRRENESNE
2 - E RIS Em R RREBREARNRE © %
FREEABRBTEEDHE LR - R
BMERMEREBBECERE - MBS EMEHER
BROEERETEFAKTEAR - SEERE
Z B ETE N BB T — (B 2 B e B IR S 4R
HIEBFT - BB LERERE FHREE - ABR
A BERREEZSRRIIEEABITH AR
PREE B8 I {18 ) T 355 ol e 1 PR fhII FE AT 2 27K S 1A o
ERAFEREBERGAEHERRZEGZE
BEREERTHREEEE MLE -

SERBRBRAREZNERBEREFEESE
MEmZEL - BRERABEBHMA - SEBAR
SERBRFATENBRORE - RRAELE
BRALHER - AEEZ AMEXE SEITED
BB NERZ - AERIHES - AREER
BE R DN K fth 7 B B L 3 A TR 05 R B ISR B A2
o

RITRITER DA (TRFRIT]) 2 M B R R)EPT
BERBITARAR (DRFIEERTT]) RAFRTT
(FE) BRAR ([RFRTT (FE) D REBEE—F
BERBEMBR RAEAFRITRE 2 AT HE
BRBAMITERNTZHERS - KFTRITZE
RETE M EEMER R EEREEFIHERTR
RF|IT(PE) MELEZMHER -

AEEREHEEERIRITR 2 mSRARERT
Flz B ERBBERKLERF °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, Executive
Committee (“EXCO”), Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCQ”), and Treasury Risk Committee (“TRC”). Risk limits are set by
products and by different risk types. Limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. Risk
Management and Control Department (‘RMCD?”) in Group Risk Division,
as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific action to ensure the overall and the individual
market risks are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TRC or by EXCO.

The launch of every new product is governed by the New Product
Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy in which the
relevant business units, supporting functions and Group Risk Division
review the critical requirements, risk assessment and resources plan.
The Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent
review and testing to ensure compliance with the market risk policies

and procedures by Treasury, RMCD and other relevant units.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”) which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the overall market risk limits set by DSB. RMCD
of DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operation of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures

in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.
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REBRE— RZFIST TSR RS
BE 2 Bk - BATMSRARREZX
TEFHFHEE B RGAS 25 R
AEBATAFEK - EESHAEE
ARz m5RBRBERERE I
HEBRRA S A EE -

Mz E R EBET — A BELER
BEASRAMSTNEEEAEER
Ko ERPASEAGBRZHZAH
B ERARREBERGKFE  5—H
RREHZEREHRE  ARBEZERE
IKF799% o itk 77 B RV e AT AR
X BRBXARELLmERARBEZ
EFRTEAARN - M5 E R BERE KRR
REF R HEEHERTER - MHRER
BETMRESE ZEEME  mHAE
BEZAEE—E_BRE+XEH
(R —F) ZHEBELKE - &
SERAZ2HUETSRBRBEL B
BREMA L2 BEREEBERAE
Bt HBEZRENRENFE
I 7E BB B IR AS R ORISUE A &t
ETSRARBELRERZE AR
ZHMIE °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and

derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

As part of the management of market risk, the Group undertakes
various hedging strategies. The Group enters into interest rate
swaps to match the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-
rate long-term debt securities. The major measurement
techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined

below.
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a “value at risk” methodology (“VaR”) to
its trading portfolio to estimate the market risk positions
held and the maximum losses expected, based on a
number of assumptions for various changes in market
conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that
are acceptable for the Group which are monitored on a daily

basis by Group Risk Division.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on
the current portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses the “maximum” amount the Group might lose,
but only to a certain level of confidence which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a
certain “holding period” until positions can be closed. It is
also based on the current mark-to-market value of the
positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of the
market risk factors over a period of 250 days (or over one
year). The Group applies these historical correlation and
volatilities in rates, prices, indices, etc. directly to its current
positions using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to
test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors

used in the VaR calculation.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

@
(i)

(ii)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

Value at risk (Continued)

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside
of these limits in the event of more significant market

movements.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board annually for all trading portfolio operations
and allocated to business units. Actual exposures against
limits, together with DSB’s VaR, is reviewed daily by Group
Risk Division. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
activities during the year was HK$5,727,000 (2008:
HK$5,148,000).

The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by
back-testing the VaR results for trading books. All back-
testing exceptions are investigated, and all back-testing
results are reported to senior management. The results of
the back-testing stress tests are reviewed and considered
by senior management when validating and reviewing the
VaR model.

Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by Group Risk Division include: risk factor
stress testing, where stress movements are applied to each
risk category; and ad hoc stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or

regions.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior
management in each business unit and by the Board of
Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business and

typically uses scenario analysis.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

83}

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BE-ZEAF+=A=t-H HE-ZZ\E+-A=1—8H
E+=f8A IE+=fEA
12 months to 31 Dec 2009 12 months to 31 Dec 2008

¥ BE BI& ¥ 4] 54
£8 Group Average High Low Average High Low
INE LB Foreign exchange risk 2,040 6,375 620 2,769 5,353 670
Gilpde Interest rate risk 3,687 7,325 1,715 3,858 7,714 1,727
EERR Credit risk - - - 260 1,117 -
Rk Al risks 5,727 9,800 2,897 5,148 9,181 2,700

3.3.2 JF H $BRATHR Z 1l 53 ) B

AREBZRITHRF - MEAREZRERN

FRBEMEESF TR

(FA) MR ERETZ 5%

EEEe THRZEeRMERREZES
RIYZEARERERREERS  RETH
R ERBTHMER  EUHRREERE
ﬂ$‘$l$§ﬁﬁ§¢ﬁﬁﬁﬁ\\[ﬂ B~ FERE,

ErnBEERRENREEZER - &
‘ilmﬁﬁkﬁﬁ’éﬁﬁﬁi‘%?ﬂ&ﬁ\\? AT
ZHAEBEMEENREEEERTE R —
RGBT BE 2 BURE D & E
NS LHERETHEERAGER
BRFERARNEERITRA 2 T5HEE

N 5 [ 3R B I B R R T 35 R e BUEDA PART
ERERBITRP ZTHERR

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board, EXCO and TRC, various management action
triggers (“MATs”) are established to provide early alert to
management on the different levels of exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
and liquidity risk. Sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-
balance sheet positions, liquidity drift under institution-specific
and general market crisis scenarios are regularly performed to
gauge and forecast the market risk inherent in the Group’s

banking book portfolios against these MATs.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and

control the market risk of the banking book.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(®)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

The following descriptions on sensitivity analysis relate to DSB
and BCM.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, MOP and RMB) as foreign exchange
positions and foreign currency balances arising from
customer transactions are normally matched against other
customer transactions or transactions with the market.
Foreign exchange exposure in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions,
both by individual currency and in aggregate, are managed
by the Treasury of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, is normally
matched using foreign exchange forward contracts to

reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2009, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against US$ with all other variable held constant,
the profit after taxation for the year and equity would have
been HK$20,900,000 higher (2008: HK$9,193,000 higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain on translation
of US$ denominated financial assets compensated by
foreign exchange losses on translation of US$ denominated

financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against US$ with all other variables held constant, profit
after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$20,900,000 lower (2008: HK$9,193,000 lower).
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Wi EBE () 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 I H SRATHR Z i B3 b B (48) 3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
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(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins and net interest
income may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements arise.
The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored
daily by RMCD.

At 31 December 2009, if HK$ market interest rates had been
200 basis points higher and US$ market interest rates had
been 200 basis points higher with other variables held
constant, profit after tax over the next 12 months and
economic value would have been HK$35 million lower
(2008: HK$91 million lower) and HK$189 million lower
(2008: HK$159 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange and interest rate risk are on the
same basis for both 2009 and 2008.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the
Group’s investments in debt securities are also exposed to other
price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors including
liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by currency.

&8 Group BT Y B 2ty &t
ZEEAFTZA=1—H As at 31 December 2009 HKD UsD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
B & RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 4,849,320 2,729,113 247,804 2,915,642 10,741,879
ERIT-Z2T=AR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months 1,409,988 2,580,842 - 291,919 4,282,749
RIEEERENES Trading securities 5,574,457 281,960 - 217,551 5,883,968
RENATETEAAES Financial assets designated

SABRNEREE at fair value through profit o loss 261,856 4,241,352 - 6,185 4,509,393
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 346,273 247,247 - 871 594,391
FBEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 51,710,083 9,508,621 1,953,201 4,874,175 68,046,080
At EE S Available-for-sale securities 5,648,141 5,208,330 636 2,043,917 12,901,024
2 EES Held-to-maturity securities 41,969 5,707,953 1,100,627 1,951,733 8,802,282
SREEA Total financial assets 69,842,087 30,505,418 3,302,268 12,111,993 115,761,766
8% Liabilities
BOER Deposits from banks 45,053 1,195,287 63,476 131,320 1,435,136
fTEERMT A Derivative financial instruments 168,935 811,898 - 237,392 1,218,225
REEEERENAE Trading liabilities 2,068,300 - - - 2,068,300
EEAATEFEREES Deposits from customers designated

FABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss = = = - -
LYSVEE Deposits from customers 55,396,407 17,465,807 4,480,648 11,027,119 88,370,071
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,612,015 - 100,066 347,929 2,060,010
BETHNEEES Issued debt securities = - - - -
REER Subordinated notes - 4,602,235 - - 4,602,235
HifR B RER Other accounts and accruals 2,191,719 1,034,141 404,461 183,815 3,814,136
SREeELSH Total financial liabilities 61,482,519 25,109,368 5,048,651 11,927,575 103,568,113
EEEERLEBRRE Net on-balance sheet positions 8,359,568 5,306,050  (1,746,383) 184,418 12,193,653
BERBRIMSRERFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions*  (1,484,340) 841,816 - 702,229 59,705
EERE Credit commitments 36,265,552 719,456 829,480 250,702 38,065,190
* BEABRIINGABRFHEEZIERNREEEIN *  Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional amounts

EZFER I ESRITET RHZFFHE -

of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are principally used

to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

£B Group BT e ik Hit A%
“EEN\E+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2008 HKD UsD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re REBTNERS Cash and balances with banks 3,832,678 5,611,154 250,412 3,114,283 12,808,527
ERIT-Z2TZAR Placements with banks maturing

FH0NER between one and twelve months 84,500 1,267,193 = 305,257 1,656,950
FIFEERENES Trading securities 1,839,662 418,783 - 44,696 2,303,141
RENATEGEAEE Financial assets designated

TAERNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 538,073 3,712,673 = 8,128 4,258,874
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 412,774 701,727 = 7,985 1,122,486
FBEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 55,118,393 9,314,225 1,844,626 4231619 70,508,863
AREEES Available-for-sale securities 1,826,308 10,762,226 2,573 2,133,088 14,724,195
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 457,172 3,111,682 1,135,177 1,680,900 6,384,931
SREEAR Total financial assets 64,109,560 34,899,663 3,232,788  11,525956 113,767,967
a8 Liabilities
BAER Deposits from banks 102,864 2,165,574 65,620 109,536 2,443,594
THESRIA Derivative financial instruments 458,596 1,648,026 - 161,533 2,268,155
BEEERBRNAR Trading liabilities 1,791,419 = = = 1,791,419
EEAATEFEREES Deposits from customers designated

FABRNEFER at fair value through profit or loss 462,618 8,447 = = 471,065
REEH Deposits from customers 53,580,739 13,884,915 4,084,719 8,396,705 79,947,078
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,553,427 329,117 223,262 549,179 4,654,985
BRETNEEES Issued debt securities 459,654 2,343,986 = = 2,803,640
kERK Subordinated notes = 5,268,716 = = 5,268,716
Hinfk B kiase Other accounts and accruals 1,787,278 1,606,376 419,891 260,721 4,074,266
SHEERS Total financial liabilities 62,196,595 27,255,157 4,793,492 9,477,674 103,722,918
BEARRLFEEE Net on-balance sheet positions 1,912,965 7644506  (1,560,704)  2,048282 10,045,049
BERBRRINGRREFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 4,398,489  (2,300,167) 676 (1,748,609 350,389
EEEE Credit commitments 36,179,150 588,215 536,842 380,313 37,684,520
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.

Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at

carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

=EAUL —-EHE
2-f ZLF
ZEASUT Over Over  FENE T8

8 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over Non-Interest &R
“EEAEt-A=t-H At 31 December 2009 orless  tolyear to5years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 8,708,704 - - - 2033175 10,741,879
ERT-ETZHEAA Placements with banks maturing

Fill:CopcE | between one and twelve months 2,668,896 1,613,853 = = - 4,282,749
KEEERENES Trading securities 2,503,117 2,798,950 492,188 198 89,515 5,883,968

EENLTEGFEREED Financial assets designated

STABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 52,329 156,014 1,001,598 2,579,730 719,722 4,509,393
TESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 594,301 594,391
RBERREMEE Advances and other accounts 51,912,643 2,538,717  52367,266  5219,124 3,008,330 68,046,080

e mﬁ Available-for-sale securities 4,828,586 2,396,649 1,763,257 2,913,481 999,051 12,901,024
REIEHE Held-to-maturity securities 4,958,272 820,569 1,734,326 966,309 322,806 8,802,282
SHEER Total financial assets 75,632,547 10,324,752 10,358,635 11,678,842 7,766,990 115,761,766
af Liabilities
ROTER Deposits from banks 1,104,802 81,366 - - 248,968 1,435,136
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,218,225 1,218,225
BEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,932,085 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
BENATEHEEAZS Deposits from customers designated

STABRNEPEN at fair value through profit or loss - = = = = =
EPER Deposits from customers 73,301,519 11,354,812 1,094,652 - 2,619,088 88,370,071
BRIMERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,516,782 214,714 328,514 - - 2,060,010
BREINERES Issued debt securities = = - - - -
{BEER Subordinated notes 2,326,470 - 1,145786 1,129,979 - 4,602,235
HiRE RBR Other accounts and accruals 313,001 - - - 3501,135 3,814,136
tREFEAH Total financial liabilities 80,494,659 11,755,822 2,600,237 1,129,979 7,587,416 103,568,113
FISBREEAT (REHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (4,862,112)  (1,431,070) 7,758,398 10,548,863
FEfETREGHZFE Effect of interest rate derivative contacts 4,526,950 3,256,917 1,400,523 (9,222,477
FEQBEES (EHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)*  (335,162) 1,825,847 9,158,921 1,326,386
* KA EHBREE NIREEBBRRAEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

BENRE %rﬁm o JETHEMBGUREEEF A

AR =R [ fex

o

EITHFIRITETES LM

on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap

takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered

into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. BAE B B () 3.
3.3 i EBE ()
3.3.4 F @ Fi (#)

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

ZEANE —Ep\F
B-F ERfE
=EAEUT Over Over RENE &8
£8 Group 3months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-Interest ChH
ZEEN\ETZA=1-H At 31 December 2008 or less tolyear  to5years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERERTNHER Cash and balances with banks 10,769,197 = - - 2039330 12808527
ERT-ET=EAM Placements with banks maturing
| HER between one and twelve months 1,555,992 100,958 = = - 1,656,950
BEEERENES Trading securities 698,242 860,185 578,867 71,948 93899 2,303,141
BENATEFEEAES Financial assets designated
TARRRESREE at fair value through profit or loss 558,731 15,671 418633 2615812 650,027 4,258,874
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,122,486 1,122,486
EREHREMER Advances and other accounts 53045983 3825480 5246266 4,940,166 3450968 70,508,863
HHERS Available-for-sale securities 1844418 4194637 2744427 5291076 649,637 14,724,195
S23HES Held-to-maturity securities 4,896,998 230,171 363,305 894,457 - 6,384,931
SRAEAH Total financial assets 73369561 9,227,102 9351498 13813459 8,006,347 113,767,967
ff Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 848,030 1,522,167 - - 73397 2443504
fTEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2268155 2,268,155
FEEERENAR Trading liabilities 944,493 802,038 44714 174 - 1,791,419
RENATEFEEALY Deposits from customers designated
STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 428,767 42,298 - - - 471,085
EPEH Deposits from customers 70,847,888 5805222 1,551,362 - 1742606 79,947,078
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 2,666,445 1,439,314 549,026 - - 4654985
BETNGERES Issued debt securities 1,162,500 1,641,140 - - - 2803640
kERK Subordinated notes 2,325,000 - 1040438 1,903,278 - 5268716
AR RER Other accounts and accruals 313,000 50,233 - - 371,033 4074266
eRaka Total financial liabilties 79,536,123 11302412 3185740 1903452 7,795,191 103,722,918
HEgREESH (REAE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (6,166,562)  (2,075310) 6,165,758 11,910,007
METETAGHZ FE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4526950 3256917 1400523  (9,222,477)
MegREEA (LH%)" Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (1639,612) 1,181,607 7,566,281 2,687,530
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil

commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis to ensure that a
sufficiently high liquidity ratio relative to the statutory minimum is
maintained throughout the year. The average liquidity ratio of the
banking subsidiaries within the Group during the period was well above

the 25% minimum ratio set by the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
regularly reviews the Group’s current loan and deposit mix and changes,
funding requirements and projections, and monitors the liquidity ratio
and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits on
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding

requirements.

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance of
certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen the
funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net

lender to the interbank market.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and
projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are
key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial

liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

ALCO also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and
type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities
and the impact of contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit

and guarantees.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TEROMAEERBERAREEMENEIHAK

RPAIEE A (WER) 2 FErEES

BZEER

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the

BE reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable
the earlier callable date.
-@ANL =AML —EHE
DHEE B=@RHNT E-E E3ik:3
Repayable —fEEZAT 3 months or Over Over BERE

£8 Group on Upto lesshutover 3 months 1 year Over REHAH fit
ZEEAETZAZT-H  At31December 2009 demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  to5years Syears  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Be RERTNES Cash and balances with banks 2801468 7,888,470 51,941 - - - - 10,741,879
ERA-ET-fRR Placement with banks maturing

HBOER between one and twelve months - - 2066889 1,613,853 = = - 420749
FEEERRNES Trading securities - 199,995 2,265,605 2,806,543 492,174 30,136 89,515 5,883,968
AEUATEFEAEEE  Financial assets designated

TABRNERAE at fair value through profit or loss - 44,575 1,154 156,014 985,665 2,595,664 719,721 4,509,393
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 197,480 30,938 52,117 195,911 117,285 - 594,391
EEEAREMEE Advances and other accounts 6,166,395 4,746,153 3,953,488 7,006,823 20,513,549 24,967,452 692,220 68,046,080
THEEES Available-for-sale securities - 688,512 3,219,193 2,650,169 2,370,620 2,913,479 999,051 12,901,024
FRIBES Held-to-maturity securities - 505,136 371,352 1,251,462 4205299 2,469,033 - 8802282
BENTRE Investments in associates - - - - - - 1200257 1,200,257
RREHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 60,791 60,791
g Goodwill - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
EWEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 139,030 139,030
NEREMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 242653 2,426,531
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 568,659 568,659
HSHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 65,283 - - - 65,283
ERHEBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 78,178 - - 78,178
RESREBL Value of in-force long-term life

ENREEE assurance business - - - - - - 1205668 1,225,668
BEAT Total Assets 8,967,863 14270321 12,629,167 15,602,924 28,841,396 33,093,049 9,171,435 122,576,155
8f Liabilities
FER Deposits from banks 109,127 349,816 9,561 733,985 232,647 - - 1435136
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 71,618 31,254 35,719 163,325 910,309 - 1218225
BIEEERRNER Trading liabilities - 578,988 1,353,097 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
EENATE2AAR Deposits from customers designated

TABRNEPEH at fair value through proft or loss - - - - = = = =
EPEH Deposits from customers 26,496,323  27,264074 22104786 11410240 1,004,648 - - 88,370,011
ERINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 184,619 442,013 366,734 1,066,444 - - 2,060,010
BEANERES Issued debt securities - - - - - - = =
) Subordinated notes - - - 1163235 2300022 1,129,078 - 4602235
EftiR R RRAR Other accounts and accruals 1,569,932 449,677 382,388 483,943 346,068 - 581,628 3,814,136
HEnEaR Current income tax liabilities - - - 19,109 - - - 19,019
EEREAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 311 15,055 - - 15,366
HRERRANREREALZ  Liabilties to policyholders under

8% long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 4794792 4794792
Bf&AT Total Liabilities 28,175,382 28,904,792 24,323,799 14,318,206 5,258,494 2,040,287 5,376,420 108,397,380
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (19,207,519)  (14,634,471)  (11,694,632) 1,284,718 23,582,902 31,052,762 3,795,015 14,178,775
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

—BANE  ZEANME
B=EAFNAT i
DEEE  —BAIUT  3monthsor Over —FHULERF
£H Group Repayable Upto  less but over 3months  Over 1 year RENE  EHEHEY Aif
“Z5\Ft-A=1-H At 31 December 2008 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Indefinite Total
2E Assets
ReRESTHES Cash and balances with banks 2562928 10,245,599 - - - - - 12808527
ERI-ET2EAR Placement with banks maturing
Bl between one and twelve months - - 1,555,992 100,958 - - - 1,656,950
REERRBNES Trading securties - - 645,758 860,183 569,821 133,480 93899 2303141
RENATE2AAED Financial assets designated
TABRNEHAE at fair value through profit or loss - 497,580 30677 15,671 1768 2,668,291 650027 4258874
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 240,968 24,049 107,842 328,649 420,978 - 1,122,486
EEERRAMER Advances and other accounts 6,962,811 5,896,425 5,147,063 6,066,385 20,106,979 24,871,375 657,825 70,508,863
eSS Available-for-sale securities - 27,153 245,211 4,476,954 3,866,599 5,458,641 649,637 14,724,195
REHEES Held-to-maturty securities - 531,323 507,980 46327 2263967 2,335,334 - 638493
BENIRE Investments in associates - - - - - - 1,132,461 1,132,461
AREGIERRE Investments in jointly controlled entiies - - - - - - 59973 50973
g Goodwil - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 158,352 158,352
EREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,069,694 2,069,694
REns Investment properties - - - - - - 459,304 459,304
MEHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 144177 - - = 144,177
BRERBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 162,804 - - 162,804
RESREBZERREEE  Value of inforce long-term lfe
assurance business - - - - - - 1,274,452 1,274,452
HERH Total Assets 9505739 17,430,048 8165730 13318497 27686447 35,888,099 8,156,616 120,180,176
A Liabilties
RAER Deposits from banks 53,231 774,143 214,297 1,169,417 232,500 - - 2,443,594
EERIE Derivative financial instruments - 276,423 21,115 69,461 338,952 1,562,204 - 2,268,155
REEERENAE Trading liabilties - 944,493 - 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
EENATEEELR Deposits from customers designated
FABENEFER at fair value through profit or loss - 418,831 9935 42,299 - - - 471,065
RFEH Deposits from customers 17960845 31711233 23,588,062 5,864,973 821,975 - - 19,947,078
BENENE Certficates of deposit issued - 2507 961000 2444829 1,246,649 - - 4654985
BEHREES Issued debt securities - - - 2803640 - - - 2803640
St fkERH Subordinated notes - - - - 335438 1,003278 - 5268716
o HHEE RER Other accounts and accruals 1,483,301 482,584 574,742 564,159 334,474 - 635,006 4,074,266
E ) PAfEE R Current income tax liabiltes - - - 15,440 - - - 15,440
5= EREREEE Deferred income tax liabiiies - - - 836 9,074 - - 9910
HRERBANREREAZ  Liablties to policyholders under
o~ af long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 4,494 456 4,494 456
a
ﬁ 85 Total Liabilties 10407383 34510214 25369141 13777092 6393776 3465656 5120462 108242724
i)
Lyl;u FngtEE Net liquidity gap (0971,644)  (17,171,166) (17,208,411 (458595 21,0026711 32,402,443 3027154 11,087,452
A
pu
ﬂ
ﬂ?
S
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. EEEMAETE - GREORBAH -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of
the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also
increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options; and

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, and other interest rate
contracts.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;
Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps;

° Equity derivatives: equity options; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. B )R B A P () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
34 WMEBIE S m B () 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 A A FIH H Z A M5B B & () 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)
—-EAZUT -EAUE Z=@EAUL -5 L RENE
8 Group Upto 2= Zt=fif ZLE Over Bt
“EEAEt-A=t-H As at 31 December 2009 1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5years Total
FTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
RE Liabilties
ROFER Deposits from banks 716,212 22,229 742,800 235,188 - 1,716,429
EENATEFZAE Deposits from customers designated
BT ABSNEFREN at fair value through profit or loss - = = = = =
BPEH Deposits from customers 54,234,903 22,323,747 11,484,862 1,122,343 - 89,165,855
KEEERENER Trading liabilities 579,000 1,358,358 105,165 31,355 - 2,073,878
BR{IMEHE Certificates of deposit issued 191,705 448,145 393,790 1,079,481 - 2,113,121
BRANEEES Issued debt securities = o - - - -
RERK Subordinated notes - 87,238  1,255298 2,854,368 1,797,209 5,994,113
HRARBANRERAAZAR Liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 31,414 63,584 296,514 2,703,001 16,384,070 19,478,673
gk Other liabilities 2,725,047 199,926 372,604 331,512 8211 3,637,300
REEH Total liabilities
(BHZIHR) (contractual maturity dates) 58,478,281 24,503,227 14,651,033 8,357,338 18,189,490 124,179,369
TETERSR Derivative cash flow
REREREEITEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 8,549 1,053 (5,462) 176,731 36,742 217,613
REEEE 7 TEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
i Total outflow 42,489,472 | 16,358,494 | | 16,695,729 | | 2,736,267 | | 1,294,473 | | 79,574,435
MABE Total inflow (42,599,101) ((16,336,126)| |(16,423,678) | (1,394,125) (572,498)| |(77,325,528)
(109,629) 22,368 272,051 1,342,142 721,975 2,248,907
—fEASUT —EANE ZEANE —&E)E REN £
£8 Group Upto  Z2=f@R ZET+=fA ZRfF Over Bit
“EEN\FTZA=T-H As at 31 December 2008 imonth  1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5 years Total
FTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
ABf Liabilities
ROFH Deposits from banks 1,432,753 432,081 1,228,656 258,649 - 3,352,139
BENATEHEAE Deposits from customers designated
BHFABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 425,412 - - - - 425412
LISHEE Deposits from customers 49,890,656 24,242,827 5,970,309 885,868 - 80,989,660
BIERERGNER Trading liabilities 1,725,500 138 22,306 44,839 104 1,792,887
BEANGTRE Certificates of deposit issued 220,981 805,321 2,607,345 1243026 - 4876673
BRETNEBES Issued debt securities - 16,673 2,854,482 - - 2,871,155
{EEER Subordinated notes - 100,742 136,304 3,741,817 1894341  5873,204
HRARBENRERBAZAR Liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 49,695 96,934 414,020 2,513,816 14,069,320 17,143,785
AR fE Other liabilities 1,823,826 246,401 374,360 32,174 - 2,476,761
BEEE Total liabilities
(AN3IER) (contractual maturity dates) 55,568,823 25,941,117 13,607,872 8,720,189 25,963,765 119,801,766
TETERER Derivative cash flow
REFEEE 2 fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 800 20,097 29,751 69,426 40,049 160,123
REEEETEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
ML Total outflow 35,096,876 | | 15,457,315 | | 10,922,997 | | 4,044,704 | | 1,973,837 | | 67,495,729
MABE Total inflow (35,075,157)| |(15,437,453)| |(10,842,954) | (3,684,250)| | (1,605,545)| |(66,645,359)
21,719 19,862 80,043 360,454 368,292 850,370
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in the
course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to banks;
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within
one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury bills
have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and

accessing additional funding sources such as asset-backed markets.

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B KA B ()
3.4  WHE S EER (8)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 HERMFEINEH (#) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
—F LR —F L% HFENE
£5 Group No later ERE Over B
—EEAE+=ZBA=+—H At 31 December 2009 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURSE Loan commitments 36,065,726 757,991 - 36,823,717
IR A RE MRS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
B3 - Acceptances 7,434 - - 7,434
-ERRERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 507,094 58,200 83,572 648,866
- REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 523,665 - - 523,665
BEHIFER Forward forward deposits 61,508 - - 61,508
IS TR AR Operating lease commitments 86,430 115,061 33,392 234,883
B Capital commitments 92,920 - - 92,920
&t Total 37,344,777 931,252 116,964 38,792,993
—EHUR —EH#% HENE
£5 Group No later ERE Over B
—EENE+=ZB=+—H At 31 December 2008 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B U Loan commitments 35,615,524 919,873 - 36,535,397
BIR A RE MRS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- H - Acceptances 9,970 = = 9,970
-ERRERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 554,939 45,808 110,571 711,318
- RERBEEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 354,288 - - 354,288
EEIFR Forward forward deposits 73,547 = = 73,547
ST K I Operating lease commitments 73,112 49,419 24,300 146,831
B Capital commitments 99,587 - - 99,587
= Total 36,780,967 1,015,100 134,871 37,930,938
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

85

Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@)  Determination of fair value

For financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets, the
determination of fair value is based on quoted market prices,
dealer price quotations or broker quotes from Bloomberg and
Reuters. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted

market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the
above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being
inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a
wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in bid-offer spread

or there are few recent transactions.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. In
these techniques, fair values are estimated from observable data
in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to
estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other
valuation techniques using inputs (for example LIBOR yield curve,
FX rates, volatilities, comparable credit spreads, and counterparty

spreads) existing at the end of the reporting period.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models including
present value techniques and option pricing models for
determining the fair values of non-standardised financial
instruments of lower complexity such as options or interest rate
and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into
models are generally market-observable. The fair value of
interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward exchange
rates. Structured interest rate derivatives are measured using
appropriate option pricing models, for example, the Black-

Derman-Toy model.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

85

Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@) Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit risk
spreads in determining the current value for its derivative liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a
gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the

liabilities has increased.

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of
a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Group holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model
risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. Based on the
established fair value model governance policies of the Group,
and the related controls and procedures applied, management
believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and
appropriate to fairly state the values of financial instruments
carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. Price
data and parameters used in the measurement procedures
applied are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary,

particularly in view of the current market developments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

85

Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on

whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable

or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained

from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the

Group’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have

created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchange (for
example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange, London Stock
Exchange, Frankfurt Stock Exchange, New York Stock
Exchange) and exchanges traded derivatives like futures
(for example, Nasdaq, S&P 500).

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). This level includes the majority of the over-the-
counter derivative contracts, and issued structured debt.
The sources of input parameters include LIBOR yield
curve, or Bloomberg and Reuters for counterparty credit

risk.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity investments and debt instruments with

significant unobservable components.

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market

prices in its valuations where possible.
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85

S 265 T\ B A B (f80)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Bl R I R Z AP A (D) 3.5

(Z) RFERBEE)

BRAVEREZEERAR

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

%
—EEhF Group B $24% H34% A%
+=A=+—H At 31 Dec 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
NATEFEAH Financial assets at fair value through
SEETABZNEMEE  profit or loss
RIEEE A% Held for trading
BB EH Debt securities - 5,794,453 - 5,794,453
BB S Equity securities 76,290 13,225 - 89,515
fTAET R Derivatives - 463,996 - 463,996
EBENATEGFERER Designated at fair value through
SEET AR profit or loss
BBES Debt securities - 3,789,672 - 3,789,672
MBS Equity securities 250,358 150,363 319,000 719,721
FHBELFWITETA  Derivatives held for hedging - 130,395 - 130,395
AHEEZERERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRI 5 Debt securities - 11,942,883 - 11,942,883
BB S Equity securities 337,973 620,168 - 958,141
BEATEFEZEESR  Total assets measured at fair value 664,621 22,905,155 319,000 23,888,776
UAFEEAHE Financial liabilities at fair value
STABRNERAR through profit or loss
BREEERS Held for trading - 2,068,300 - 2,068,300
BENATEFERH Designated at fair value through
HEE AER profit or loss - 1,986,576 - 1,986,576
TETA Derivatives - 309,111 = 309,111
HAEBESTMITETE  Derivatives held for hedging - 909,114 - 909,114
BAFEFEZABEA  Total liabilities measured at fair value - 5,273,101 = 5,273,101
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SilE R ABZAFE (@)

(Z2) A FEER(E)
ATEAEEIPRNEEZCMEEARER —
BRE RTINS LB S - ZEFHFN T
ZENE+_RA=+—HzZzATYEA
319,000,000/ 7T ° fHERIZZIRB AT A
SREEB 2T EEEESR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The financial asset classified as a Level 3 asset represented
investment in an equity security of an insurance company and
had a fair value of HK$319,000,000 as at 31 December 2009. It is
valued on the basis of the appraisal value of the life assurance

business of the insurance company.

TRINREIR BT EHE T AIAEHRERN

The following table shows the sensitivity of Level 3 measurements

to some possible alternative assumptions:

N el
Reflected in income statement
RHE EE# SEEZ1{
Carrying Favourable  Unfavourable
TERR Main assumptions value changes changes
B B HRIEN0.1% Increase in investment returns by 0.1% 334,000 15,000 -
REERAL0.1% Decrease in investment returns by 0.1% 303,000 - (16,000)
X HHEN10% Increase in expenses by 10% 302,000 - (17,000)
S 10% Decrease in expenses by 10% 335,000 16,000 -
i/ BIREIEMN10% Increase in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 306,000 - (13,000)
i/ ERERD10% Decrease in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 330,000 11,000 =
T/ EREILN.0% Increase in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 318,000 - (1,000)
T/ BRERA1.0% Decrease in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 320,000 1,000 -
2R BE E R 12 101.0% Increase in risk discount rate by 1.0% 260,000 - (59,000)
22 B 33 R 01.0% Decrease in risk discount rate by 1.0% 393,000 74,000 -
EBEUAFETE
BHE#BFA
BRNEeREE

Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or

loss

ERUES

Equity securities

—ZEENF—A—H
4855 7|

- &8

H 55 34R Bl B A s

“EEAFT=ASt-B

BREBSEANEER _ZTTNF
TZA=1+—HBFHBZEIRF
BENFEREBR

At 1 January 2009 364,000
Total profit
- Loss (45,000)
Transfer into or out of Level 3 -
At 31 December 2009 319,000
Total loss for the year included in profit or loss
for Level 3 assets held at 31 December 2009
(45,000)
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3. BAE B B () 3.
35 AmhiEEKAMEZ A FHE @)
() *BEAFEHBZEHBTA

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

NRBL R TR AR B IS AR R AR A
RNFHEIRZEREER BB ZREEN
RNV E - EREVBEERE - LWERFE
TikiE GER) AEBRERZ /T A
NERMSMNEBERRRENNENR S

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in the
Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. For
disclosure purposes, these fair values have been estimated by

discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current

s T o market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, if applicable.
ARMEE ARE
Carrying value Fair value
“EZAE ZEZTN\FE CZEBLE ZTITN\F
£ Group 2009 2008 2009 2008
CREE Financial assets
e RERITHEER Cash and balances with banks 10,741,879 12,808,527 10,741,970 12,829,918
ERIT—E2+TEAR Placements with banks maturing
El}- L opEN between one and twelve months 4,282,749 1,656,950 4,291,301 1,670,723
REER Advances to customers
HAER(ZEER) Loans to individuals (retail customers)
-ERAF - Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972 3,289,581 3,483,173
- RIBER - Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215 18,982,207 18,537,337
- H A - Others 3,283,575 3,802,967 3,286,840 3,780,619
TEER Loans to corporate entities
-BHER - Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960 11,317,787 10,206,200
- RIBER - Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416 8,095,166 8,511,550
-BIHmMEAE - Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482 3,263,180 4,638,656
- HAh - Others 8,931,945 11,846,061 8,919,961 11,810,914
RITER Advances to banks 150,000 179,226 150,120 179,245
BIEEE TR E W Investments in securities included in
BRlzBREE loans and receivable category 8,799,348 6,896,646 7,771,125 5,905,929
?{» FEEHES Held-to-maturity securities 8,802,282 6,384,931 8,090,515 5,808,369
At
i tHEaE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,435,136 2,443,594 1,444,477 2,471,173
Et BERER Deposits from customers 88,370,071 79,947,078 88,341,466 80,184,672
i“; BETHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 1,219,220 3,049,263 1,215,369 3,058,637
a BEITHERE 5 Issued debt securities - 1,622,154 - 1,622,409
LA BERES Subordinated notes 3,456,449 4,228,278 3,316,603 3,201,525
A
-
ﬂ
ﬂq
Eo
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EFRESSERERRKEKR
B RFEIRERHEEE - #5
ERMEENE R EYGRIAZ R
BEERETISERREL,XHEHR
B - HAAHEER  XFEZAE
TRBMARREE - BIHA kRS
ERENB LS ZRE -

ESXRIMAZER  BETHER
F o HRFEAMEMEZHE - K
BiRRm S HRE 2 BEENB TR RE
R ERFEDRERBHEE
[ 2 H B RIBREE R 2 FTE TS B R E
ZHBRBLRMEE -

EBTHEBKRES
AARBEMEREZERMS » QIFRA

86 B8 B RIERES B 2 & A et #h AR
ZERBRB SRR o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)
(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

Placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

Loans and advances to customers

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held to maturity
categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables is based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is not available,
fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

Debt securities in issue

For those notes where a quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS Bank Limited
(“MEVAS”) and another overseas banking subsidiary, D.A.H. Hambros
Bank (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”), are monitored regularly by
the Group’s management, employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?), for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires DSB and MEVAS to maintain a ratio of total
regulatory capital to the risk-weighted amount (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) at or above the internationally agreed minimum of 8%. These
banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital as managed by the Group’s

management is divided into two tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of goodwiill
and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at core capital;
and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term
subordinated debts, collectively assessed impairment
allowances, regulatory reserve, and fair value gains arising on
revaluation of holdings of land and buildings and available-for-

sale equities and debt securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and

supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other principles as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and China’s banking subsidiary, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking Regulatory

Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the solvency ratio) at

or above the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Securities

and Futures Commission.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type
of capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition to
their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be
maintained at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries
are subject to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which
they issues insurance and investment contracts, and where they have
complied with the local solvency regulations. The Group has embedded
in its asset and liability management framework the necessary tests to
ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations. The
solvency requirement of each insurance company in each market is
subject to local requirements, which may differ from jurisdiction to

jurisdiction.

In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life
insurance subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance with the
Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) Regulation. In
addition, dynamic solvency test is also required by Insurance Authority
to identify the solvency position of the company on a going concern
basis and plausible threats to satisfactory financial condition. For both

2009 and 2008, the results of dynamic solvency test are satisfactory.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give

rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk
3.8.1 Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics
or wide spread changes in lifestyle, resulting in earlier or more claims

than expected.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future
premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the
insurance risk accepted. For contracts with discretionary participating
features, the participating nature of these contracts results in a
significant portion of the insurance and financial risks being shared with

the insured party.

The Group charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all insurance
contracts without a fixed term. It has the right to alter these charges
based on its mortality experience and hence minimise its exposure to
mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in charges and market
or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its

mitigating effect.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and

reinsurance arrangements.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a portfolio of similar risks over a number of
years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the variability of the
outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate level that
corresponds with the underlying exposure of the risks underwritten.
The Group has a company-wide retention limit on any single life insured.
The Group reinsures the excess of the insured benefit over the limit for
standard risks (from a medical point of view) under an excess of loss

reinsurance arrangement.

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where a
particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon the
Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single
insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts, and

relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.

The Group is subject to concentration risk arising from accidents or
epidemics on policies taken out by its policyholders. Therefore, to cover
the risk, catastrophe reinsurance arrangements have been made by

the Group.
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- X
EREBEQEZFEELTREEER  VRAKE L

RRERIEH TR -
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BRIz BENRER 2 ERBRFE 2 EE
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4.00%) °

T

HEMEEESRESAREAERRT X2 Z8)
MEHEE - RFR_ZFZNF+_A=+—H
i_$2n¢+—ﬂ—JrfElﬂHFﬁ%%IJZE*Eﬁﬁ

CEERNER_TETENFAH-1.36%EEE
+0.69% (ZZZ )\ F : -0.80%=+1.35%) ° ST
EBRIER_ZZNFEF - URMIRERHZ
REKR - HEFERFITRBREE2REF
BEYNR_TTNF+_A=+—"HRBREHZ
RIRR B A E R 2 267,821,000 L (ZZEEN
F : 24,295,000/57T) © RENFREFIEMRAES
B o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefit payments

and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium
receipts for long-term insurance contracts arises from the
unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and

the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Group uses appropriate industry tables of standard mortality
adjusted according to the type of contract being written. An
investigation into the actual experience of the Group is carried out
annually. Realistic estimates of future mortality is made based on

standard industry tables adjusted for the Group’s overall experience.

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance contracts

Estimates are made in calculating the future insurance liabilities under

insurance contracts.

Key assumptions are summarised below:
— Mortality
An appropriate table of standard mortality is chosen with adjustment

for the Group’s own experience.

— Valuation interest rates
The valuation interest rates as at 31 December 2009 range from 2.45%
10 4.48% (2008: 2.20% to 4.00%) depending on type of plans and varies

with changes in the appropriate risk free rates.

Change in assumption

The valuation interest rates change with variations in the appropriate
risk free rates at each end of reporting period. Valuation interest rates
in 2009 changed by -1.36% to +0.69% (2008: -0.80% to +1.35%)
depending on types of plans from 31 December 2008 to 31 December
2009. The mortality assumption was updated in 2009 to reflect the latest
available claim experience. The combined impact of changes in
valuation rates and mortality assumption reduced the future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts as at 31st December 2009 by
HK$267,821,000 (2008: HK$24,295,000) and increased the net profit

for the year by same amount.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance contracts
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The follow table represents the sensitivity of value of future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts to movements in the key
assumptions used in the estimation of future insurance liabilities under

insurance contracts.

ZEThF —ETNF
2009 2008
AR ARERKE
SEED BREZ
Change in Change in
2% future FRAEE future 5 F 2 8
Change insurance Change in insurance Change in
in variable liabilities net profit liabilities net profit
FTRE( Worsening of mortality 1% +2,926 -2,915 +3,031 +3,031
EEFETH Decrease in valuation
interest rates 0.1% +51,599 -51,511 +21,865 +21,865

RS FEE—ERR LR EDT ARG
REHTRAEL BB E - BERTATES
B TE TR AR — 0 x5
BRTESD KA DERKTT LD -

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated — for
example, change in interest rate and change in market values; change

in lapses and future mortality.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the Group
arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable

in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of recoverable
amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and

actual loss experience.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets, the
Group has witnessed observable declines in market liquidity and
the range of market quotations for certain securities have
widened. The Group applies judgment in selecting the most
appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent
observable transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing

source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which
could be caused by major changes in market conditions and
outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such
assets. In the event that the expected recoverable amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than their
carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be

recognised.
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4.1

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FE FH 7wt BUR IR 2 S ah A s SOH 4. Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

B (50 applying accounting policies (Continued)

B2 A A E R AR (0 4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(T) REAZERESZBENIREEE (d)  Value of long-term life assurance business

TERASREB 2BNREEBBERAE Estimates are made in calculating the value of long-term life

HEET o assurance business.

FEZREBHRAT Key assumptions are summarised below:

() FETE - EBEERESBIIBENRTERAE ()  Mortality. An appropriate base table of standard mortality
A WIRARRAR S 2 B EH is chosen with adjustment for the Company’s own
B experience.

(i) BRIRE o BRIAERBO% (ZTT/\F : (i)  Discount rate. A discount rate of 9% (2008: 9%) being the

9%) + BERE R EINEE 2 xR risk free rate plus an appropriate equity risk premium is
P (E o applied.

(i) HERTR - BT TRZETEEEE (iiy  Investment return. Investment return assumption ranges
ZERE  FHEEHRBEN T FEX from 4.75% to 6.75% per annum (2008: 4.75% to 6.75%
4.75%Z6.75% (ZZTT N\ F : F£X per annum) depending on risk characteristics of
4.75%%6.75%) ° investments matching the liabilities of different plans.

(ivy BRIE  BRIHTIBEERER (iv) Renewal expenses. Renewal expenses based on actual
MBERKEBTEIMETE ° experience and with reference to future business plan are

adopted.

R E) - Change in assumptions:

AEEEHBRAAEAZBSE  UREE Assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted based

A% 4 B 70 35 FEORI /B (1 F 2 o on the actual experience and new forecasts.

RRIEE DT ¢ Sensitivity analysis:

T RET = B ES ke 3 75 B B AR £ 50 R LAY The following table represents the sensitivity of value of long-

RSB EBEEZZZERREH 2R term life assurance business to movements in the key

JEE - assumptions used in the estimation of value of long-term life

assurance business.
ZEENF —EENE
2009 2008
REOEH RHEB
EEZ28 BEzE
R&mE Value of Az Value of A2 B
Change in long-term Change in long-term Change in
variable business net profit business net profit

BRI K 7 S Increase in discount rate +1% (101,705) (101,499) (123,190) (123,029)

RTRZEL Worsening of mortality +1% (8,864) (8,863) (2,225) (2,223)

RERER 2 TR Decrease in investment return ~ -0.1% (69,408) (69,116) (47,365) (47,108)

BRI M 23Em Increase in renewal expense +10% (11,279) (11,121) (11,751) (11,601)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(e)  Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising

from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance
contracts is dependent on estimates made by the Group.
Valuation interest rates are determined from a prudent
assessment of the yield on existing assets and the expected yield
taking into account the Insurance Companies (Determination of
Long Term Liabilities) Regulation. Estimates are made as to the
expected number of deaths for each of the years in which the
Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases these estimates on
standard industry mortality tables that reflect recent historical
mortality experience with margin, adjusted where appropriate to
reflect the Group’s own experience. The estimated number of
deaths determines the value of the benefit payments and the
value of the valuation premiums. A main source of uncertainty is
that epidemics such as AIDS, SARS and wide ranging lifestyle
changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise habits, could
result in future mortality being significantly worse than in the past
for the age groups in which the Group has significant exposure to
mortality risk offset by continuing improvements in medical care

and social conditions.

For contracts without fixed terms, the Group will be able to
increase mortality risk charges in future years in line with emerging

mortality experience.

Estimate of critical iliness related morbidity is based on industry
data with margin, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the
Group’s own experience. The uncertainty is greater for mortality
due to a smaller pool of insured, shorter history of the coverage,
medical advances and change in treatment as well as wide-
ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise
habits.

The Group reserves the right to increase the premium rates in
future years for all contracts providing such coverage during the

premium term.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but

also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The

Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and

receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (‘HTM”) and loans
and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end of the year and
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements of the
Group. Assessment for any impairment, on individual and
collective basis, is made with reference to the financial strength
and credit rating of each issuer, industry development and market
conditions, and historical loss experience of a portfolio of similar
credits provided by rating agencies. Apart from the investments
in structured investment vehicles (“SIV”), and those AFS equity
securities and HTM debt securities having been assessed as
impaired, the Group has concluded that there are no objective or
specific indications that any of its other AFS, HTM and LNR
securities is impaired. Except for the impairment losses
recognised on the SIV investments, those AFS equity securities,
and HTM debt securities (which had been written off as at 31
December 2009 and 2008), no impairment allowance is provided
on other AFS and HTM securities. Certain LNR securities are
assessed as impaired, and appropriate amount of impairment

allowances are provided as at 31 December 2009.

(c) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances - for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments

would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(d) Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgment is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to
be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In
making this judgment, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement

experiences and advice from legal counsel.

(e) Initial recognition of Lehman Brothers minibonds and
principal protected notes acquired pursuant to repurchase
scheme and settlement arrangements agreed with

customers

On 22 July and 23 December 2009, the Group agreed with the
Securities and Futures Commission, and the to make an offer to
eligible customers to repurchase, respectively, their holdings in
all outstanding Lehman Brothers minibonds (“Minibonds”) and
principal protected notes (“PPN”) subscribed through the Group

(“the Repurchase Schemes”).

In determining the charge to the income statement in respect of
the Minibonds and PPN, the Group took into account the
estimated aggregate amount paid and payable under the
Repurchase Schemes and the voluntary offer, the provision made
prior to the date of the Repurchase Schemes and the estimated

amount recoverable from the Minibonds and PPN.

The amount recoverable from the Minibonds and PPN is uncertain
and dependent on a number of factors including resolution of
certain legal matters, which may result in a wide range of recovery
outcomes. The Group has made an assessment of the amount
recoverable under such uncertainties. The final amount of
recovery could be different from the assessment made by the
Group, and may result in future charge or credit to be recognised
in the income statement in the period when legal clarifications or

realisation of assets take place.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting

In prior years, the Group determined the segment information on the
basis of business segments, which are distinguishable business
divisions of the Group that provide products and services to customers
base or dealing with the market that are different to those of other
business segments (e.g. personal banking, commercial banking,
treasury, insurance business, and others). Business segments
information was presented as the primary reporting format while
geographical segment information, which was grouped by the location
of the principal operations of the Group as the secondary reporting

format (e.g. Hong Kong and others, and Macau).

In the 2009 financial year, segment reporting by the Group was prepared
for the first time in accordance with HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”),
which includes the Chief Executive and other Executive Committee
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, is determined on the basis of banking business and
insurance business. For banking business, operating performances are
analysed by business activities for local banking business, and on
business entity basis for overseas banking business. For insurance
business, resources allocation and performance evaluation are based

on insurance business entity basis.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment, and regulations, we group the
operating segments of the Group into the following reportable

segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and
the provision of trade financing. Hire purchase finance and leasing
related to equipment, vehicle and transport financing are

included.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralized cash management for deposit taking and
lending, interest rate risk management, management of

investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

° Overseas banking businesses includes personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a

commercial bank in China.

° Insurance business include the Group’s life assurance and
general insurance businesses. Through the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries
in Macau, the Group offers a variety of life and general insurance

products and services.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt

funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments are
reported directly under respective segments, while revenue and funding
cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and funding
resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated

on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are

grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.



U 265 i A PR i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

5. B¥ENHEME @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.

Operating segment reporting (Continued)

BE_ZZNAFE+-A=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2009
8o
BARS HERT BAER REEH
Personal ~ Commercial BE£%  Overseas Insurance Hth @t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others Total
FHEMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses)
-HREP - external customers 548,671 862,120 74,014 244,845 154,581 (207,102) 2,344,129
-BER - inter-segments 304,023 22,822 (344,351) (5,413) 17,345 5,574 -
FFBMA/ (%) Non-interest income/(expenses) 217,516 88,333 59,085 61,002 197,136 (243,315) 379,847
hREZEZEE Total operating
WA/ (%) income/(expenses) net of
insurance claims 1,070,210 973,275 455,748 300,524 369,062 (444,843) 2,723,976
£ Operating expenses (1,152,377) (243,345) (90,275) (223,061) (145,727) (14,295  (1,869,080)
NBRERRR EE (BR) Operating (loss)/profit before
/ il impairment losses (82,167) 729,930 365,473 77,463 223,335 (459,138) 854,896
ERREBRREMEERR Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions (121425)  (278,401) (17,941) (9,254) (1,732) (4527)  (433,280)
ETHRER .E EENHIEE Operating (loss)/profit before
Mz EE(BR) /BH gains or losses on certain
investments and fixed assets  (203,592) 451,529 347,532 68,209 221,603 (463,665) 421,616
HERENE  TEREMER Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
BERHATERELF and fair value adjustment
(EB8) /s on investment properties,
premises and other fixed
assets (1) - - 1,193 68,625 9,603 79,400
HEEFRETF () /K Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
investment in securities (368) - (31,279) - (35,734) 7,048 (60,333)
ERBENRzEE Share of restilts of an associate - - - 195,770 - - 195,770
FEELRENESE £E Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 5,103 5,103
Rk ERS TN Net gain on repurchase of
subordinated debts - - - - - 243,983 243,983
BEA (BB) /57 (Loss)/profit before income tax ~ (203,981) 451,529 316,253 265,172 254,494 (197,928) 885,539
BEEE/ (i) Income tax credit/(expenses) 30,025 (74,946) (52,262) (6,754) (13,172) 20,859 (96,250)
Btk (58) /8F (Loss)/profit after income tax (173,956) 376,583 263,991 258,418 241,322 (177,069) 789,289
BEZSENE For the year ended
TZA=T-RLLEE 31 December 2009
WEREHER Depreciation and
amortisation 35,518 16,040 7,525 40,564 8,207 24,685 132,539
RZZENETZA=T-H As at 31 December 2009
ABAE Segment assets 23,774,539 27,743,861 46,356,147 14,782,608 9,718,569 200,431 122,576,155
NEAE Segment liabilities 53914872 14216278 18416822 11,452,134 6,917,631 3479643 108,397,380
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5. B @)

BE_ZTTN\FT_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Operating segment reporting (Continued)

el
AR AERT RIEH eSS
Personal  Commercial BEEK Overseas  Insurance i &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others Total
FHBMA/ (ZH) Net interest income/(expenses)
—-HEEP - external customers (21,086) 1,191,927 1,314,110 201,031 107,971 (424,488) 2,369,465
Lk - inter-segments 884,739 (352,032) (993,537) 32,452 28,224 400,154 -
RSB/ (%) Non-interest income/(expenses) 373,703 122,376 84,862 90,424 (11,626) 141,043 800,982
NBRRBRZRE EENA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 1,237,356 962,271 405,435 323,907 124,569 116,909 3,170,447
LEYH Operating expenses (1,018,147)  (196,509) (78098)  (214457)  (147,934) (48,143)  (1,703,284)
NRREFRIZEERT/ Operating profit/(loss) before
(BH#) impairment losses 219,209 765,766 327,337 109,450 (23,365) 68,766 1,467,163
ERREEERAMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions (135,609) (477,229) - (45,364) - (333) (658,535)
ETREREFEERRIEE Operating profit/(loss) before
Az EERT/ (BB gains or losses on certain
investments and fixed assets 83,600 288,537 327,337 64,086 (23,365) 68,433 808,628
HERENE  TEREMEEE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
EREDTEAR TS/ and fair value adjustment
(B8) on investment properties,
premises and other fixed
assets 20 - - 617 (32,066) (27,598) (59,027)
HEEFRE L FhE/ (BB Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
investment in securities 5,920 - 1,414 815 (24,955) 13,687 (3,119
EEBRENFZEE Share of results of an associate - - - 120,589 - - 120,589
FElLEREHEE X5 Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 5,674 5,674
REREZRBERR Impairment losses charged on
investment in securities - - (357,684) (39,098) (29,085) (263,886) (689,753)
BRAER/ (B8 Profit/(loss) before income tax 89,540 288,537 (28,933) 147,009 (109,471) (203,690) 182,992
BOA () /& Income tax (expense)/credit (14,030) (48,273) 4,841 (19,633) (10,711) 58,431 (29,375)
BRgER/ (58 Profit/(loss) after income tax 75,510 240,264 (24,092) 127,376 (120,182) (145,259) 153,617
HE-ZT)\E For the year ended
TZA=+-BILEE 31 December 2008
MERBEER Depreciation and
amortisation 31,333 21,513 8,681 39,552 7,987 24,712 133,778
RZEENET-A=t-H As at 31 December 2008
PEEE Segment assets 23734377 31,700,062 41,297,573 13,674,867 8,956,613 816,684 120,180,176
AEEE Segment liabilities 54,608,881 13,389,663 13,800,615 10,655,281 6,746,814 9,041,470 108,242,724
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5. B¥ENHEME @)
INRBEZ W TIRAMRES  RPIRTEY

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking

RITHBRA - REMRHZIBEREREE
EEIZER  FERE  AERE RUEPSE

FRERBE -

TREHZREBECZER - BEDREAEE
EERBRINAEPRERY - REREHER
5 MRS RR 2 FRPE T FERR

subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,

with major products and services including deposit taking, extension

of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which

was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities within

the group with business dealing and relationship with, and services to

external customers.

&35 2 EE
85
EBRHM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment #Et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BE-ZZNEF For the year ended
+tZA=t+—HLEE 31 December 2009
HEREREZEERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,440,229 284,089 (342) 2,723,976
B %56 B A Profit before income tax 794,185 91,354 - 885,539
R-ZEEAE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2009
BEAR Total assets 113,045,033 12,110,240 (2,579,118) 122,576,155
BEAE Total liabilities 100,675,307 10,301,191 (2,579,118) 108,397,380
BREAERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 771,355 - 1,090,022
A B R R Contingent liabilities and
commitments 42,726,720 1,379,709 - 44,106,429
& 13 5 T H
G|
B RHAM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment BT
and Others Macau elimination Total
BEZZTTN\F For the year ended
TZA=+—-BLFE 31 December 2008
HRRBRREZ EERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,929,157 241,565 (275) 3,170,447
BREADES, (B18) Profit/(loss) before income tax 213,099 (30,107) - 182,992
RZZEZENEF+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2008
BEAR Total assets 109,901,301 12,451,113 (2,172,238) 120,180,176
BEEF Total liabilities 100,037,272 10,377,690 (2,172,238) 108,242,724
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 321,223 788,121 = 1,109,344
HRBEREE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 37,081,176 1,485,131 - 38,566,307
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6. FAEHA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Net interest income

—EZhE —ZTTN\EF
2009 2008
FE WA Interest income
H e R ERITH R Cash and balances with banks 132,529 405,341
BHIEE Investment in securities 833,760 1,347,861
BEEMBITER Advances to customers and banks 2,204,848 2,945,973
HAth Others 6,085 39,787
3,177,222 4,738,962
FEFZH Interest expense
RITFERBEFER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 578,529 1,804,020
BERITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 42,663 200,175
ERITHELEES Issued debt securities 90,611 89,399
BEE® Subordinated notes 102,216 209,818
Hh Others 19,074 66,085
833,093 2,369,497
FIEWABHE Included within interest income
EWREZFBWA Interest income on listed investments 425,404 1,110,479
JEETHIRE 2 F B A Interest income on unlisted investments 408,356 237,382
833,760 1,347,861
JERAFEAFEBHE Interest income on financial assets not
FFABEEHNEREEZF KA at fair value through profit or loss 3,044,506 3,926,891
REEER S WA Interest income on impaired assets 15,429 16,069
FMEZHBEHE Included within interest expenses
AR FEFZAHE Interest expenses on financial liabilities
AN EMAE S H not at fair value through profit or loss 660,576 2,040,261
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7. EMEEEMEWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. Net fee and commission income

—EEBhE _—TITN\F
2009 2008
BREERASWA Fee and commission income
AR FEFE B EEBTA Fee and commission income from
BamemEERAEEREZ financial assets and liabilities not
R & &M A at fair value through
profit or loss
-EEEREZREE LA — Credit related fees and commissions 73,394 65,262
-E5mE — Trade finance 38,066 57,520
-EAR - Credit card 203,153 192,026
H th AR 7% B KA & WA Other fee and commission income
-BrRe kR ERERE — Securities brokerage and investment
services 46,841 151,193
- RERGHE R E A — Insurance distribution and others 17,089 22,759
-TEREES RZERS - Retail investment funds and fiduciary
services 9,337 44,490
- EMR% & — Other fees 72,838 79,263
460,718 612,513
REERALSIH Fee and commission expense
FEERAS Handling fees and commission 120,629 97,103
EfNEMER Other fees paid 12,890 11,789
133,519 108,892

AEERAF=DFRHAE - X5t EXEFERR
BEERY - RENXEAFNHBEZEEL T

BEENEMBRERA

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. FHEHHEIER 8.  Net trading loss
—EBhE _—TITN\F
2009 2008
LARAFEFZ B HZE T ABEN Dividend income from financial assets
EREEZRERA at fair value through profit or loss
- EWEE — listed investments 2,030 6,015
- LEMIEE — unlisted investments 155 5,419
SNEE B B )F W= Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 160,780 234,550
FRIFEEERENE S 2 FEE Net loss from trading securities (2,515) (441,730)
BIEEERARMITET A 2 Fes / (B8) Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 3,022 (137,357)
BAFESHRHNERSR T A 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge (60,476) (15,510)
EEN AT EGFEEEEZHTAEEN Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
SHMIAZF (BB instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss (160,934) 244,318
(57,938) (104,295)
9. WRELILAMBA 9. Net insurance premium and other income
“EENE ZEENE
2009 2008
Bk -RRRE =k —RiER
Life General &t Life General At
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
RBWABE Gross written premiums 1,427,701 260,530 1,697,240 1,787,953 252,807 2,040,760
RARRZRES Movement in unearned premiums - 34,891 34,891 - 76,155 76,155
ERMREAS Gross earned premiums 1,427,701 304430 1,732,131 1,787,953 328962 2,116,915
REMABE 2 HRIVE Gross written premiums ceded
to reinsurers (60,614)  (146541) (207,155  (47,661) (138,149  (185,810)
RABRZREED 2D ROE Reinsurers’ share of movement in
Q unearned premiums - (31,189) (31,189) - (70,675) (70,675)
;%; ERRZRERE L HROE Reinsurers’ share of gross
eamed premiums (60,614)  (177,730)  (238344)  (47,661)  (208824) (256,485
ot
g REKAFE Net insurance premium income 1,367,087 126,700 1,493,787 1,740,292 120,138 1,860,430
| ROEREBZENREREEZEM  Change in value of in-force long-term
| | life assurance business (48,784) - (48,784) 258,914 - 258,914
Al
A
- B% Total 1,318,303 126,700 1,445,003 1,999,206 120,138 2,119,344
ﬂ
ﬂ?
e
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10. H b A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. Other operating income

—EZTAE _—ZETN\F
2009 2008
AIEHEFERFIREZREWA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
- EHEE - listed investments 10,575 12,491
- LEmEE - unlisted investment 13,424 11,382
"EYE 2B WA BT Gross rental income from
investment properties 19,209 20,281
HapfHS WA Other rental income 5,752 5,462
Hfth Others 6,429 38,959
55,389 88,575
11, PREERE R 2 11. Net insurance claims and expenses
ZEEhF Z2EN\E
2009 2008
Bk -RER =k —RiRkR
Life General & Life General At
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
BEREE  MERER Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 677,906 96,067 773,973 542,469 84,067 626,536
ke g Movement in provisions 443,274 45,504 488,778 1,038,658 56,394 1,095,052
REGELHRE Gross insurance claims and movement
BEABEZE in liabilities to policyholders 1,121,180 14,511 1,262,751 1,581,127 140,461 1,721,588
BERZRE - FERREZHRNE Reinsurers’ share of claim, benefits
and surrenders paid (9,646)  (36,289)  (45,935) (6,328) (34,875) (41,209)
ER2H ARNE Reinsurers’ share of movement
in provisions 12,994 (26,717) (13,723) (14,577) (25,668) (40,245)
ZEERIREREAREED Reinsurers’ share of insurance claims and
ARG movement in liabilities to policyholders 3,348 (63,006) (59,658) (20,905) (60,543) (81,448)
RBRREFERIRE Net insurance claims and movement
RBANBEZED in liabilities to policyholders 1,124,528 78,565 1,203,093 1,560,222 79918 1,640,140
RiEesH/ Net insurance commission
(A) 8 expenses/(income) 186,196 517 186,713 171,393 (5,270) 166,123
At Total 1,310,724 79,082 1,389,806 1,731,615 74,648 1,806,263
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEZH 12.  Operating expenses
—EEhE —ZTTN\F
2009 2008
EEFHFMEEN B (RIEESHM) Employee compensation and benefit
(F45E13) expenses (including director’s
remuneration) (Note 13) 833,323 755,509
TEREMEEEES L Premises and other fixed asset expenses,
TERETE excluding depreciation
-TTEZME® - Rental of premises 87,573 84,218
- Eftp — Others 88,334 84,611
& (FI5E35) Depreciation (Note 35) 113,217 111,107
BEX Advertising costs 65,334 79,932
B EERHEER Amortisation expenses of intangible
(PfFE34) assets (Note 34) 19,322 22,671
% ERET B & Auditors’ remuneration 7,380 7,380
Hh (FE) Others (Note) 654,597 557,856
1,869,080 1,703,284
i Note:

BREE_ZENFR_ZZNFEIEMI BT 2EME
BXH - HPEARIOHAERAEER _TTN\F+=
H=t+—HApHEE ThHESHMRBEERT 2 ZTERE
R RRASEFEEERS kA EECBERmA]
(FHaE4.2(R)) P Rzt - MERRE-ZTNF
T ARz BFEEEER S CERE M+ MEEBRT)
HEPEBESRMEFZEN  UMRAKER-FZ
NE+—_ARETHESRITZLRAREMAMLI S —
FEBEDESEZEN  YH _FTAF+_A=1
—BZERE - FRHEMAER 2 BE

MEERREST T - ANREE %45 %£22,000,0008
THEENARERIERE S RIRES S 3R ATRIR 23
SREAESRIRESFZEFRA - AUASERD K& E
RERENREERZEM -

13. & B 3 R &R 57

A substantial portion of other operating expenses included in “Others” in 2009
and 2008 was expenses incurred on Lehman Brothers related products in relation
to the Repurchase Schemes (Note 4.2 (e)) and the voluntary offers based on the
Group’s judgment as at 31 December 2008, and subsequently settlements with
customers pursuant to a voluntary repurchase scheme announced in July 2009
(together with another 14 banks in Hong Kong) on the repurchase of Lehman
Brothers minibonds, followed by another voluntary repurchase scheme
announced by the Group in December 2009 on certain principal protected notes
issued by Lehman Brothers, and further assessment for position as at 31
December 2009.

With respect to the repurchase of Minibonds, the Group has made available an
amount equivalent to the total commission income received as a Lehman
Brothers Minibonds distributor of approximately HK$22 million to the trustee of
the Lehman Brothers Minibonds to fund the trustee’s expenses in recovering
and realising the value of the underlying collateral.

13. Employee compensation and benefit expenses

ZE2AF —TT)N\F

2009 2008
FTHEREMAEZER Salaries and other staff costs 767,176 756,641
LARR 15 B EE T SR 2 1R 48 (D1 388) Provision for share-based compensation
(Bff5E55) charged/(reversed) (Note 55) 29,796 (52,610)
BRE T Pension costs
- REHRGHE — defined contribution plans 36,351 51,478
833,323 755,509
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13. R B 3 T K e A 52 (gD

ReMez B AL :

(i) Blems

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. Employee compensation and benefit expenses
(Continued)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:

(i) The aggregate emoluments

—EEAF —E2E)N\F
2009 2008

e FE - BEYHNmREMERR Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 52,160 26,930
RIKEEH Pensions 1,065 2,290
53,225 29,220

(i) HURSBRAALHBMSERDT

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within

the following bands:

AH
Number of individuals
—ETAE ZZTTN\F
2009 2008
77T HK$

4,000,001 - 4,500,000 -
4,500,001 — 5,000,000 - 2
6,500,001 — 7,000,000 - 1
7,000,001 - 7,500,000 1 -
8,000,001 — 8,500,000 1 -
8,500,001 — 9,000,000 - 1
11,000,001 - 11,500,000 1 -
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 1 -
14,000,001 - 14,500,000 1 -
5 5)

ELf&ZeMEeBRAZALTA - FOML(ZEF
NE ) REEES - HAENESTHEC
BIEERERME14A

RER - AEEYEAEMAVRSRAALX
S - (ERIASINBEAREE 2 25 BRI

f& -

[

.

bR sERBAALTOHESBREBREEZXF
E PR L ARIS AN SR B 2 SEAB RO TRIR SR BN TEAT -

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2008: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 14 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of offices during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered

and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
14. HHEWME 14. Directors’ emoluments
BEFZHM T The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
EBER
RAtRE 2
EREBEA
(1)
Incentive
bonuses
HER accrued W&
EMAE  inrespect of EREA
Salary, services (33) fit
allowances rendered  Share-based (4)
EZHE  and benefits in the year payment RIFSH Total
BE_ZEAETZA=T-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2009 Directors’ Fee in kind (Note 1) (Note 3) Pensions (Note 4)
iR Chairman
ITEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,060 7,000 - - 11,960
HiEs Executive directors
EERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 6,000 - 400 14,400
ZEERE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3,950 1,000 - 1 5,661
HHELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,000 4,000 - 240 8,140
RBBEE Nicholas John Mayhew - 3,450 7,600 - 225 11,275
FUMES Non-executive directors
ARELE Chung-Kai Chow 93 - - - - 93
RARBERE Kunio Suzuki 180 - - - - 180
ifetbed b Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180
RERLE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180
fhRRLE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 - - - - 180
EllESeiEs Eiichi Yoshikawa 180 - - - - 180
BUFidES Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birch’% £ Peter Gibbs Birch 300 - - - - 300
S EREE Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
VN ik Tal-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
REETE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 180 - - - - 180
HEkRLE Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 70 - - - - 70
fit Total 3,323 23,260 25,600 - 1,576 53,759
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14. EHFEWMWE &)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

BEER
RERKL
BREETL
(#2)
Incentive
bonuses
FRR accrued WM A
ENila in respect of AWML
Salary, services (#3) ahr
allowances rendered  Share-based (&F4)
Tk and benefits in the year payment RINSAET Total

HEZZZ/\EtZA=T-RLEE Year ended 31 December 2008 Directors’ Fee in kind (Note 2) (Note 3) Pensions (Note 4)

iR Chairman

FFEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 - - - 4,960

#HnE Executive directors

EERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 - - 600 8,600

TEAEE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3,950 = = 730 4,680

gLk Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 - - 360 4,260

ERERE Nicholas John Mayhew - 3,000 - - 300 3,300

FHES Non-executive directors

ARELE Chung-Kai Chow 225 - - - - 205

RABERE Kunio Suzuki 180 - - - - 180

BREBEE Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180

ARELE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180

hBALE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 - - - - 180

EllESeiEs Eiichi Yoshikawa 180 - - - - 180

BuanEs Independent non-executive directors

Peter G. Birch’% & Peter Gibbs Birch 269 - - - - 269

LBRLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600

VN ik Tal-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180

REERE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 180 - - - - 180

A Total 3,054 22,810 - - 1,990 27,854

G Note:

1. RZZEZNF+ZA=T—HBRBHEAE=ZZN 1. Incentive bonuses in respect of 2009 performance and service accrued
FREZRBRZFEZEEMBRRE=-ST at 31 December 2009 for distribution to relevant Directors subsequent to
NF+—A=+T—BRERTEBRES 2 BEIE 31 December 2009 have been stated, as applicable, to individual Directors
A BRZIRBEEEEEENEAZZT N and included as their 2009 emoluments.

FrME -

2. AEBERATERNESHEBEE_ST/\F 2. The Group had resolved that no incentive bonuses as at 31 December
R 2R REFE 2 EELERBEAL - R 2008 were payable to Directors in respect of 2008 for performance and
ZEENF+ A=+ BUEIEREEEAL - services rendered. No accrual for incentive bonuses was made as at 31

December 2008.

3. LA BER 2 I ARIERESN - ITREST 3. Share-based payment represents the cash payment, being the difference
FERRERRE . MZKRMERTEEZE between the closing market price and the exercise price of the share
£ o options on the date when a Director exercised the options granted.

4. EHEERRMARNRITEEGR DT REH B 4. For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

RAEREZEE  EHzENE A S 2 H
ERBELIZEEHMEFTA -

or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated total remuneration set out above.
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15, Bk e 18 S I A 15 S 1t

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions

—EEBhE _—TITN\F
2009 2008
BERUREEE Loan impairment losses
ZEFER Advances to customers 408,925 658,535
RITER Advances to banks 155 -
FEEH A S K B AR B Accrued interest and other accounts 434 -
409,514 658,535
B3R E b SRR B R 2 Net charge of impairment losses on
advances and other accounts
— (BRI FE - Individually assessed 176,416 476,335
- BRE A - Collectively assessed 233,098 182,200
409,514 658,535
EhERE Of which
-FMEEE (BIERFANEEMIE 2 ©5) - new allowances (including amounts
directly written off in the year) 681,034 784,634
- B8 - releases (207,596) (46,678)
- Y [El - recoveries (63,924) (79,421)
409,514 658,535
Hin s E&E Other credit provisions
ERINERET g Individual impairment losses on:
- BREERREWRIBERN 2 FEHFI&E — Investment in securities included in
(Ki=£27) the loans and receivables category
(Note 27) 17,941 -
- Hftb - Others 5,825 -
23,766 -
Wz BR P F S Net charge to income statement 433,280 658,535
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16. B AT AR M Ath T A2 28 AT RE FLAY

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. Net gain on disposal and revaluation of premises and

Z F W R other fixed assets
—ETAE —ZTT)N\F
2009 2008
TEEGHRERRE (RE) Deficit recovered/(charged) on

revaluation of premises 1,453 (263)
HETE 2 F R Net gain from disposal of premises 1,463 1,857

HEE H A B E B E 2 R E 18 Net loss from disposal of other
fixed assets (113) (184)
2,803 1,410

17. W 38 AP B 2 I
it/ (k1)

17. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of and fair value adjustment

on investment properties

—EBEEhE —TTN\F
2009 2008
BEMEAFERAR 2 FWE (BE) Net gain/(loss) on fair value adjustment
of investment properties 73,307 (60,437)
R E Y 2 F Net gain from disposal of investment
properties 3,290 -
76,597 (60,437)

18. FIEAMEEE Z T E

RZZZNGFFE  AEEERGEEEERE
ERAER UMBEELBEZELASATER
70,000,000 T RFTIRITN —ZEZLF A+
NBETZKATELRBERSE ([EH]) (M
44) - REAREREBHEZZHASEMH 2
%% 6 #)48%870,000,0003% 7T 2 #H B8 FI| & 42 B IR
MEREEMARIE - NEEPTERELZ F e T) B 7
& 7% [0 2 4% L E AR 3= B W3R 2 )R s o
ZE BB RERFESRER/RIRITZ = RHM 0
AR BREETKEEHEEETARIEBR AR
FTRT 2 BEHMMER -

18. Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts

During 2009, the Group, after receiving the prior consent of the HKMA,
repurchased a total of US$70 million notional principal value of the
Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes issued by DSB on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”) at a discount (Note 44). Notional contract
amount of the associated interest rate swap totalling US$70 million
originally taken to swap the interest rate of the Notes to a floating rate
basis was also terminated upon the repurchase. The net gain recorded
is the net realised gain arising from the repurchase of the Notes and the
termination of the related interest rate swap. The repurchased Notes,
previously qualified as upper supplementary capital of DSB, were
cancelled and de-recognised as DSB’s liability or supplementary capital

after the completion of the purchase.
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19. BiJEZH

H B NGB T0 32 BB A N At FE AR B 0 I DA B =R
16.5% (ZZTZ)\4F : 16.5%) IR B EME - BN
1B H TR F N IME s IR B F R A 5 B A
EEBHE ZRITHETHE o

REEHBERAABEARNEREE  UHE
16.5% (T )\ F : 16.5%) (E2 BmHER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is a calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a taxation rate of 16.5% (2008:16.5%)

—EEhE ZZZTINF
2009 2008
NEEHIE : Current income tax:
BBEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 93,933 14,487
YN IR Overseas taxation 11,783 18,782
RIBAEFE (B TRZEME (Over)/underprovision in prior years (2,108) 8,080
EERTE (M 3E47) Deferred income tax (Note 47):
-BEABEEGH I E — Impact of change of Hong Kong
tax rate - (2,203)
-FAREREENEE KEMD - Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (7,358) 9,771)
96,250 29,375

AEBERBANG N 2 HIRB IR A &R AIINE
FIEREAF 2 ERBBEOT ¢

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

—EEhE ZTINF
2009 2008
BR 35 Bl A Profit before income tax 885,539 182,992
1238 AR & [R5 Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
AR AT E 2 B I8 application to profits in the respective
countries 146,114 30,194
THIBAZIRR Tax effects of:
EREEZTRRVERE Different tax treatment of results of
life insurance business (69,295) (8,223)
H B R 2 TR F & Different taxation rates in other
countries (3,193) (1,535)
ﬂ% Bz A Income not subject to taxation (77,098) (44,514)
BEIR B 2 Expenses not deductible 135,609 67,379
LA %R BEREZ R 2B E R A Results of associates and jointly
H? FIEB 2 XE controlled entities reported net of tax (33,144) (20,293)
FS ﬁ EE RIRET IR E EN TS E R Tax losses for which no deferred tax
asset was recognised - 649
fE AR AR R 2 T IEE R Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (635) (159)
RBEFE (BHE) MR ZEE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (2,108) 8,080
EFIERERIE - FHERE Remeasurement of deferred tax
- change of tax rate - (2,203)
RIS W Income tax expense 96,250 29,375
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20. B ME AN v A

FRARA M IERE AN Z IR E GG R E
201,128,000/ 7T (—ZZ )\ £ : 212,167,000/
JL) °

21. kS
ARAEHE-_ZEZAE+_A=+—HILEER
WELAERS - REE_ETENE+_A=1+—
BIEFE - AARX A HRE Z%0.688 T4
175,814,000 - EE S TEREKE_ZTT /L
FERIKE °

al

A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$201,128,000 (2008:
HK$212,167,000).

21. Dividends

No dividends were paid during the year ended 31 December 2009. An
interim dividend of HK$0.68 per share, totalling HK$175,814,000, was
paid in the year ended 31 December 2008. The Directors do not propose
the payment of a final dividend in respect of 2009.

—EEhE Z—ZINF
Company 2009 2008

XNTERS &
(ZZTN\F : BREBAR0.685T)
BORRBRR  &
(ZZEZNEF : 8)

22. HBRARN

Interim dividend paid of HK$ Nil

(2008: HK$0.68) per ordinary share - 176,984
Proposed final dividend of HK$ Nil

(2008: HK$NIl) per ordinary share - -

- 176,984

22. Earnings per share

—BBAE —TT\F

2009 2008
(&) (#7L)
(HK$) (HK$)

%A F Earnings per share
2R Basic 2.41 0.42
B Diluted 2.41 0.42

AR E A B F T 1% B8 22 711626,049,000/5 7T (=
T\ : 106,193,000 7T) & F A E TR hN
7 F 5 2 260,270,655/ (= T T )\ F :
255,840,477%) 5T & o

AR #EE 2 A T 1% B8 22 711626,049,000/5 7T (=
=)\ : 106,193,000/ 7T) & F A E TG 1N
7 F 5 2 260,270,655/ (= T T )\ F :
255,840,4771%) W sk P E i EREEEE N
EFAFESH -

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$626,049,000 (2008: HK$106,193,000) and the weighted average
number of 260,270,655 (2008: HK$255,840,477) shares in issue during

the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$626,049,000 (2008: HK$106,193,000) and the weighted average
number of 260,270,655 (2008: HK$ 255,840,477) shares in issue during
the year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

There has been no dilutive effect to the earnings per share in 2009 and
2008.
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23. Bl& RAESRAT WA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. Cash and balances with banks

—EEAE —ZTTN\EF
= Group 2009 2008
e REIRITHAE Cash and balances with banks 2,566,436 2,514,066
BRI 2 HRTE 3R Money at call and short notice 8,175,443 10,294,461
10,741,879 12,808,527

24 HE{E VIR IR 5 BB DA A A
n+%ﬂ/\ %ﬁﬁ‘l‘]\*ﬁﬁﬁgﬁtxﬁmg}%

24. Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss

—EBEEhE —TTN\F
£E= Group 2009 2008
FHEEERGENEF Trading securities:
BB EF Debt securities:
-&E L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 1,051,938 923,292
- BB LT - Listed outside Hong Kong 61,348 17,034
-3k — Unlisted 4,681,167 1,268,916
5,794,453 2,209,242
HEEMES Equity securities:
-BELE® - Listed in Hong Kong - 2,587
- BAEIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 76,290 80,809
-JELEH REESHER — Unlisted, interests in investment
funds 13,225 10,503
89,515 93,899
FIEEERGRNES2 Total trading securities 5,883,968 2,303,141
EELNAFEFEEESZ Financial assets designated at fair value
n+)\?‘§ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂirqﬁ‘iéix : through profit or loss:
BBEES Debt securities
-BEEM — Listed in Hong Kong 154,084 -
- BABINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 1,684,054 135,364
-3ELT - Unlisted 1,951,534 3,473,482
3,789,672 3,608,846
REEMES Equities securities:
-BELE™M - Listed in Hong Kong 69,611 15,104
- BB LT - Listed outside Hong Kong 180,747 140,608
-3k — Unlisted 469,363 494,316
719,721 650,028
HEENAFEFEEEZEHTABEN Total financial assets designated at fair
ECMEELEE value through profit or loss 4,509,393 4,258,874
FIEEERZMNESREEARTENE Total trading securities and financial
BEEZFHTABENEREELTE assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 10,393,361 6,562,015
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24, PR R P 100 3 BB DL A A
LIS 0 A B3 9 4 i

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss (Continued)

(%)

—EZThE —ZTTN\EFE
£ Group 2009 2008

BREBKESFANER : Included within debt securities are:

- PEERIEEER GRS — Government bonds included in
ZBFES trading securities 5,570,751 1,812,779
- A WIFRE — Certificates of deposit held = =
- Hib B ES — Other government bonds 686,265 1,471,392
- BEMEBKES — Other debt securities 3,327,109 2,533,917
9,584,125 5,818,088
RZZBZENEFERZZZENFF+_A=+—0H " & As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit
MERBHFREEHRATEBRERFETRE ° held included in the above balances of investments in debts securities.

RZZBENF+ZA=+—0 ' BIEE LlFHE
B =5 RABErEZFAT5EER4,689,792,000/5 7T
“EENF B INEESEBEFEERT
BB ERUNRAEEEINERE S BB EFHD
BENMMIGHRES

TﬁﬂzggﬁﬁLE«] %&? TEUAAFEFEAEE

As at 31 December 2009, Exchange Fund debt securities included in
trading securities above with a market value of HK$4,689,792,000
(2008: HK$NIl) were pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s

trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts.

Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value through

I AEZNeRMEERETHRERRN ST profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:
e
—ETAFE Z—ZT)N\F
£HE Group 2009 2008
- AR BT AR RERETT — Central governments and central banks 6,257,017 3,356,270
- NEEE - Public sector entities 21,650 311,469
- $RIT R H M E - Banks and other financial institutions 637,875 1,381,718
-1 — Corporate entities 3,444,399 1,483,566
- HAh - Others 32,420 28,992
10,393,361 6,562,015
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25. fit4&ph T H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments

RZZEZENGFTZA=T—ARIBITEIAS The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
NzaBAeREATFEDT their fair values as of 31 December 2009 were as follows:
R/ BELHE DFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =R
£8 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) FIEEERBZITETLA 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMNESTAETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHRBHESY Forward and future contracts 75,225,545 233,267 (105,582)
Bk Currency swaps 464,225 3,525 (47,588)
BB\ R AN HR 4 Currency options purchased and written 1,378,430 1,660 (1,639)
b) FIE{TAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
F=EBE Interest rate futures 5,428 - (243)
| = 45 51 Interest rate swaps 8,772,016 62,674 (149,844)
B8\ R ) o R Interest rate options purchased and written 76,215 - (1,491)
o) BmlMtiT4&TA c) Equity derivatives
BB Rk i 2 M AR Equity options purchased and written 66,449 531 (531)
d EMNITETA d) Credit derivatives
ERERAORBREN Credit default swaps 174,485 4,151 (2,193)
RHEEERBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(Bff) &% held for trading 86,162,793 305,808 (309,111)
2) F{EERRABZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) TN R FEE a) Derivatives designated
ZOTETR as fair value hedges
| & 45 2 Interest rate swaps 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)
FEERRABZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (8B A held for hedging 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)

3) MEFETNA L
M - BERIBENAFE
ATERAEBEHFAREN
EHTA-RER

i
ESTEY

MR EHRREZITETA
BE/ (A AF

ERRBZITESRTE
BE/(Af) A

3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes but which are managed in conjunction
with the financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Currency swaps 448,815 66,392 -
Interest rate swaps 1,233,235 91,796 -

Total derivative assets not qualified
as hedges 1,682,050 158,188 -

Total recognised derivative financial
assets/(liabilities) 99,533,650 594,391 (1,218,225)
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25. fiA&mh T A ()

REZZENF+ - A=1+—BARIHB|ITE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

TAEA

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

N2 BB A REATENT : their fair values as of 31 December 2008 were as follows:
aBH/ HELE NEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional EE afE
cE ] Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HFIEEERSZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMEPTAETR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHREEEH Forward and future contracts 62,042,858 266,145 (297,318)
i Currency swaps 1,045,229 8,362 (39,759)
BB\ R AN HR 4 Currency options purchased and written 23,321,550 40,001 (38,141)
b) FIEITAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
M= Interest rate futures 323,175 7,710 (448)
&4 5 Interest rate swaps 16,743,546 202,140 (284,236)
i NSO tunl| P $:i3) 2 Interest rate options purchased and written 1,547,570 23,205 (20,632)
o) BmlMiT4TA c) Equity derivatives
B\ RO H i 2 1 R Equity options purchased and written 79,323 4,943 (4,936)
d) EEMITETA d) Credit derivatives
ERENRBRELR Credit default swaps 236,586 16,709 (16)
FIEEER®ZITELAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/ (AR &t trading 105,339,837 569,215 (685,486)
2) FHEEHRABRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) EEURFEH T a) Derivatives designated
ZUTETR as fair value hedges
A % 4 2 Interest rate swaps 13,402,453 397,443 (1,568,246)
FEHRRABZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (R A held for hedging 13,402,453 397,443 (1,568,246)
3) e EANFAEL R 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
R#% - BEEFENAATE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
SrEHEEEHABEN with the financial instruments designated
CRIAE—REE at fair value through profit or loss
ZITETA
Bk Currency swaps 368,499 491 (14,423
| = f Hf Interest rate swaps 3,658,750 155,337 =
IEEEH AR ZTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
BE/ (AR &5 as hedges 4,027,249 155,828 (14,423)
ERRZITEERIA Total recognised derivative financial
EE/ (BfE) A5 assets/(liabilities) 122,769,539 1,122,486 (2,268,155)
WENMETACATEREZRER 2 EEFE The effect of valid bilateral netting agreements has been taken into
HETHNZE - account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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25. fiA&mh T A ()

LREEERAEAIGTE RRFTARKEET L2
BEFRBERH IR EZEERBRINAEN
SRR INEREE - 2500

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures calculated under Basel Il basis and without taking into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangement that the Group

entered into, are as follows:

—RBAE —TINE

£H Group 2009 2008

PTAET A Derivatives
RS 4 Exchange rate contracts 465,916 529,875
FEEH Interest rate contracts 200,489 410,114
HieaH Other contracts 6,299 13,097
672,704 953,086

WETEZENBEERERBSHRNRS
E U TMRKRERBREE -

EERRMERBHIZ2ZEEELERBE L ZGR
TEERNRAMAE 2B FAEMF 2
BARTIRZHEFREBRENOBNHBEME

R IE R G R ) R 2. 95 5 o

ANEE BB AR R B 2 2 A B 0 R
BREERREBGRIEER 2 EFHFITE - Al H
EEBEHFREETABZHBNRENERR
¥% T B 7 5518 4331,400,0008 7L (ZZEZ N
F : E51E/51,049,171,000/87T) ° HHHIE H B
¥ @ K 2 518 4 391,876,000/8 7T (—ZEZ N
4 : Wr2571,033,660,000/87T) ° HIEFHED 2
FIRKIESsZ [AAFEL A WEESR T A2 F
BB A e

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do

not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category,
available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains on the hedging
instruments were HK$331,400,000 (2008: a loss of HK$1,049,171,000).
The losses on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were
HK$391,876,000 (2008: a gain of HK$1,033,660,000). The net impact
is disclosed in “Net loss arising from financial instruments subject to

fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HEEHRRIEMEEH 26. Advances and other accounts
—ETAFE —ZTTNF
£ Group 2009 2008
EAER KRB RK Loans and advances to individuals
-ERAF~ — Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972
- RIBE R - Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215
- HAth - Others 3,283,575 3,802,967
TEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate entities
- BHIEK — Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960
- RIBE K - Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416
-B5mE - Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482
- EAfty — Others 8,931,945 11,846,061
XEERBAE Gross advances to customers 57,165,159 60,999,073
RITERBAE Gross advances to banks 150,000 179,226
57,315,159 61,178,299
H fth & B (Fi3E38) Other assets (Note 38) 2,606,802 3,283,472
kR : BEER Less: impairment allowances
— {E 5l 3 — Individually assessed (317,017) (550,909)
- fRE A - Collectively assessed (358,212) (298,645)
(675,229) (849,554)
BREEER K EKRZIELER Investments in securities included
2 BHEE (Mzx27) in the loans and receivables
category (Note 27) 8,799,348 6,896,646
ZHEEREEMERB Advances and other accounts 68,046,080 70,508,863

FlRFERETE RS E 5 E15348,026,000/5 T
—TT)\F : 449,373,00056 7T) ©

Included in gross advances to customers above are trade bills of
HK$348,026,000 (2008: HK$449,373,000).
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HEEHRRILMIEE &)

(H) &5 83k B Bk 2 Jies 1 4 A e JE SBHHR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

7= advances to customers

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

AEER - 185G
Impairment allowances -
Individual assessment

RZREXN Hit %
£8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BABRRBIHMELEE 2®E  Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to individuals
—TENF-A-BH&EH Balance at 1 January 2008 3,238 2,627 5,865
BB 1B TR Impairment losses charged 910 1,304 2,214
ReLEEE M IEE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,837) (1,161) (2,998)
WEBREEMIEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,810 468 2,278
BT (B B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (194) - (194)
—ZEENF+=RA=+—H At 31 December 2008 3,927 3,238 7,165
“ETNE-F—BNEH Balance at 1 January 2009 3,927 3,238 7,165
Rl B IS 15 o) 4 Impairment losses reversed (1,793) (284) (2,077)
REEEEETMHEE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,983) (1,500) (3,483)
W el E R E s 2 B0 Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 1,594 823 2,417
BB 2 4 1 R (B o0 3 Unwind of discount on allowance 91) = 91)
“EEAE+ZA=1t—H At 31 December 2009 1,654 2,277 3,931

RERMH - BAMLE
Impairment allowances -
Collective assessment
ER+ RBEN Hity =Ei
£5 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERERBREELEFEZ Movement in impairment
) allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
“EENF-H-HNEH Balance at 1 January 2008 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
REEBERE (2#) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 63,691 (3,351) 59,576 119,916
ReLEEE M EE Loans written off as uncollectible (103,212) = (60,918) (164,130)
W Bl E R EEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 23,330 - 48,313 71,643
B 5, R L 5 B Exchange and other adjustments - - 56 56
—EENF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243
—EENF—A—BNEH Balance at 1 January 2009 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243
BB B Impairment losses charged 117,446 192 268 117,906
KRB ERM R Loans written off as uncollectible (185,833) - (76,612) (212,445)
W Bl B R E#E 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 13,968 - 40,115 54,083
fE 5 A% Exchange adjustments - = (1) 1)
ZBEAF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2009 35,045 3,177 44,564 82,786
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26. BB EHAWRE @) 26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(H) &5 83k B Bk 2 Jies 1 4 A e JE SBHHR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
7= () advances to customers (Continued)

B EZE A - 185 ML

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

BHEX EZRE
Term BEBREN Trade Hity &5t
&8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBK Movement in impairment
AEEEZ2E allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
“EENF-H-HmEH Balance at 1 January 2008 1,092 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
BB 1B IR Impairment losses charged 86,950 21,988 195,395 169,788 474,121
RELEBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (921) (2,120) (44,777 (18,643) (66,461)
WEBEREEMIE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 93 253 2,966 2,180 5,492
BT (B R 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (14) (45) (656) (5,417) (6,132)
—EENF+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
—“ZTHNE—H—HHEH  Balance at 1 January 2009 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
HEBERE (B8) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 6,009 (10,159) 23,725 158,279 177,854
REEEEETM TR Loans written off as uncollectible (42,019) (12,055)  (181,997)  (165,164)  (401,235)
W Bl E R EEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,513 470 3,452 1,989 7,424
Rl (B 2E 185 T 0 1m0 3% Unwind of discount on allowance (760) (236) (1,735) (12,607) (15,338)
BE 5 58 B Exchange adjustments @ - - - @)
“ZZAF+=-HA=1+—H  At31 December 2009 51,941 3,844 45,862 210,800 312,447

BEERE - AT
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX EZRE
Term RBEX Trade Hith &5
£5 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ22S allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
—EZN\F—F—HHES  Balance at 1 January 2008 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
REBERE (2E) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 4,231 (552) (2,964) 61,569 62,284
REEEEETM TR Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (8,043) (8,043)
W Bl E R EEME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 8 8
BE 5, B HL 5 B Exchange and other adjustments 583 12 94 (746) (57)
—EENF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
“ETNFE-A—BHEHR Balance at 1 January 2009 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
HEEBERE Impairment losses charged 16,484 46,229 14,724 37,805 115,242
ReLEEE M EE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (15,373) (15,373)
ZBEAF+=HA=1+—H  At31December 2009 33,678 66,370 29,210 146,013 275,271
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

26. FHHEEHKAEMEE @)
(&) SRAT M Bk - T ME ST A B A I At

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

W T = ) 48 1 5 HR T S AR 3R advances to banks, and accrued interest and other accounts
BB 2E 1 - BB 2 -
e 18 Bl FF 4
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
a nent a nent
MITERKR EFIERM
E- N HhfR1E
Loans Accrued
and interest
advances to and other
5 Group banks accounts
RITERREBR > REGFASMEARRIE Movement in impairment
BEEE 22 allowances on loans and advances
to banks, and accrued interest and
other accounts
—EENFE-A—BHNER Balance at 1 January 2008 = =
VEREY R Impairment losses charged = =
—EZENF+_A=+—8H At 31 December 2008 = =
—ETNF-—A—HBHER Balance at 1 January 2009 = =
VEREY TR Impairment losses charged 155 639
—EEhE+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 155 639
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26. FHHEEHKAEMEE @)

(W) BAG7EF P Bk Je Bk 2 b L 15 HE
R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(¢) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

receivables as follows:

—EENRE —_ZZT)N\HF
5 Group 2009 2008
KREERERE 2 EWERARE Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
—F A Not later than 1 year 2,611,281 3,667,280
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 2,173,340 3,628,393
FFE Later than 5 years 2,492,189 3,110,168
7,276,810 10,405,841
BEMAE 2 KRR Z @& WA Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (986,264) (1,363,390)
BMEREREFE Net investment in finance leases 6,290,546 9,042,451
MEMREREFHEAR 2HTWAT ¢ The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:
—FLAR Not later than 1 year 2,378,059 3,293,847
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 1,873,643 3,216,505
FFE Later than 5 years 2,038,844 2,532,099
6,290,546 9,042,451

RZZETNAFE+_A=1+—H8  LowgEHE
BEBENREEERFGEE(CTEENF :
) o

—EEAFEF A=t BZAEBERREE
HEEATAKE g EHE EURARELNER
& &F /208,069,000 T (=& & )\ F
152,666,000/8 7T) °

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2009 of the Group

amounted to HK$203,069,000 (2008: HK$152,666,000).

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

199



U 265 A PR i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Iy

E;“J/\

ERA IS

HHUY

200

(ABEE T Thz37R)

27, ALAEAE RO R UK R 2 2 1%
&%

£

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category

—RBAE —TINE
Group 2009 2008

BREERMEYGRRRNZEFRE

— R A R E R TR FES R

— IRE RN AR

BRIV AR

RUAHERE D B RER
REWHIRZESFRE

REERN  AEEBSHHOEREHDHERAMS
{18 4 5 1,640,590,000/% 7T (— T T )\ 4F :
6,519,483,000/67T) 2 Al E B HFEE R KE
WK R - BRI EH S B 2 BRI
30 °

RZZZEAF+_A=+—HB KEME
102,758,000/ 7T 2 & H 1% & B a1 A8 [E R
B - REBE RS £17,941,00078 7T 2 BB E
B ZEBNERLREREERREEERER
ERAM — %4 16,048,000/ T 2 7E © BB
ZEREANRAEEERREN AR S RER Y
EHRAE - KRS 01,893,000 T E & RE R
B o

Investments in securities reclassified
from the available-for-sale category

— At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,509,995 5,113,559
— At amortised cost 1,989,010 1,783,087
8,499,005 6,896,646
Individual impairment allowances (1,893) -
8,497,112 6,896,646

Investments in securities classified

as loan and receivables upon

initial recognition 302,236 -
8,799,348 6,896,646

During the year, available-for-sale securities with a market value at the
time of reclassification of HK$1,640,590,000 (2008: HK$6,519,483,000)
were reclassified into the loans and receivables category. Details

relating to these reclassifications are set out in Note 30.

An investment in security with a carrying value of HK$102,758,000 at
31 December 2009 was assessed as individually impaired. A total
impairment charge of HK$17,941,000 was made and this was effected
by first transferring a sum amounting HK$16,048,000 from the
investment revaluation reserve to the income statement, being the
unamortised revaluation deficit relating to this investment since its last
reclassification from the available-for-sale category, and an impairment
charge for the remaining amount of HK$1,893,000.
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27.  AIEAE B ORI U o B

& ()

BREERREEFIBERN 2 EHEEDTHN
T

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category (Continued)

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

are analysed as follows:

—EEBhE —TTN\F

58 Group 2009 2008
BEHES Debt securities:

—H/ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 945,484 187,820

— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,319,540 5,496,534

—JELT - Unlisted 1,536,217 1,212,292

8,801,241 6,896,646

Bk : @R ELERS Less: individual impairment allowances (1,893) -

8,799,348 6,896,646

tmEAHRzTmE Market value of listed securities 6,415,120 4,828,680

RZZBZENER=_FZF) \¢ +=—A=+—8" t As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit

MEBBFREEARNLEDEREFRE ° held included in the above balances of investments in debts securities.

BREEER N ERFIERR
ZBFRERBETHEBRRI DT

—RITREME RS
—bx

RZEBEZENF+_A=Z=+—H EERLRE
93,603,000 7T (=== )\ : 57,429,000/5 7T)
Z IR EFEIREE R RER T IERESDS B
e

Investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables
category are analysed by

categories of issuers as follows:

- Banks and other financial institutions 4,729,417 4,763,102
— Corporate entities 4,071,824 2,133,544
8,801,241 6,896,646

As at 31 December 2009, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$93,603,000 (2008: HK$57,429,000) was pledged with

unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. Available-for-sale securities

—EEhE ZZTINF
£8 Group 2009 2008
BIEES Debt securities:
-BELEm - Listed in Hong Kong 381,931 1,408,161
- BBINETR — Listed outside Hong Kong 4,329,625 7,651,419
- Em - Unlisted 7,231,327 5,055,866
11,942,883 14,115,446
HEEMES Equity securities:
-BHELE™M — Listed in Hong Kong 149,012 37,189
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 188,961 237,905
-3 - Unlisted
-RIEEEE 2R — Interests in investment funds = 30,868
- EAf — Others 620,168 302,787
958,141 608,749
AHEEEESFERE Total available-for-sale securities 12,901,024 14,724,195
RZEZNERZZEE /\ETL A=+—8" 't As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit
MERBFREEHRN BERBETERE held included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
AHEEE Available-for-sale securities are
RETHBERNSTAT analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
- PR RIRIT — Central governments and
central banks 2,841,211 1,037,592
NEWIE — Public sector entities 426,487 91,063
- IRIT R EME RS - Banks and other financial institutions 4,759,879 5,773,998
-1 — Corporate entities 4,871,919 7,820,014
- HAty - Others 1,528 1,528
12,901,024 14,724,195
“ETNFTA=+—H  BEfELiER As at 31 December 2009, Exchange Fund debt securities included in

m%ﬂﬁm%%@ﬁem 429,000 L (ZEZEN
F:mZIEESBERESEERTEERE
BRFRAEEEIINERSBHESFNEERE LT
BHFEE °

AN - BRE AA({E 97,547,000 T (2T )\ 4F
399,022, 000,%575) ZIEBNES B IR R R
1T IERSE & B IE -

debt securities above with a market value of HK$684,429,000 (2008:
HK$NIl) were pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading

and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts.

In addition, non-government bonds with a total carrying value of
HK$97,547,000 (2008: HK$399,022,000) were pledged with unrelated

financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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29. ¥HEIWB/S

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Held-to-maturity securities

—BBAE —TT)N\F

£ Group 2009 2008
BIEE S Debt securities
-BELE™M - Listed in Hong Kong 193,414 -
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,114,930 4,094,474
-3E kT - Unlisted 2,493,938 2,290,457
8,802,282 6,384,931
rtmEAHRzTmE Market value of listed securities 5,846,622 3,572,127
BREEERE Included within debt securities are:
- A WIFRE — Certificates of deposit held = 265,000
- EMESFE — Other debt securities 8,802,282 6,119,931

FEIHES
RETHRBERN DT MT
- PREBUT K RERTT

NT
- 81T R E A BT

-bx

REERN  AEEEFHEREHDERAMS
B 1A A 513,259,762,000/8 7T (=T F )\ £F :
1,201,087,000% 7T) 2 At HE BB EH RFHE
FEHES  REAEEHEEZSEESFNERE
B AFE 5

RZFFNFTZA=1T—0B REHAME
148,065,000/ 7T (—F T /\ 4 : 178,918,000/8
TU) ZHBRFESFEREBHEER TIERES
B o

8,802,282 6,384,931

Held-to-maturity securities are
analysed by issuer as follows:

— Central governments and

central banks 1,100,627 1,135,177
— Public sector entities 201,555 14,917
— Banks and other financial

institutions 5,236,412 4,484,645
— Corporate entities 2,263,688 750,192

8,802,282 6,384,931

During the year, the Group reclassified available-for-sale debt securities
with a total market value at the time of reclassification of
HK$3,259,762,000 (2008: HK$1,201,087,000) as held-to-maturity
securities, reflecting a change in the Group’s intention on holding these

securities to maturity.

As at 31 December 2009, non-government bonds with a total carrying
value of HK$148,065,000 (2008: HK$178,918,000) were pledged with

unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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30. AfhEEZ HH A8

REFR  AEBEATELEEFBRRTEXR D
BeRBEERERREBYIERER - AEERE
DHEABERAGRENERN RARSKEZRHA
RERSEF DB 2 ERREYFA -

BB eREERSETH» BB ZATET
AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Reclassification of financial assets

During the year, the Group reclassified financial assets out of the
available-for-sale category into the loans and receivables category. The
Group had the intention and ability to hold these reclassified loans and
receivables for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

The fair values of reclassified financial assets as of the respective dates

of reclassification are disclosed below:

BE-ZZhE+=-A=+—8H
LFERAEH 2 ECEREE
Financial assets reclassified in the
year ended 31 December 2009

REFA2ERBZLAFE
Fair values on date of

reclassification

HAfEEE SN D EAERREWIE
Reclassified from available-for-sale

to loans and receivables

RZZENF+_A=1T—0  BEEAEFHH
iﬁiZ@%ﬂﬁEE@@i@&Eﬁﬁ@%%Uﬁ
1,684,970,0007% 7t }2.1,603,012,000/5 7T » 2=
FENHEZEREENATERERED A
5,783,929,0007% 7t }26,895,993,000/5 7T, °

AEBERRAFERNEF D BB EERN W
FRFER Tz et - BB - WARSH -

BEBEFRE

Investments in debt securities 1,640,590

As at 31 December 2009, the fair values and carrying values of financial
assets reclassified in the current are HK$1,684,970,000 and
HK$1,603,012,000 respectively. The fair values and carrying values of
financial assets reclassified in the previous year are HK$5,783,929,000
and HK$6,895,993,000.

The Group has recognised the following gains, losses, income and
expenses in the income statement in respect of the financial assets

reclassified in the current year.

BE-ZENF+ZA=+-BLEE BE_ZT)N\F

For the year ended 31 December2009 +—-F=+—H

ENSEE EXDEA EEE

After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2008

BN ON Interest income 62,814 30,445 95,463

RUENAEENEN A BZEREEDEATE
;T/EP;I??FTLN"F‘J HTHETBEH o EEERF
R E 5| B BEEZE D ERERER - I
,\EFPZ%U¥{>I$IE<E’U’ FESFEE - TR
ZEEIRARE B ENTE8AZ [AAFELH
WS T A2 FEE] -

Certain of the financial assets reclassified in the current year have been
hedged by interest rate derivatives under fair value hedge
arrangements. The changes in the value of these assets attributable to
changes in interest rate risk has been recognised in the income
statement and have been offset by the fair value changes in the
hedging interest rate derivatives. The total net loss shown below has
been included in the “Net loss arising from financial instruments subject

to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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30. &RMVEEZ BB @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Reclassification of financial assets (Continued)

HE-ZTRAFE+-A=Z+-ALEE HE-TT/\F

For the year ended 31 December2009 +—-F=+—H
ENOREE BN o EA EEE
After Before For the year ended
reclassification reclassification 31 December 2008
B2 EN I EEREEL Fair value (loss)/gain on the hedged
NEE (BB ks reclassified financial assets (73,556) (59,670) 230,667
RS2 F=ITETR Fair value gain/(loss) on the hedging
AFENE (BB) interest rate derivatives 65,971 53,878 (231,044)
ATEFER Net fair value loss (7,585) (5,792) 377)

RFEARENHERN  AEEEEREREANZE
HREEAZENTHEEESERRENHER
ERRERGIEERN . mEERR AT EEE
301,394,000/87C - R—ZEN\FE+-HA=+—8H
BREENIRSRMEERRERSEERNZER
&R 8 H) A T {E 518 /5286,934,000/% 7T ©

WESF RAE D BT RUEANEN S S
BAEAEHRERHEES - kRN E
EHEREE-FEAF A=t BRD
949,482,000/ 7T °

BN OBAERRERFAZ EMEENERF
MK 15 %55.43% °

TRARERN R A RREBEA LI S B
2 SBARKE Y B AMARL A

In the current year before reclassification, the Group recognised in the
revaluation reserve in equity a fair value loss of HK$301,394,000 on
financial assets reclassified out of the available-for-sale category into
the loans and receivables category. As at 31 December 2008, the fair
value loss recognised in the revaluation reserve in respect of these
reclassified financial assets was HK$286,934,000.

If reclassification of financial assets from the available-for-sale category
into the loans and receivables category in the previous year and the
current year had not taken place, the revaluation reserve in equity would
have decreased by HK$949,482,000 as at 31 December 2009.

Effective interest rates on financial assets reclassified during the year

into loans and receivables averaged to 5.43% p.a.

Presented below are the estimated amounts of undiscounted cash flows
the Group expected to recover for these reclassified financial assets as

at the date of reclassification:

—FE MERLE
—FFHUTF EWME Z2RHE AERE
1year Between 1 Between 2 Over
orless and2years and 5 years 5 years
BEREHFIEE Investments in debt securities 92,714 92,713 278,392 1,874,697
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. BEARKE 31. Investment in an associate

—EEAF —TTN\F
£ Group 2009 2008
[EIEEEFE Share of net assets 954,634 787,838
Bk Goodwill 344,623 344,623
&t Total 1,299,257 1,132,461

—EEBAE —ZTZTN\F
& Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 1,132,461 842,970
FRILHE Addition during the year - 179,718
FRLE Disposal during the year - (41,981)
FEIEBRTR B 4 Share of results, net of tax 195,770 120,589
R IB IR E EhHHEE Share of investment revaluation

reserves, net of tax (6,784) -

B UL B Dividend received (22,950) -
MEHER Exchange differences 760 31,165
+=-—HA=+—H At 31 December 1,299,257 1,132,461

REBENFER_ZFENFT+_HA=1+—"HZH
BRAZEEZERMT

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at
31 December 2009 and 2008:

iR B DL
o it B Percentage of
Place of interest in ownership
=% incorporation FTEEHK ZEEAFE Z—ZTNF
Name and operation Principal activities 2009 2008
BERTT hEARATE HRAT
Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking 20% 20%

FEERTZIBERHARR ZHER R AR
188 - ARFBRITR=ZZEZN\F+A=Z+—HR
BISFERRIN 2 3% T 18 - FRE EERITRER B

BE20% c RZEZLEREE_ZTZT/N\FTA
Zt+—HZA  ERAKEN SRS ESEFERTT

EET - URAEGRIELRBMBERME =
BRITABENTE)  AEEREERTAH

BEAT -

The investment in Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ?”) is held by DSB, a
subsidiary of the Company. On 21 October 2008, following the
completion of a further acquisition of 3% equity interest, DSB’s total
interest in BOCQ was increased to 20%. In 2007 and prior to 21 October
2008, BOCQ was treated as an associate on the ground that the Group,
through its participation in BOCQ’s board meetings, review and
approval of strategies and policies, could exercise significant influence
on BOCQ.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
32. HFEEHEELE 32. Investments in jointly controlled entities
—ETAFE —ZTTNF
£E= Group 2009 2008
JE LTI - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
¥ —HRAESEE 2 BEREREE Loan receivable from a jointly
controlled entity 33,286 37,571
53,286 57,571
FE(R U IR 12 1B Share of post-acquisition reserves 7,505 2,402
60,791 59,973
RZZBZENGF+ A=+ —HANEEIEHIEE The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2009:
N
LEEEZzESL
= 11 ith 26 FTEEBRRKLE B Percentage of
£ Place of Principal activities interest
Name incorporation and place of operation in ownership
SRR A R A 7 ) REER - BE 13.333%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REEEAER A A BB RN KBRS EF 13.333%
(0)]
Bank Consortium Trust Company Hong Kong ZREART » BE S
Al
Limited Trustee and custodian =
services for retirement 8
[
fund schemes, Hong Kong E
<
>
AEBEREIERBBR AT 2 BB A RKR The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by =
FTIRITIA - MIREEEAR AR HREERE DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company a
RARzEEMBAT - Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank Consortium Holding E
Limited. 3
n
g
H—HRAEGEE EREREAEEE - Wi The loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity is secured and is é
—RIEFEEETRRE - extended on normal commercial terms. =
2
O
Z
<
=z
e
(O]
=
7
T
<
a
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

33. MIBARKEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Investments in subsidiaries

—EZhE —ZTTN\EF

N Company 2009 2008
’E BRI Investments at cost:
BB LMD Shares listed in Hong Kong 2,746,127 1,564,566
JEETRRR S Unlisted shares 357,636 357,636

3,103,763 1,922,202
JFE W B 188 2 B 3RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 732,904 1,710,495

3,836,667 3,632,697
FEATB B A R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries (57,588) (39,587)

3,779,079 3,593,110
EmkmmE Market value of listed shares 9,477,945 3,810,472

FEUL, /TP B R 2 FURS R - 28 RIR

Y

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

33. KMBAFRBE @)

REZBZENF T _A=+—"BARRFEZI2NE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

RAEAT - 31 December 2009:

RO E R BEfT

#Mi%  Percentage of shares held EERRAE

NGRS TEER Place of E# Bk Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share capital
AFBRTEEER DA REEMR BA

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.1% - HK$1,111,758,869
AHEEBRRA REER BA

Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
YN il YN REXEH BRE

Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited General insurance Bermuda 100% - HK$100,000,000
REZMR BRE

Dah Sing Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
AR REER AR RERHIE Bh

Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% - HK$500,000
AR REBR A RBR AR BA

Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited Insurance services Hong Kong 100% - HK$20
REZMR BRE

Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
ASRBE BRE

Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited  Life assurance Bermuda 100% - US$25,000,000
REZMR RERUES

Dah Sing Medical Science Investment Inc.  Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - US$50,000
TR BA

Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
TR Bh

DSE Investment Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000

(Note (a)) (3£ (F))

REEKR EEf5

Filey Investment Corporation Investment holding Panama 100% - uss$2
NERE KBRS

High Standard Investment Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - Uss$2
MKERBBRAA TEEX BA

Newinner Investments Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
TR BA

WOF Escrow Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
ERERAR REER BA

World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HKS$1
REZMR KBRS

Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - USS$1
TEeX BE

DSFH Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$2
TR KBRS

DSGI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
TR KBRS

DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
REZMR KBRS

DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. MHEARIHEE @) 33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

FrEROE R BEfT

ZMi%  Percentage of shares held EERRAE

NGRS TEER Place of E# Bk Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share capital
REZMR RERUAS

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
TR KBRS

Four Winds International Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% Uss$2
REEXBRNRA TEEX BE

Luen Fung Investment Company, Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$303,000
BFRRERAE e R

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau - 96% MOP120,000,000
RFAASRBRERAR ASRBE A

Macau Life Insurance Company Limited Life Insurance Macau - 95.8% MOP920,000,000
AHRITBEBRRA RAT BA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$3,600,000,000
RHRIT (PED) BRAF RAT mEARAME

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 74.1% RMB1,000,000,000
ERRTERAT RAT BE

MEVAS Bank Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$400,000,000
RPEERTERAA RAT R

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 74.1% MOP225,000,000
NERE KBRS

Channel Winner Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% USS$1
AN EBRERERAA TEEX Bh

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$20
AHBBEER R TEEX BA

Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$25,000,000
AHRBRERER A R Bh

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$200,000
RE RERUES

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 74.1% USS$1
A ERBRRT REBARH BA

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$100,000
REEK BA

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$9,998
TR KBRS

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% USS$1
REEK BA

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$1
REEKR BA

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$1
TR KBRS

DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% USS$1
AHESBBR R EREE Bh

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$10,000,000
RBAR Bh

MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$50,000
REENE (EE)BRAR B2 Bh

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$450,000,000
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33. MtEARIHE (#)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FritRBE B BET

HMitY  Percentage of shares held LERBAR

DEER TEEH Place of EE M Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share capital
Tmex RERRES

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
NERE RERRES

South Development Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
HEREBR N NERE £

Vanishing Border Investment Property investment Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$20

Services Limited

TEeX RERRES

Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
RAT KEAS

D.A.H. Hambros Bank Banking Guernsey - 55.9% US$8,000,000

(Channel Islands) Limited

REER BRE

D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda - 55.9% US$1,000,000
MNBEEARRAA NERE 0

Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$1
MNEEERRAA NERE 0

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$1
NERE RERRES

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.1% US$1
K EBERATF TEex BA

Ever Silver Holdings Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$2

CERBMARXSMBRAR LT

% D. A. H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
Limited - AFrER7T (FE) AR AR - RFIRHER
TAERRDAE RFIRRAE R D E FORFIA SRR
BIRDF R Bt 5| BRFEEE AINE MK SZH) A 7
G Hih A RIHERBEL o

BRAFIRITEBERARRAFBITERAE R
NREBRARSIN - EApiE ARG R/AR RIS
M I 78 LA SN 77 RE AR SZ - EAR R BB R 1
FXSZ 2 Fh AR BB ARFEEL

i
() DSE Investment Services Limitedf 2% 17 & 38 A%
HN + INEEITHR(ET00 B TR E L AR o

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Except for D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited, Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Macau
Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified

above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
which are public limited companies, all the above companies are private
companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have substantially
the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated private

company.

Note:
(@) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

34. P MIEEEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Goodwill and intangible assets

wOER  BFEE
&80  BEEE  BREE

BREE Core  Customer
B  Contract deposit  relationship Gk H
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles Trade name Total
KA Cost
ZZENE-A-BR At 1 January 2009 and
“ZENE+-A=T-H 31 December 2009 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2ERE/ B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
“EENF-A-H At 1 January 2009 - 23,943 45,293 29,677 - 98,913
FRXE (FiE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - 2,556 8,936 7,830 - 19,322
ZEENETZA=+-A At 31 December 2009 - 26,499 54,209 37,507 - 118,235
REE Carrying value
ZBENF+ZAZ1-HR At 31 December 2009 950,992 - 26,354 31,749 80,927 1,090,022
BOER  BPBE
A%  EBREE @ EBWEE
EREE Core  Customer
e Contract deposit  relationship 7% R
£E Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
XA Cost
ZZE\§-A-Bk At 1 January 2008 and
“ZZ\F+-fA=1-H 31 December 2008 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2RHE/ S Accumulated impairment/amortisation
“ZZ\E-A-H At 1 January 2008 - 19,661 35,005 21,576 - 76,242
ERXHE (FiE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - 4,282 10,288 8,101 - 22,671
“Z2Z\#+t-A=+-H At 31 December 2008 - 23,943 45,293 29,677 - 98,913
REE Carrying value
“EEN\E+-A=F-H At 31 December 2008 950,992 2,556 35,290 39,579 80,927 1,109,344

EERABRZEBVEEREAN  ROEREE
FRARETVEEMSARBEREZENFREL
“EZARFHEE  RARERAEREEF
R 5 LR (8 S 18 % DA B AR A0 B R AR E & 1R 1

N e

EEOEERTREEMEREBHHEERAL
REeEABM (FREELBEN]) IERERE °
TEBMAFREEHE 2D

Intangible assets with finite life including contract intangibles, core
deposit intangible and customer relationship intangibles are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is with indefinite life and is tested annually
for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to geographical area of operation and business
segment for impairment losses assessment. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.
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34. BERLEEEE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)
“EENF+=H=t-HER
—EBNFT=A=t+-H
As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009

B ERT B A SR1T
Commercial Personal BEEK R &t
£8 Group Banking Banking Treasury Insurance Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - - 318,667
R Macau 199,140 260,408 33,475 139,302 632,325
395,618 382,597 33,475 139,302 950,992

EFEYEERBERARIBRESBER (CET
N ) o

HEABFERENR BLREBEFEZEAE
BEMEEZHReEEBNENEHE - ZTEIE
FHEEREEBAEMGHRESTGIECEES
=F2EABRESR - REAT BB ZEARS
MR ZEERE - BUABREFIERE2%HHER
FURBEKERNHEERN - MEAZRETIEE
RAEBRHERITERSHEEESN 2 EESE
BRRI 2 EARKAINEFIIE - RITEBRESE
EEBAZENIREA11.04% c MRREBRREEL
BB 2 BhER & 311.43%

PSR EET 2R ERFE T ERA2RREESER
5 2 Al EFER R (RITHTE A% + R ETS
B2%) REMEMEES 8 =FBE 2 FEAKA -
kARG 2 BARSRENZERAFE - B
VAR E S R ER2% HEBISE AF AR EXEAIES
o FTIER Z B IRE HEEANANEERERITE
B2 BARRANETSE - ZARERREIT 2
EENMAT11%E12% 2 -

No impairment loss on goodwill and trade names are identified in the
year (2008: Nil).

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the senior management and approved by the Board covering a three-
year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections
in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth
rate after fifth year. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s and
its Banking Group’s weighted average cost of capital depending of type
of businesses carried out by the CGU, which are 11.04% for CGUs
under banking business and 11.43% for CGU under insurance

business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance
business with reference to similar business services transactions, and
projected revenue in the approved budget covering a three-year period
and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections in the
medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate after
fifth year. The discount rate in the range of 11% to 12% used is based
on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s weighted average cost of capital

depending of type of businesses carried out.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35.  F7 A T Al [ R 35. Premises and other fixed assets
R
RERRE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and A%
£8 Group Premises  motor vehicles Total
HE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HULFE Year ended 31 December 2008
FHIREFE Opening net book amount 2,084,437 144,329 2,228,766
i Additions 970 91,408 92,378
& Disposals (11,479) (4,696) (16,175)
EfhEE Revaluation deficit (152,595) = (152,595)
ENOHHE Reclassification 28,427 = 28,427
FEZ M (FHE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (59,042) (52,065) (111,107)
EREEFE Closing net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694
—EENF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2008
A/ fEE Cost/valuation 1,890,718 444 217 2,334,935
ZREHE Accumulated depreciation - (265,241) (265,241)
RHEFE Net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694
BE-_ZEENFE+-A=+t—HLEEE Year ended 31 December 2009
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694
i Additions - 62,837 62,837
E#BE 2 EmRE Recovery of previous revaluation

deficits 1,453 - 1,453
EXRA Revaluation surplus 411,918 - 411,918
HE Disposals (3,968) (2,186) (6,154)
FrESH (iEF12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (55,642) (57,575) (113,217)
FRIEAFE Closing net book amount 2,244,479 182,052 2,426,531
—EEAE+ZB=+—H At 31 December 2009
A/ & E Cost/valuation 2,244,670 483,772 2,728,442
RENE Accumulated depreciation (191) (301,720) (301,911)
IREFEE Net book amount 2,244,479 182,052 2,426,531
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

35. 7B R H At [ B E (D)

AEBTERN<HMER-_ZENF T A=+
— BT o WM RB L EXREIAEMME —K
FERES (HEREXER) BRAR GRURE
BRFEBEAZME) kE— KPR &S ORF)
BRAR GUMIRPIZ ) B ARmSEEE
AT o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2009.
Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and Mainland

China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in Macau.

WITEREBRKAZEESNR - EEFEOT - If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would
be as follows:
—EBEBAE —ZTZTN\F
= Group 2009 2008
B AR Cost 1,083,360 1,266,991
2EFE Accumulated depreciation (205,287) (234,494)
EREFE Net book amount 878,073 1,032,497

NEEER-_ZFAF+_A=+—HZRAH
EEIHMT

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2009 of the above

assets is as follows:

R
RERRE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and B
£8 Group Premises  motor vehicles Total
24D RN At cost 422 483,772 484,194
BiEE-—TTNE At valuation - 2009 2,244,248 - 2,244,248

2,244,670 483,772 2,728,442
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(BT A5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
35.  f7EE B H At [ € B A () 35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)
NEBER=_ZEZENET_A=1+—HB2ZKAK The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2008 of the above
HESTAT assets is as follows:
A
RERARE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and =ar
£8 Group Premises  motor vehicles Total
R At cost - 444,217 444,217
BEE-—ZTN\F At valuation - 2008 1,890,718 - 1,890,718

1,890,718 444,217 2,334,935
TEZEREFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
—EBhE —"TITN\F
&= Group 2009 2008
T e Leaseholds
EEBFAEZH ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ER+F2MH) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,879,709 1,561,707
TEB B AINEE 2 R EIHE A Held outside Hong Kong on
(E+tER+EZHE) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 364,770 329,011

2,244,479 1,890,718

ey

E;“J/\

By EEE

At
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

36. HEWE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. Investment properties

—EEhE _—TITN\F
5 Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 459,304 547,574
g Additions 118,007 594
E=R ik Reclassification - (28,427)
H & Disposals (81,959) -
EHEAFEWK(E18) Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation 73,307 (60,437)
+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 568,659 459,304

AEERENESH ZHER_FTENF+ A
=+ —HET  BFHERBLERSFREMSE
—RFEAEH (HEREERERA) BRAR (B
REERDEBEAZ2YME) E - AN FRAMAEH (R
P BERAE (RIRNRPIZ M) RARTISE
EREEHET -

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December

2009. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by

independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and

Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong

and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment

properties in Macau.

REYHE 2 EHFEERE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
—EEhE _—TTIN\F
5 Group 2009 2008
Giski=p:i Leaseholds
EBEBFAEZH ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(Et+tZR+F2[) lease (between 10-50 years) 511,545 419,578
TEBBAINEE 2 R EIE A Held outside Hong Kong on
(E+ERT+F2MH) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 57,114 39,726
568,659 459,304
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37. RMIFMESEZAZMREHEME

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

—RBAE —TINE

£H Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 1,274,452 1,015,538
FRFIRE S| Bz 80 Additions from current year new business 157,009 201,028
SREBENRE 2L Movement from in-force business (36,790) (20,069)
HAh Others (169,003) 77,955
+=A=+—8 At 31 December 1,225,668 1,274,452

38. HAhEE

38. Other assets

—RBAE —TINE

£H Group 2009 2008
DIREE Reinsurance assets 232,190 249,657
FE W RIE R TR IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,604,247 1,951,544
FESTFIE Accrued income 542,683 838,240
HAh Others 227,682 244,031

2,606,802 3,283,472

39. FrEEHEMHBMWAMS

%8

39. Trading liabilities

—EEhE Z—ZINF
Group 2009 2008

HEBERERBEEES

40. R DAPAEGEHE HIL 2B 5 AR
% P K

L]

Short sales of treasury bills and

treasury bonds 2,068,300 1,791,419

40. Deposits from customers designated at fair value
through profit or loss

—EEhE Z—ZINF
Group 2009 2008

AR

R-ETAER-TENER - AEERERY
W RERRS R PR AU A T B R AR
BB ARN -

R-ZFZENEF+-_A=+—H AEEELER
FIEHEHRZES QRN STEERA LY 28R
H1& 510,000,000 7T °

Structured deposits - 471,065

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any deposits from customers at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2008, the amount that the Group would be
contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders of these deposits

is HK$10 million higher than the above carrying amount.
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41. FPEXK

EL]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. Deposits from customers

—BBAE —TT)N\F

& T BB A R R
BEER
R RESER

KPP O&BRBEWFIEAD SR E A BEE#A
YEI I T 2 17 7767,439,000/8 7T (—TEZ )\ £ ¢
10,862,000/ 7T) ©

BREMENI MERMEPERERIET

Ko

42. BT E

Group 2009 2008
Demand deposits and current accounts 12,358,269 7,977,794
Savings deposits 14,040,614 9,855,598
Time, call and notice deposits 61,971,188 62,113,686

88,370,071 79,947,078

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$67,439,000 (2008:
HK$10,862,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than fixed deposits, all other customer deposits carry variable

rates.

42. Certificates of deposit issued

—EZAE ZZZTTNF
£8 Group 2009 2008
HEENAFEFEEBEZEHT AEBERE Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 520,790 1,605,722

RER R KR T AT E R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 686,513 629,096
R ERAK AT BR At amortised cost 852,707 2,420,167
2,060,010 4,654,985

REZZENFER-_ZFZNFA  AEEREGRY
ﬁAE?ﬁE’\ RIEEEADETERBR/URFEFE
HESE5 AR ©

EENATEFEBEEE T ABR 2 BEEITT
Al g EAN TS E RS (Bla0 - R  HNE) &
HEEMREEZ2ATEEZSHH AR KR
17,390,00078 7T (ZZE = /)\F : % /54,619,000
75 7T) & E5186,626,000/8 T (Z T T )\F : [BEA
2,013,000/ 7T) °

NEBE I S BITERE D B IRE LY
SRR _EFTZI 2 BRE{E{K 18,000,000 T (=
= )\ 4 : {£36,000,000/& T) °

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The change in the fair value of certificates of deposit issued and
designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in
external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of
HK$17,390,000 (2008: a gain of HK$4,619,000) and that attributable to
own credit standing is a loss of HK$6,626,000 (2008: a loss of
HK$2,013,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$18 million

lower (2008: HK$36 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

43, DBITMEBERSF

EL]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Issued debt securities

—RBAE —TINE
Group 2009 2008

BENARFEFEBEEBFTARR
R R E R T A FE R

RPN AR

R-BENER-ETN\ER - AEERERY)
Y RERRS S B BT B S AUA T B3
EEEY LN ER

REZZENFT-_A=+—B BBITEKE
BETIIES

e  RHR1T2ZZE AN E 2 FDah Sing MTN
Financing Limitedi& {8 AR 1T 2 BUMN T 5
REIZEATE - RZTTWFE A —HE%
T FEEFRER 5 F7_ETh 2 150,000,000 7T
€8 % 150,000,000 0% BB ERE L EE
([ZERRELEER]) - ZARRELE
BHAFBTER  AEER  REZH
Eﬁf$$ﬂ¢+_ﬂ*5'ﬁﬁ$kﬁ
ARIBITHETH N RIn AR A28 E
# .

o KHRITEBEBUNTIS R EIZIETE -
MN_ZEE+EFE+— A - BABTILEF N
R 5 Fff £ 2 450,000,0005% 7T iR 4 21 5E &
ER((ZEEEE] - ZTBEBZER
FHEE413% ZEINPRAEZZTE
F+—A=H EXABBRIRITHET
BRI R B e B e R )% B AL -

REZBZENEFE+ZA=+—8 ' EEEUAQFE:T
EHHBH T ABRZEBTEBRESFERIN
% HERE (fla0 - R - HNE) REGEEMRRTE

N EZB) 5 R A E1821,398,0007% 7T & K
zﬁgﬁp®mxv$%§&k%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%
T ERF RS A RN B2 FEEUA EFT7I 2 BREER
29,000,0007 7T °

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss - 1,181,486

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) - 459,654
At amortised cost - 1,162,500
- 2,803,640

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any issued debt securities at fair value through profit or loss.

Issued debt securities as at 31 December 2008 comprised the following:

. The US$150 million fixed rate and the US$150 million floating
rate Senior Guaranteed Notes (the “Senior Guaranteed Notes”)
issued by Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DSB, on 1 December 2004 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme which are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Senior Guaranteed Notes were
guaranteed by DSB, unsecured, and had a final maturity on
1 December 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the fixed rate Senior Guaranteed

Notes was determined on floating rate basis.

° The HK$450 million 2-year Fixed Rate Note (the “Fixed Rate
Note”) issued by DSB on 2 November 2007 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme, and is listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Fixed Rate Note
carried interest at 4.13% per annum and had a final maturity on
2 November 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the Fixed Rate Note was

determined on floating rate basis.

At 31 December 2008, the change in the fair value of issued debt
securities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to
changes in external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss
of HK$21,398,000 and that attributable to own credit standing is a gain
of HK$2,218,000. The amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the holders of these issued debt securities

is HK$29 million lower than the above carrying amount.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44, RIEEE 44. Subordinated notes
—EZhE —ZTTN\EF
2009 2008
150,000,000 A — T — AEFIHH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FRBEER GER) Rate Notes due 2015 (Note (a)) 1,163,235 1,162,500
150,000,000E A = —EFEIHH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ERREGHE GEL) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (b)) 1,145,786 1,040,438
150,000,000E LA = Z — N FEIHAR US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FREBERK GER) Rate Notes due 2016 (Note (c)) 1,163,235 1,162,500
200,000,0003 7T K A JE B & B ET US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated
GET) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (d)) 1,129,979 1,903,278
4,602,235 5,268,716
HEENAFEFEEEZEHT AEE Designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,145,786 1,040,438
RER R E RN AT EY R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 1,129,979 1,903,278
TRE SRR AR I AR At amortised cost 2,326,470 2,325,000
4,602,235 5,268,716

R-ZZENFER_ZTN\FA  AEEREGRY

IR IR E TR EEHRAR T EFERER
BEE AR -

i

(F) WDAFRITR=ZZEZERAFHNA=TNABETZ

150,000,000 7T 7= [E FR B A2 5 B £ T W 45 7 5E
AHTINERNZ S EEER ((EF]) - WEER
BR-_E—RERAA AR - RIZUHEERA
“T-ZHFRANE c ARTREHRENEER
B WEHZHESR=(EAHETRITRZERES
MA+2F - UB=EABT—K - 2% HE
BAREEEUEERED  FANFEEETA
Eﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%%*ﬁﬁ+%¥°%
BEEBSERBEEAIME  RFRITAIRERNE
3R A AR BB BNF R KA AREEEE
BIFTA (FEF65) EFH o

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

of any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@) This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 April 2005 (the

“Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Notes

will mature on 6 May 2015 with an optional redemption date falling on 6

May 2010. Interest rate for the Notes is set on a quarterly basis based on

3-month LIBOR plus 60 basis points from the issue date to the optional

redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest

rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 160

basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the

HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the

optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

44.

Rt

(2)

].

RAEAEH (80

I

- ()

D ARFRIR_ZEZTRAFENATNBETZ
150,000,0003 L& B5.451 % EERER ST £
MW AEAMMERNEERERES ([E
®l) c WEBBHER_Z—+tENAT/\BHE
HoREMBEERA-T——F//\A+/\A &
BOTAEHBEEBEEEER  £EK5451% &
FERME—IXK - B MEBREEEEEER
e FRNFEEETAER AT HEBRREE
EHEERM_BE-T2TF wESELESERE
SRR - REERITRI RN IB B E R A A
HRFIENFBAEEEEERME GEHH) &
1 o REIRITINE B —ERR ERTTR] S A RI Hi &
A IS ETS B & E I SR R AR TTIRTT R F 47 2
RERNZEF SR -

T ARFBRITR=_TSTAEAB-BEITZ
150,000,0003% 7T 1E #7 A3 32 5 Fr b i S 4% R 5E
AT INERZ SR ERR ((EF]) o LEERS
BR-E—R"FEAA=HEH - BIEHEERA
A=A - ARTAEZHBEHESR
B WEHZHESER=EAHETRITRERS
tE+REEF  WE=EABET IR - Ei& - fn
EREREREEEEABE  FRHOFESER]
REMBABMETRITAZEFSM—BEHTF - 5
BEBSEREEIE - KHFIBITAIAEZHEE
BHRERBEHRFEN KB AREEEER
FiE GESP») & ©

WD AFBIR =TT LE-_A+ BRI
200,000,000 7T 7£ ¥ h14% 22 5 B k£ 1 3 1% 578
BEENINEARRE B KAREER ([EH]) -
hEEHZREEBEERA-S—tHF A+t
BEIE - AETAEHBREREER £84
6.253% @ BEFHE—K - Hig - WEBKRE
BEUEEEAERD  ARONEEETA=EA
HETRTRERSN—BNTEHT - ERES
BB RTELIE - KFIRITAIAEBHEER
FEFISEARFEN KA UEEEERBRAS
GEEBD) &R - RFTRITIANE B2 —BIBRERITEI L
=42 RS A I E 15 80 B E F S =R R AR TR
TREREABEWNFEFEMRK -

R_ZBZAFR - AFRITATEELEERER
S #FE/RT70,000,000% T2 HDRE - MABL
ELBEENESEESERZREMAERED
i - ZAELERERENREZEZEDHA
Fe Wik [EBRERS 2 FKRE]AT °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(©

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August 2005
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 18 August 2017 with an optional redemption date
falling on 18 August 2012. Interest at 5.451% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus 220 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 2 June 2006 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The Notes will mature on 3 June 2016 with an optional
redemption date falling on 3 June 2011. Interest rate for the Notes is set
on a quarterly basis based on 3-month LIBOR plus 75 basis points from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the Notes will bear
interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 100 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but
not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation
reasons on interest payment date.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at 6.253% p.a. is
payable semi annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset
and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An interest rate
swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to
floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an
international bank.

In 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total notional
principal of US$70,000,000 at a discount, and such repurchased Notes
were cancelled after receiving prior approval of the HKMA. The difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is
included under “Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts” in the
consolidated income statement.
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44, BEET &)

EEAATEE B HE B ABm 2 BEEKA
BRSNS (fFl4n « FIZK - HNE) RESE MK
NEE 2 AN TEREHREE_TTNF+=_A=1
— B IEFE 5 5 AU 2536,463,0007%8 T (ZZEN
4 : [551883,296,0007%7T) K E1E141,076,000/4 7T
(ZZZT)\F : W25199,292,000/7T) °

AEBENEREEFDHRFZANENNSER
A P32 BRE{E1K104,000,000/8 ¢ (—2E
J\E : {£231,000,000/8 7T) °

45. HABER B K¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Subordinated notes (Continued)

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market
prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of HK$36,463,000 (2008: a
loss of HK$83,296,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is a
loss of HK$141,076,000 (2008: a gain of HK$199,292,000) respectively in
the year ended 31 December 2009.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$104 million

lower (2008: HK$231 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

45. Other accounts and accruals

“BBAE —TT)N\F

5 Group 2009 2008

REEHZ Other liabilities under
HihaE insurance contracts 1,271,083 1,122,461
HAth Others 2,543,053 2,951,805
3,814,136 4,074,266

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

223



A 265 e A B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Iy

E;“J/\

ERA IS

= = —
==
L g —

HHUY

HHh

L

224

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
45. FH AR H R FE R @) 45. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)
RN ZEMBEITHOT : Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:
“EENE
2009
PROE
g Reinsurers’ FE

58 Group Gross Share Net
— R AR B General Insurance
KU RELZ RERE Unearned premium reserve 105,075 (54,788) 50,287
BEBZERE Notified claims 272,253 (161,335) 110,918
TERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 14,449 (3,450) 10,999
KEMRR 2 R Unexpired risk reserve 4,071 (1,693) 2,378

395,848 (221,266) 174,582
1 Life
RELEES Policy provisions 875,235 (5,996) 869,239
&5t Total 1,271,083 (227,262) 1,043,821
—RRR General Insurance
KRRz RERE Unearned premium reserve
—HA—H At 1 January 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
RERA Written premiums 273,457 (146,541) 126,916
ERIZRE Earned premiums (308,348) 177,730 (130,618)
+—A=+—8 At 31 December 105,075 (54,788) 50,287
CERRCARNERER2ZE R Notified and incurred but not reported

RERERZHE claims, and unexpired risk reserve

EEHRCRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
TERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
KERRR 2 FHE Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459
—H—H At 1 January 245,269 (139,761) 105,508
B EA Claims paid (96,067) 36,289 (59,778)
BEREZRE Claims incurred 141,571 (63,006) 78,565
+=-A=+-8 At 31 December 290,773 (166,478) 124,295
BEBZERE Notified claims 272,253 (161,335) 110,918
EERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 14,449 (3,450) 10,999
RIERER 2 B Unexpired risk reserve 4,071 (1,693) 2,378

290,773 (166,478) 124,295
R Life
REEFES Policy provisions
—HA—H At 1 January 737,226 (2,679) 734,547
EXARE Claims paid (677,906) 9,646 (668,260)
BERANRE Claims incurred 815,915 (12,963) 802,952
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 875,235 (5,996) 869,239
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

—EENF
2008
DRI
k] Reinsurers’ gl
& Group Gross Share Net
— R R General Insurance
KU RELZ REFEE Unearned premium reserve 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
EEWMIRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
FERNERERZIRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
REMER 2 FE Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459
385,235 (225,738) 159,497
=1 Life
REEHS Policy provisions 737,226 (2,679) 734,547
=H Total 1,122,461 (228,417) 894,044
— B IRER General Insurance
RAREZ REREE Unearned premium reserve
—A—H At 1 January 216,121 (156,652) 59,469
RERA Written premiums 252,807 (138,149) 114,658
ERMZIRE Earned premiums (328,962) 208,824 (120,138)
+=A=+—8H At 31 December 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
EERRERNERERZIRE - Notified and incurred but not
RIEMER < reported claims,
and unexpired risk reserve
BEBZERE Notified claims 184,817 (115,569) 69,248
FEANERERCEE Claims incurred but not reported 4,058 (726) 3,332
KEMRR 2 &R Unexpired risk reserve = 2,202 2,202
—A—8 At 1 January 188,875 (114,093) 74,782
EXRE Claims paid (84,067) 34,875 (49,192)
BERANRE Claims incurred 140,461 (60,543) 79,918
+-A=+—8H At 31 December 245,269 (139,761) 105,508
BEERZRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
FAMBREHRZRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
REMER 2 FE Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459
245,269 (139,761) 105,508
=1 Life
RELEHES Policy provisions
—A—H At 1 January 579,484 (2,600) 576,884
ExXfRE Claims paid (542,469) 6,328 (536,141)
BEANRE Claims incurred 700,211 (6,407) 693,804
+=A=+—8H At 31 December 737,226 (2,679) 734,547
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46. HRWREEARESEAZ AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance

contracts
—ETAFE Z—ZTTNF

& Group 2009 2008
HEARBEHNREFEAZRRAERRE Gross future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 4,794,792 4,494,456
DR ER Reinsurers’ share (4,929) (21,240)
HERHRBEEHNREREAZRAREBEFHE Net future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 4,789,863 4,473,216

EHRBRANREREAZRREEZ EDER
mF :

The movement in future liabilities to policyholders under long-term

insurance contracts is summarised as below:

—EEhE —ZTTN\F
£H Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 4,473,216 3,606,798
BEENZRE Claims incurred 316,647 866,418
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 4,789,863 4,473,216

47. WHAEFLIA
FEFREEENBENEEIEERT G EANITE

HI[E] — TSR G AR 5 AT AT o HEH Z S FRm
N

47. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

—EBBhE —ZTTN\EF
£ Group 2009 2008
EEFRIBEEE Deferred income tax assets 78,178 162,804
RIETIE B F Deferred income tax liabilities (15,366) (9,910)
—EBBhE —_ZTTN\EF
£ Group 2009 2008
BEEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets:
-AETZEABKE ZELEREEE — Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than
12 months 294,421 358,519
RIEFRIBAE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
-EET-ZREAREEZEERESE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than
12 months (231,609) (205,625)
62,812 (152,894)
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47. WAEBLIA (&)

BIETIRAE BT ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

—ggAE —TT\F

£ Group 2009 2008
—HA—H At 1 January 152,894 (88,177)
AU 2 BR A B 78 (o) 8% Tax credited to the income statement

(MF3%19) (Note 19) 7,358 11,974
REERERARIE (T H) /= # Tax (charged)/credited to equity (97,440) 229,097
+=-—HA=+—H At 31 December 62,812 152,894

BEERBEEERABRANFEZEE) - TEER
HRTORE SEE N RE 2T

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

9% JAE 8 JE A - Deferred income tax assets:
BEXH
REERRERE NERBAE REth
Impairment  Accelerated REEM Deferred
allowances and tax HEBE  Investment  expenses ait
£E Group provisions depreciation ~ Taxlosses  revaluation  and others Total
“2Z)\5-f-H At 1 January 2008 29,954 612 1,157 127,293 6,059 165,075
R A e Credited to the
income statement 5,725 12 1,895 - 12,635 20,267
PER R AE & Credited to equity - - - 179,236 - 179,236
BNAE Reclassification - - - - (6,059) (6,059)
“ZE\Et-F=1-H At 31 December 2008 and
k=ZEENE-R-H 1 January 2009 35,679 624 3,052 306,529 12,635 358,519
RREEAREE/ (FiH) Credited/(charged) to the income statement 14,732 (624) (120) = (12,498) 1,490
REEREAT Charged to equity - - - (79,255) - (79,255)
ERZER Exchange differences ) - - - - )]
EEipE Reclassification - - - - 13,669 13,669
ZEEAFTAST-A At 31 December 2009 50,409 - 2,932 227,274 13,806 294,421
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47. WAEBLIA (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. Deferred income tax (Continued)

A 31 B IH AR - Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERERE RENMEE
Accelerated ~ fTEEfS Investment  REEf
B tax  Premises  properties  Investment Hth &it
£® Group Provisions depreciation  revaluation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
—ZE\5-f-H At 1 January 2008 4,533 29,703 176,282 42,558 - 176 253,252
RIERS /(D) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 29,419 (9,836) - (14,041) - 2,751 8,293
RERER (BE) /L (Credited)/charged to equity - - (49,965) - 104 - (49,861)
EEipE Reclassification (6,059) - - - - - (6,059)
“EEN\E+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2008
R=Z2ENE-F-H and 1 January 2009 27,893 19,867 126,317 28,517 104 2,927 205,625
REREER (EE) /i (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (37,285) 795 24,866 8,455 - (2,699) (5,868)
REEREAT Charged to equity - - 18,106 - 79 - 18,185
EHZR Exchange differences - - - = = Y Y
g Reclassification 13,669 - - - - - 13,669
“EENE+-A=t-H At 31 December 2009 4217 20,662 169,289 36,972 183 226 231,609

TR TS FRAREEERA () /B2 RER

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is

18 : as follows:
—EBhE —"TITN\F
£HE Group 2009 2008
RIERERS 2 AP ERGE Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
- TE - premises (79,334) 49,861
- EES - available-for-sale securities (18,106) 179,236
(97,440) 229,097

48.  BLER M A W] Z &G 6k

MERRAKRRAMRE BREARRR ZMBARZ
RERFEDIIAT -

48. Balances with Group companies

Included in the following statement of financial position captions are

balances with a subsidiary of the Company detailed as follows:

—EEREFE —ZTZ)N\HF
| Company 2009 2008
IRITHE A Bank balances 17,666 7,095
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. SRR KRS
() EAKSE

REIBEHRERB ADRIERERAEEE LB

ANBEBEZEREENT

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of project and acquisition of fixed assets

at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

ZEBAF —TT)N\F

£H Group 2009 2008
EREERZFN ZHAX Expenditure authorised
but not contracted for 97 766
EENERERER 2FX Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 92,823 98,821
92,920 99,587

(Q) & B&fE

AEFBBEERABRIMEERETEFPZERMTA

BHTERAEGERRMESENT

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

aEHNLE
Contract amount
—ETAF ZZTN\F
5 Group 2009 2008
BEEFERE® Direct credit substitutes 628,899 704,420
RS2 kAIEE Transaction related contingencies 14,104 6,898
HE PR 2 ATEE Trade-related contingencies 536,962 364,258
AR BB M SR TR 58 Commitments that are unconditionally
BN 2 AEE cancellable without prior notice 32,030,819 32,922,775
H Other commitments with an
RAHAR & original maturity of:
-PR—%F — under 1 year 3,859,558 2,673,642
-—FRNE -1 year and over 933,340 938,980
R=EF Forward forward deposits placed 61,508 73,547
38,065,190 37,684,520
EE R NESEE
Credit risk
weighted amount
—EBEEhE —TTN\F
5 Group 2009 2008
A BE AR Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,459,809 1,286,256
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49, BRAREE KA &)
() BRI 2 &

TR EERZ MEAERRTEEEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

Assets pledged as collateral with the HKMA and with unrelated financial

MR ES BB EE ¢ institutions under repurchase agreements are as follows:
—EEhE _—TIN\F
£ Group 2009 2008
FEEERZE 2 F 5 (Mi24) Trading securities (Note 24) 4,689,792 -
AHHERS (H528) Available-for-sale securities (Note 28) 781,976 399,022
B2 3 89 5 (fi7E29) Held-to-maturity securities (Note 29) 148,065 178,918

BIETEE R & E W SRIE R R Investments in securities included in
2 #EHEE (fisEa7) the loans and receivables category

(Note 27) 93,603 57,429
5,713,436 635,369

(T) REME RS

IARKEAEEA - HATEEMERLLEEM
RARAXINZ ZERENRERLT :

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:

—ZEERFE -TINF
£H Group 2009 2008
—F LA Not later than 1 year 86,430 73,112

—FUERERSF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 115,061 49,419
FFE Later than 5 years 33,392 24,300
234,883 146,831

WASEAEAA - R AABUEMRLLHEEM
MARREAEX NN 2 REBENRABTEMT :

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—EENF —ETT\F
£H Group 2009 2008
—F IR Not later than 1 year 23,035 26,736
—FUBERSF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 7,580 27,590
30,615 54,326
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. JgAR 50. Share capital
—EEhE ZZTINF
2009 2008
ETERA Authorised:
300,000,000 % & 3@ f% - 300,000,000 ordinary shares
SREE2E T of HK$2 each 600,000 600,000
—ZEhE —TENF
2009 2008
IR [N e e
ERTREBERE Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
ZEKR SREE2ET Ordinary shares of HK$ 2 each shares Capital shares Capital
—H—H At 1 January 260,270,655 520,541 250,088,234 500,176
BT DS RIE Proceeds from shares issued - = 8,461,376 16,923
BITRHOEBER Issue of shares in lieu of
“ETLERBPRE final dividend 2007 - = 1,721,045 3,442
+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 260,270,655 520,541 260,270,655 520,541
BER-FZRFEMA =+ N\ BREEZ R Pursuant to the new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved

%Tﬁ%ﬂ( ZARMRKESTED - EEZWEHXTE;I'%UEH
LAZR - 4000 (ZZEZENF @ 401p) 7] R
2%omwﬂ_?7ﬁi:2%omwﬂﬂhﬁ
BB T2 A RRIRGD 2 RKE ERTHNE
EREERNSRITHASR -

RENREERSRITRAERE 2 BBRER AR
RERMBEESHWT :

by the shareholders on 28 April 2005, 40 (2008: 40) options to subscribe
for 2,850,000 (2008: 2,850,000) shares of HK$2 each of the Company

had been granted to certain directors and senior executives of the

Group since the inception of the Scheme.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options

held by directors and senior executives during the year are as follows:

RRER RO EE
Number of shares

in the options

—ETAFE Z—ZTTNF
2009 2008
—A—HBE+=ZRA=+—H At 1 January and at 31 December 2,850,000 2,850,000
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50. JBEAR ()

FRENILER TRz B

RTZA=1t—B{HRETEZRREFT M

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Share capital (Continued)

No share options were granted or lapsed during the year.

Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as follows:

T~
ABRERROHE
REEEE Number of shares
RFBRTEE Date of grant and exercise price Number of options in the options
“EEAE CZZTN\F Z—BEAF Z—TIN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZERFENAZTHA 25 August 2005, at an exercise
RITHEBEMRS1.715T price of HK$51.71 per share 25 25 2,150,000 2,150,000
ZZEERFNAER 7 September 2006, at an exercise
RITEE FH67.807 7T price of HK$67.80 per share 5 5 500,000 500,000
—EEEFENAZTNR - 28 September 2007, at an exercise
RITEEFR61.935 T price of HK$61.93 per share 10 10 200,000 200,000
40 40 2,850,000 2,850,000
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
51. fi#if 51. Reserves
TEEfR REEM REEF
i i & (i)
[RAHE  Premises Investment [EXfE  —REHE  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange General  Earnings Bt
&5 Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total
—ZRNE-HA-A At 1 January 2009 1,551,426 769,686  (1,293,164) 51,141 573,435 7,719,136 9,371,660
AEMEES Fair value gains on
AT EKE available-for-sale securities - - 641,564 - - - 641,564
REE M 1% A Investment revaluation reserve
AN EEFAE transferred to income statement
EEEY €A upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 17,722 - - - 17,722
LEMHRLEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 53,145 - - - 53,145
REERGEES Deferred income tax assets
ez released on movements in
EEHEEE investment revaluation reserve - - (58,086) - - - (58,086)
TEEMf2ATERE  Fairvalue gains on
revaluation of premises - 327,483 - - - - 327,483
TEEMEES Deferred income tax liabilities
MR recognised on movements in
ETHEAR premises revaluation reserve - (13,334) - - - - (13,334)
RTERE Revaluation reserve transferred
EELE 1 to retained earnings for
ZRERF depreciation of premises - (8,775) - - - 8,775 -
EfRBERALETE Revaluation reserve realised o
lip-$: on disposal of premises - (26,873) - - - 26,873 - §
BEBIHBAREH  Exchange differences arising on -
BRNELZR translation of the Q
financial statements s
of foreign entities - - - (2,021) - - (2,021) %
R Profit for the year - - - - - 626049 626049 =
FlE R RE Placement and subscription of ;E
=V ﬂﬂw\ shares in a subsidiary - - - - (132,383) - (132383)
REHE R AR Subscription of shares in s
ENE /*'A’%Ef‘é a subsidiary for settlement :,
of loan facility - - - - 43,237 - 43,237 g
9
“EERE+ZA=1—H At31December 2009 1,551,426 1,048,187 (638,819) 49,120 484,280 8,380,833 10,875,036 %
<
S
s
L
g
75
T
3
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. fet (&0 51. Reserves (Continued)
IEER REEf RERF
f#E fEfE (G10)
RDVEE  Premises Investment ERFEE < —MEE  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation ~ Exchange General Earnings G
= Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total
“ZT\F-F-A At 1 January 2008 984,286 870,800 (459,309) 27,899 574,612 7,970,839 9,969,127
AEMEES Fair value losses on
ATEER available-for-sale securities - - (1,233,752) - - - (1,233,752)
REASHFE Investment revaluation reserve
AN EEFAE transferred to income statement
EEEY €A upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 257,486 - - - 257,486
HEAHRHEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 7,751 - - - 7,751
REASHFEE Deferred income tax assets
MERLZ recognised on movements in
EREHERE investment revaluation reserve - - 134,660 - - - 134,660
TEEMfZATERBE  Fairvalue losses on
revaluation of premises - (125,568) - - - - (125,568)
TESHREE Deferred income tax liabilities
ez recognised on movements in
ERHBEAR premises revaluation reserve - 37,454 - = = = 37,454
ROIERE Revaluation reserve transferred
mEBEfhEE to retained earnings for
ERBEF depreciation of premises - (9,364) - - - 9,364 -
EfREALETE Revaluation reserve realised
mER on disposal of premises - (3,636) - - - 3,636 -
BEBINHBARYE  Exchange differences arising on
BRRAELZR translation of the
financial statements of
foreign entities - - - 23,242 - - 23,242
FEREA Profit for the year - - - - - 106,193 106,193
BUTRRRND Issue of ordinary shares 567,200 - - = = = 567,200
IAETRHER Payment of share issue expenses (60) - - - - - (60)
TR S5l Additional net assets acquired
MBAZFEE via scrip dividend arrangement - - - - 17,279 - 17,279
REARR S5 E Subscription of additional interest in
H A (B IS a subsidiary via scrip dividend
WEARZER arrangement at a premium - - - - (18,456) - (18,456)
“ZE\ERAKRE 2008 final dividend - - - - - (193912)  (193,912)
“ZT\FHRAKRE 2008 interim dividend - - - - - (176,984)  (176,984)
“TEN\F+-A=1—H At31 December 2008 1,551,426 769,686  (1,293,164) 51,141 573,435 7,719,136 9,371,660
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. f#iffi (&) 51. Reserves (Continued)

G Note:

(i) AEBRZZEZNFT_A=1T—HZREEF (i) Included in retained earnings of the Group at 31 December 2009 is the

BRERRHISREBTERNRE ZEEE value of long-term life assurance policies in force totalling

1,225,668,00075 7T (== Z )\ F : 1,274,452,000 HK$1,225,668,000 (2008: HK$1,274,452,000) which is currently not
HBIT) o WIRBRFI SRR REFERERR - available for distribution.

iy AKREZEEKBRTAR @ RFETRLHIR (i)  The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS, are
T AFE %’fﬁﬁ%f PIAREEE REHZ required to maintain regulatory reserve to satisfy the provisions of the
BE BRHEERE RZZEZENFTZA=+ Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. At
—A - R¥R1T R EH iEﬁE 3Rl BB ARE — 31 December 2009, each of DSB and MEVAS has earmarked a regulatory
i RIRB A FIFEE305,774,0008 T (=2 reserve of HK$305,774,000 (2008: HK$472,301,000) and HK$18,343,000
J\EF : 472,301,000/ 7T) 18,343,000/ 7T (= (2008: HK$12,714,000) in the consolidated general reserve and retained
TT)\F : 12,714,00057T) 2 CHBIEBEE profits respectively. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly
- BEERB RN EAR=EERR WA through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

HBEACEREITHN

R AP &R E EXRE RERA

Share Capital Retained =i
AT Company Premium Reserve Earnings Total
—EZEN\F—F—H At 1 January 2008 984,286 256,027 1,417,436 2,657,749
BITH D FT S 30E Proceeds from new shares issued 567,140 = = 567,140
F & Al Profit for the year - - 212,167 212,167
“EELEREIRE 2007 Final dividend - - (187,566) (187,566)
—ZETN\FHHRE 2008 Interim dividend - - (183,330) (183,330
—EENF+-_B=+—H At 31 December 2008 1,551,426 256,027 1,258,707 3,066,160
(0)]
—EENF—A—HB Wkt At 1 January 2009, as above 1,551,426 256,027 1,258,707 3,066,160 §
F R 7 Profit for the year - - 201,128 201,128 e
2
“ETNFFZA=F—H At 31 December 2009 1,551,426 256,027 1,459,835 3,267,288 “
S
b
EREBRAEHIETIBIEFTE + A2 —_Z Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2009, calculated Z
ZAE+ZA=+T—HZAHIE % ﬁﬁ == under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted =
'—
1,459,834,00078 7t (== Z )\ F : 1,258,707,000 to HK$1,459,835,000 (2008: HK$1,258,707,000). s
#5T) - ”
(O]
P
*ET){* NMN=ZF+=A—HBBAZEFRIIRER - By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently .
g o
IEEBER—AN=F+ A=+t BEEEZRE approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993, I
—]
Peitiz - RA TR = E 256,027,000 Tk the share premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000 :_’;
B EANEEIRA © 7%256,027,000/8 T RHEEE and this amount was transferred to a capital reserve account. On Z
RARA B BR AT B 2K 4 o consolidation the reserve of HK$256,027,000 has been applied against %
goodwill. g
(7))
T
<
a
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52. e BlAeMEABERMEE 52. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements
(F) & T 8 M I A 8 W 2 s 4R i 2 (@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains on certain
e 1 g AN B AR G ) B 4 9 N A investments and fixed assets to net cash flow from
S operating activities
—EBhE —TITN\F
2009 2008
A TIREREEEE W EER 2 & &R Operating profit before gains or losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 421,616 808,628
A B R Net interest income (2,344,129)  (2,369,465)
A% B s Dividend income (26,184) (35,307)
BERREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 433,280 658,535
EFOREERE 2 AR ERE Unwind of discount on loan impairment (15,429) (6,326)
e Depreciation 113,217 111,107
B A E 2 s Amortisation of intangible assets 19,322 22,671
RBR B Uk 18 2 B F 6 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (568,612) (162,211)
[BE &SN Interest received 3,266,419 4,954,575
SN Interest paid (618,746)  (1,485,401)
B U h% & Dividend received 46,839 35,307
CEEERBEEH 2L E R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 727,593 2,632,113
EEEENBECZEH Changes in operating assets and liabilities
RESEBBA=EAzBMIERFRE Change in money at call and
short notice with an original
maturity beyond three months (967,549) -
REHRBA=EA 2 ERITHNERZESH Change in placements with
banks with an original maturity
beyond three months (2,495,470) -
BIEEERAZNESZ 2 EE Change in trading securities (2,138,566) 136,140
MEEMIAZ#% Change in derivative
financial instruments (521,835) 932,935
HENAFEGTEBEZEHTABEN Change in financial assets designated
K ﬁﬂ BEZEE) at fair value through profit or loss (250,519)  (1,626,001)
%)EE/TAZ A8 Change in advances to customers 3,833,914 295,558
RITERZEE) Change in advances to banks 29,226 (18,800)
ﬁf@ﬁﬁ B ZZ £8) Change in other accounts 386,159 1,536,941
BIETE B R FE W R IE $R Change in investments in
ZRBHETEZBE securities included in the loans and
receivables category (44,793) (877,163)
FEWHRAEHIEEER 2 EE Change in loans receivables
from jointly controlled entities 4,285 9,553
AR EF A2 &) Change in available-for-sale securities (2,310,584) 2,388,966
REINES 225 Change in held-to-maturity debt securities 991,310 (866,383)
RIISBREB2BERREEB 2 EE Change in value of in-force long-term
life assurance business 48,784 (258,914)
RITIF R 2 B8 Change in deposits from banks (1,008,458) (208,074)
FEEERENEEL# Change in trading liabilities 276,881 (897,650)
EEERZEH Change in deposits from customers 8,422,993 4,362,229
BENRFEFERAE Change in deposits from customers
TABGRNEPIFRZEE designated at fair value through
profit or loss (471,065) (2,671,423)
HMARE kiBRR 2 & Change in other accounts and accruals (155,814)  (1,788,803)
HERARBENREREACZBEZEH Change in liabilities to customers under
insurance contracts 300,336 880,916
bE 5, 5 2 Exchange adjustments (90,002) (406,406)
HELESRANIRS Cash generated from operating activities 4,566,826 3,955,734
SNBBTREEBREBESZFE Interest paid on subordinated
notes and debt securities issued (301,607) (391,533)
XA BEITHFREZFE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (114,434) (298,386)
BB BRNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (12,969) (72,923)
E#UEINBIR Overseas tax paid (8,076) (32,889)
EEES) T ARG 58 Net cash from operating activities 4,129,740 3,160,003
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52. HOB&MELEEME @

() EHRE@RERA R kERHELEEE
FREEERSE=(EARUA TR Z T
wmer o REBEZ{CESARRE TR
BIRERERTBRBELTR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

(Continued)

(b)  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three

months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, deposits that are

readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

—EEAF —ZTEN\F
£8 Group 2009 2008
& RIERITH A ER Cash and balances with banks 2,566,436 2,514,066
JREVHA B E =18 A sk AT 238 A &8 Bl fF 3K Money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
within three months 7,207,894 10,294,461
REHA R E=8 A kA N 2 ERITHIFR Placements with banks
with an original maturity
within three months 1,787,279 1,656,950
RBEEBERENES Trading securities 2,355,682 913,421
13,917,291 15,378,898

53. R AN B &K

HREBRTEOIFE161BIE - ERTEA/AEZ
HIEHEMT

53. Loans to officers

Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section 161B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

TZRA=+—B#&&
Balance outstanding

at 31 December

FRERBESER
Maximum balance

during the year

—EEAE ZZTENF ZBEAFE ZZTENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
g N B aErr B Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 83,306 81,690 110,240 90,849
BERESREE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 149 149 149 149
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54, ARBALZRS

BREALRZFALAENERXHEELZFS
—7 B HEERMBREERK T ET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZE HKRZES
FHAEAFER > REALTRESBEEEA
4 .
RZBZNER_ZFZENF  AREREREHK
PEEFEEATETRIIERRS - NAFE
VIATEETERHAKE 2P BRRE - B8
ZEBNRBERREZRFHETEN - RXFES
REEBRBANMREBEREREZAR  RREHHE
BEWEZRGIRBEARBZIERRY - A
ek - —REEERRES - BATFREARERA
BARRBRERNEETT -

BEBMEALZERARZUAT :

(FF) 5Lt J 2 ] 9 52 5
() EERBE B a8 K0

RIBEARAREAFBITEEAR Z2RE R
REWHE - ARBAR_EENFHNA=1
NEBERBILALNASGKS60ETES
54,000,000/% X #TR1T SR E D - W=
T NF A AMAB LR FS5.607 7T R
#%54,000,000/% K #7iR1T5 BT AR (4578
[BRERS]) - EHEERHTME + A
RIEARNRITEBZHREHT4.96% [ =
70.86% °

(n AR

RARRAEBERENE R RN F A I
E2EMBRITARR 2 HFERERS (F
ERBEBHERSMBRARES LR
8 (T LR A B14A14E0) B M EAE T
DNZWMARZH c ZERX P2 BERES
R 4E £ T R Bl 85 14A.35(2)E% 2 14A.36(1)
B BEARAEEZEE LR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

During 2009 and 2008, a number of banking connected transactions
were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business
of the Group. These, being continuing connected transactions, had
been reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors
in their review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-
executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected
transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual course business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries
() Placing and subscription of shares of a subsidiary

The Company entered into the Placing and Subscription
Agreement with DSBG pursuant to which the Company placed
54 million shares of DSBG to parties independent of the Group
on 24 April 2009 at a price of HK$5.60 per share and subscribed
54 million new shares issued by DSBG to the Company on 4 May
2009 at the same price of HK$5.60 per share (collectively the
“top-up placing transaction”). The Company’s shareholding in
DSBG decreased from 74.96% to 70.86% following completion

of this top-up placing transaction.

() Income and expenses

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from
the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of
Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))
entered into with the non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries
during the year. The aggregate value of these transactions are
within the respective annual caps applicable to the Group under
Rules 14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the Listing Rules.
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54.

()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FREANLZRSG @) 54. Related-party transactions (Continued)
B B oy W B A2 5 (4) (a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) PAKSH (&) (i)  Income and expenses (Continued)
—EBhE —TITN\F

3 Group 2009 2008
B HFLE (G () Interest received (Note (i)) 52,275 35,580
ERRITFEE (5X() Bank charges paid (Note (i) (6,590) (6,884)
EfNHeREERAEEREERAX Rentals and related building management

(7 (i) fee and charges paid (Note (i) (11,918) (11,166)
BElHEREERAEEREE RAX Rentals and related building management

(R (iii)) fee and charges received (Note (jii)) 4,522 4,522
BENEREE (Fv) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (13,409) (18,254)
B RERAS GEV) Insurance commission paid (Note (v)) (17,218) (27,135)
BURIRER R B (FE(vi) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 9,834 10,258
Gl Note:

(i) RERFEZENBRITARIRHEEER
B EREROA R EAEARITRAS o

EWHETIAR B ZHERBFRN =M
F2ENMBRITAR - AFRTT - 28
RITRORPIGRRIT Z FHROFSA -
FR 2 TF B ERE N il 2 K548

RZZTNEF=A=1+HA ' ARARMK
FRITEBARAR ([REFBITEED R
1£1,000,000,000%5 7T 2 B ([ZEFH]) -
LAfEE K 38R 1T 5% B Al [m) KT SR THR AL EE S
BRGHE - BF ZWE%EEAMHE%
SRITRZEIR S IN350EZ, - KFTIRITE
%%E%z&ﬁ%&a@&% %kﬁﬁ

SER_ZTAFNA+N\BLUEKS
%EZE%%ﬁ2mmmmmhﬁkh
(EARHMBITEEZBIRER=-ZZ
FNA+TAARITZRRBFINASER)
EER(LERR - BE=ZTTNF=A=+
RAEEZZETAFAATABHE - A2
A2 BRI RITEBRELZ FI 2R
23,661,000/ 7T ° £ & AN LR TEK
% RAREARFROEEZHERE
70.86% 127+ 274.13% °

RFTIRTT - EHRTIORPIREERITRIR
HERRITIRTG - BEXFREE  REE
BRBE - 12— RE X EFUEURTT T &
& - it REMB AR BEAHASZR
RERAR (TARMASD  EEFHA
ERARARRENR S  BHHREXR
BP RIS EM o 2 FR1TIRE 2 FF A AR
EFMIW AT IR TIZE PR

(i) Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of

deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-wholly

owned banking subsidiaries

Interest was received by the subsidiaries of the Company from

three non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries, namely DSB,
MEVAS and BCM on deposits placed with them. The balances of
deposits outstanding as at the end of the year are set out in Note

48 above.

The Company advanced a HK$1 billion loan (the “Loan”) to its
subsidiary Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) on 25 March
2009 to enable DSBG to provide additional capital resources to

DSB. Interest on the loan was agreed at 6-month HIBOR plus 350

basis points. DSBG’s repayment obligation on the loan was

discharged after the loan, with the approval of independent

shareholders of DSBG passed in the Extraordinary Shareholders
Meeting held on 16 September 2009, was capitalised by DSBG by
the issue of 125 millions new DSB shares at HK$8 per share on

18 September 2009. The interest received by the Company from
DSBG on the loan for the period from 25 March 2009 to
18 September 2009 was HK$23,661,000. The Company’s
shareholding in DSBG increased from 70.86% to 74.13% following
completion of this capitalisation.

Bank charges were levied by DSB, MEVAS and BCM on the
provision of standard banking services covering cheque clearing,

investment dealing services, etc. on normal commercial terms. In

addition, merchant fees were charged at market rates to the

insurance subsidiaries including Dah Sing Life Assurance Company

Limited (“DSLA”) on settlement of insurance premiums by its

customers using credit cards. These banking arrangements are for

an indefinite term and can be terminated in accordance with market

practice.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Lease and sub-lease of properties from non-wholly-owned banking
subsidiaries

DSB, BCM and another subsidiary, Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited (“VB”), have leased and sub-leased certain of their
owned and rented properties to the insurance subsidiaries of the
Company, DSLA, Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited (“DSIS”),
Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) and Macau Insurance
Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB, VB and
BCM received the lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges,
building management charges and other utilities charges based on
the actual amount of costs incurred. All leases were entered into at
the end of 2006 for a two-year period effective from 1 January
2007.

Upon the expiry of the above leases, new leases have been entered
into at the end of 2008 for a two-year period effective from 1
January 20009.

Lease of property to non-wholly-owned banking subsidiary

DSLA has leased a portion of its owned property to DSB as its
branch office for a term of three years effective from 28 December
2007.

Provision of computer and administrative services by DSB and
BCM

On 28 December 2006, the Company entered into a new computer
and administrative services agreement with DSB and its
subsidiaries including BCM for a fixed term of two years with effect
from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the service agreement, DSB is to
provide to the Company and certain of its insurance subsidiaries
including DSLA, DSIS, DSIA, Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited
(“DSI”), MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”)
management support services including retail branch and
marketing support, computer services, operations support,
autopay services, treasury services, risk management support and
other administrative services. The fee payable to DSB is determined
at the end of the year by reference to the estimated actual cost of
providing the service.

On 30 December 2008, the Company entered into a new Computer
and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB for a fixed term
of two years with effect from 1 January 2009.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

(vi)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, MEVAS and BCM

DSIS and DSIA have entered into distribution agreements and
agency agreements with each of DSB and MEVAS and MIC and
MLIC have entered into distribution agreements and agency
agreements with BCM, for the marketing and distribution of life
and general insurance products through their’ network of bank
branches. DSIS, DSIA, MIC and MLIC are required to pay
commissions calculated on normal commercial terms. The
agreements entered into in 2006 and expired in 2008 has been
renewed in 2008 for a fixed term of two years commencing 1
January 2009.

Insurance services provided by DSLA, DSI, MIC and MLIC

Under the Credit Life Insurance Policy Agreements which cover
personal loans, credit card lending and mortgage loans extended
by DSB and MEVAS, DSLA provides insurance cover to DSB and
MEVAS in return for a premium which is calculated based on the
outstanding balances of the relevant loans on normal commercial
terms. DSLA also underwrites insurance policies to cover the death
and/or critical illnesses of certain loan customers. Policies entered
into with DSLA in 2006 and expired in 2008 have been renewed in
2008 for a fixed term of two years commencing 1 January 2009.
Both DSLA and MLIC underwrite insurance policies to cover staff
of DSBG and are subject to renewal annually. Premiums received
by DSLA and MLIC from DSBG in 2009 totalled HK$4,088,000
(2008: HK$5,147,000).

DSI and MIC underwrite general insurance policies in the name,
and for the benefit, of DSB and other companies of DSBG including
policies covering domestic motor, property all risks, public liability,
money, electronic equipment, employees’ compensation and group
personal accident. The policies are subject to renewal annually.
The policies are provided to DSBG on DSI and MIC’s normal,
written commercial terms. Premiums received from the companies
under DSBG in 2009 totalled HK$5,746,000 (2008: HK$5,111,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key

management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Company’s key management personnel, their spouses and

companies which the key management personnel have significant

BB 2 BT ¢ influence. For the year ended 31 December, the following
balances were outstanding:

—EEhE _—"TIN\F

£ Group 2009 2008

ER KRB Loans and advances 33,467 63,712

FR Deposits 593,018 374,755

EiR Guarantees 149 149
FRNERRBRZ &= BT Maximum aggregate amount of

loans and advances during the year 46,747 63,869

(i) FTEEEASHZ

RNARTEEEABAHITES - HBRIM
ERREEKZIRAKFE14 -

(W) fif EERR T - S

REBNFERRE] AL EZRR ZHB AR
B2 ETESES RZThF+ A=
—H - ANEEFE 285 /710,133,000 7T (=
T )\ : 687,011,00087T) - ZEFHFENE
EE—RBEEGRRREETEFBRREA -

55. DAkt 7 i B e it 5

AEEBBARRRZBEREE (RSB
2 REEEMBRARAMBITEBRERARZ
R B ([RFIRTT R EET &) SRR &
ERHNHMTEEERSRITHAS - BRES
Z VAR BER RN 2 ARET 2 5N EE14 -

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 14.

(¢) Holding of securities issued by a substantial shareholder

The Group also held certain debt securities issued by a subsidiary of a
substantial shareholder. As at 31 December 2009, the total amount held
was HK$710,133,000 (2008: HK$687,011,000). These securities were
acquired in the normal course of the Group’s business on normal

commercial terms.

55. Share-based compensation plan

Share-based compensation through the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of the
wholly owned subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “DSBG
Scheme”), is available to Directors and senior executives of the Group.
Details of the share-based compensation paid to Directors are

disclosed in Note 14.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
(a) DSFH Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company or its
subsidiaries to make cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. DSFH has adopted
the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in

respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 April 2005. The exercise prices of
the options granted was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) prevailing in force, being the higher of
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the
date of grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

(b) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG or its subsidiaries to make
cash payments, determined based on intrinsic value of each share
option, to the directors or employees at the date of exercise instead of
allotting newly issued shares. DSBG has the intention to adopt this

cash settlement practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance to the terms and
conditions of the Scheme. The exercise prices of the options granted
was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK prevailing in force,
being the higher of the closing price of DSBG'’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant, or the average closing price of DSBG’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)

(b) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

With respect to the two share option schemes described above, the
Group has recorded liabilities of HK$34,968,000 (2008: HK$5,171,000)

in respect of the fair value of the share options. Such fair value is

determined by using the Trinomial Pricing Model using the major

assumptions set out in the following table. The Group recorded a total
expense for the share options of HK$29,796,000 in 2009 (2008: a
reversal of expenses of HK$52,610,000). The total intrinsic value of the

share options for which the grantee’s right to receive cash had vested
as of 31 Dec 2009 is nil (2008: Nil).

The inputs into the Trinomial Pricing Model are as follows:

PN kA HE |
DSFH Scheme
“EENE N3
2009 2008
“EELF  ZBEERE  CZERRF —TTHE 2T RE  CTTIF
AA=T+NB ARtB NA=+ER AAZT/\H NAtE NAZfEH
®FH Grant date 28Sep 2007  7Sep2006 25Aug 2005 28 Sep2007 7 Sep2006 25 Aug 2005
AARRTZA=1+—H Share price of the Company
ZIRE (BT as at 31 December (HK$) 43.0 43.0 43.0 19.88 19.88 19.88
178 () Exercise price (HKS) 61.93 67.80 51.71 61.93 67.80 51.71
BihR iR () Expected volatiity (Note (i) 67.7% 67.7% 67.7% 62.4% 62.4% 62.4%
£H(F) Time to maturity (years) <4 <3 <2 <5 <4 <3
ERBFIE (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii) 1.45% 0.97% 0.47% 1.16% 0.95% 0.71%
T2 IR 8 2 (3 i) Expected dividend rate (Note (i) 1.79% 1.79% 1.79% 7.19% 7.19% 7.19%
AFRTEEHE
DSBG Scheme
“EENE “TRE
2009 2008
ZEE\F  CEEN\F CESAEF C¥BEEF CE¥3RE CEEIME CET\F CER\F CEE5F TTRfF CETRfF CTINE
tAthA  tAthA AB=tEA +=A=+RA NA=tEA+-A=tER +tAthA +tAThA AAZTER +ZA=1A NA=t&A +-A=TEA
19 Jul 190l 25Sep  30Dec  BAug  BNov 19Jul 19Jul %%p 0D BAg  2Nov
#3A Grant date 2008 2008 2006 2005 2005 2004 2008 2008 2008 2005 2005 2004
AFRTEE Share price of DSBG
R+=A=1-A as at 31 December
ZBE (A7) (HKS) 1160 1160 1160 1160 1160 1160 557 557 557 557 557 557
fEECE) Exercise price (HKS) 1784 1784 173 1432 1440 1670 1784 1784 1730 143 1440 16.70
Batiia (&) Expected volatiity (Note ()) ~ 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 609% 609% 543% 543% 543% 543% 54.3% 54.3%
£5(5) Time to maturity (years) <1 <4 <3 <2 <2 <1 <2 <5 <4 <3 <3 <2
ERRTE () Risk free rate (Note (i) 0.17% 137% 1.0% 061% 0.47% 0.22% 0.43% 1.12% 0.96% 0.79% 0.71% 053%
BatiRE X (&) Expected dividend rate
(Note i) 163% 163% 163% 163% 163% 163% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92%
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
the share price during the one year period immediately preceding the
measurement date and is based on the assumption that there is no
material difference between the expected volatility over the time to
maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the shares in DSBG
and the Company set out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

(iii) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

RFEpz AHFBTEBHE
DSFH Scheme DSBG Scheme
ZBENE —ETN\E ZEENE —ETN\E
2009 2008
BRTIRE RYAEE BRTIRE RYAEE

R3TER mE¥H Nk METY AFRTEE MELY AHRTEE METH

ARES k@ ARED (3 ARED &8 ARAED (3

KRG #AE (A7) K> &8 (%7 RG#AE (A7) K> &8 (%7

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

DSFH shares average  DSFH shares average DSBG shares average DSBG shares average

in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise

options price options price options price options price
granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HK$) granted (HKS)

-A-H At 1 January 2,850,000 55.25 2,850,000 55.25 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77
BT Granted - - - - - - - -
BEAN Lapsed - - - - - - - -
BffE Exercised - - - - - - - -
BRH Expired - - - - - - - -
+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2,850,000 55.25 2,850,000 55.25 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77
TZA=T—HE{f Exercisable at

31 December 2,100,000 54.40 1,530,000 54.08 1,150,000 15.64 820,000 15.51
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2009
have a range of exercise prices of HK$51.71 to HK$67.80 (2008: in the
range of exercise prices of HK$51.71 to HK$67.80), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.98 years (2008: 2.98 years). In
respect of Directors and Senior executives of the Group, their applicable
DSBG'’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2009 have a
range of exercise prices from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84 (2008: in the range
of exercise prices from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84), and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.90 years (2008: 2.90 years).

No share options were granted to senior executives of the Company
during the year (2008: Nil). No DSBG’s share options were granted to

senior executives of the Group during the year (2008: Nil).

56. Events after the end of the reporting period

On 11 February 2010, DSB issued US$225 million 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB (subject
to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) which
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020 and carry an interest rate of
6.625% per annum.

Concurrent with the launch of the above new issue in February 2010,
DSB offered to fully redeem at par, by way of an open tender, the full
amount of the US$150 million Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due
May 2015 (but callable on 6 May 2010 (Note 42)) (the “Old Notes”).
Based on acceptance by noteholders, a total of US$124.58 million of
the Old Notes were redeemed by DSB on 19 February 2010. The Old
Notes redeemed were cancelled and excluded from DSB’s

supplementary capital base with effect from 19 February 2010.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. Loans and advances to customers

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

38 3 B DL 3 AR A b DR B 4 Bl )

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

#r) covered by collateral
—EENE —ET)N\F
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2009 As at 31 Dec 2008
BREE B
ZHFRRE S R IRE
ZEDHK ZBADH
% of gross % of gross
KERBLEER  advances KREELH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EBBFERHER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITH%R Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 611,218 65.0 448,282 83.6
-MEIEE - Property investment 11,209,001 89.2 10,102,405 92.4
- @ - Financial concerns 333,243 47.7 373,243 91.4
- RERL — Stockbrokers 52,265 100.0 9,707 53.4
-t ETEE — Wholesale and retail trade 1,001,216 96.3 1,187,833 87.3
- BlEx - Manufacturing 657,570 86.9 885,724 78.3
- B RERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 3,207,328 97.4 4,241,249 93.5
- [REEH) - Recreational activities 157,565 = 23,507 25.7
- BB - Information technology 902 422 418 -
- HA - Others 1,847,970 92.7 2,140,815 88.7
19,078,278 89.0 19,413,183 90.9
(EPN Individuals
-BEIEEEHEE] — Loans for the purchase of
[FLAZEREEE R flats in Home Ownership
[HEBHEEIETF Scheme, Private Sector
= Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,398,373 100.0 1,625,129 99.9
-BEEMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,462,174 99.9 10,715,925 99.7
- ERREX - Credit card advances 3,173,620 - 3,371,802 -
- Hl — Others 6,510,864 62.9 6,513,226 58.5
21,545,031 74.0 22,226,082 72.5
ERBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 40,623,309 81.0 41,639,265 81.1
Bo5mE Trade finance 3,136,776 68.4 4,457,618 64.0
TR BAIMERBER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 13,405,074 83.3 14,902,190 82.2
57,165,159 80.9 60,999,073 80.1
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1. FPERREK #H) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

() AT B2 % PR s (DRSO (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
38 o1 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A3 according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage
Br) () covered by collateral (Continued)

EATPEBREFERERE10%3 A EMTT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

¥ HEGEREERE - BHERE R E R F4R 10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

A ENEZUREEMBIDT ¢ attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

BRME
R EE
BB=MA 18 51 5714 GATh
Gross HEEE AEERE
advances Individually  Collectively
REZBEER BMEER  overdue for as d as d

Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
“EZEAE+=-A=1+—H  Asat31Dec 2009 balance loans 3months  allowances allowances
EBRREFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEEm Industrial, commercial
and financial
- ERE - Property investment 11,209,001 15,802 = 1,063 60,825
& A Individuals
-BEHEMEE - Loans for the
YIZEE purchase of
other residential
properties 10,462,174 6,765 8,406 1,358 8,836
ERERH
R EE
BB=A 18 Bl FE GAT
Gross HEEE HEEE
advances Individually  Collectively
REZER HWEER  overdue for as d as d
Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
S+ “ZZ2N\F+=A=t—H  Asat31Dec 2008 balance loans 3months  allowances  allowances
ﬁ
;m ERAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
W
Iraest Industrial, commercial and
E financial
f; -MERE - Property investment 10,102,405 14,785 = 5,429 17,862
al
| | fEA Individuals
% -BEHMEE - Loans for the
ﬁ MEER purchase of
- other residential
ﬁ properties 10,715,925 1,111 1,839 407 3,211
53d
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() AT B2 % PR s (DRSO
38 4 A B DL 3 HR A b DR o B 43 Ll 2y
#r) ()

TREBFANERGSRER 2L EFIREES
BB MBI -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

covered by collateral (Continued)

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year were

disclosed in the tables below.

WEEREE
REFEBER HMEZEX
M 845% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HMiLEE written  written off in
New off as previous
—EZEAF 2009 allowances uncollectible years
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 298 - 5,737
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 1,927 231 2,621
2,225 231 8,358
WEEREE
MBERE S KEEEBEER HMEZER
(EEER) #i$5% Recoveries of
New Loans advances
allowances/ written  written off in
(Allowances off as previous
—EENF 2008 written back) uncollectible years
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 5,205 542 -
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 133 921 957
5,338 1,463 957
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. FPERREK #H) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(&) Ev kB IERAT R P AR5 (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures
“EBAF+Z=A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2009
18 Bl FE 15
EEEER BEEE/X BEEE
AN ERER NI EREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #@EREE  impairment
REHFER Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
B R E Mainland entities 3,046,123 - 3,046,123 -
¥R B K RE AN B &2 Companies and individuals
BA - mF R ER outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 A credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 5,543,273 578,294 6,121,567 164,245
Hh 22 5 % F i H =2 b Other counterparties the
R E BB NIERTT exposures to whom are
HEP R considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 214,212 - 214,212 -
—EEN\F+=ZA=t+—H
As at 31 Dec 2008
11 51 FF 14
EERER BEAEX BEEE
A ERER SN BRER Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #EREE  impairment
REZEHFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
H B KRR Mainland entities 2,484,332 - 2,484,332 -
R B K B BASNA B K Companies and individuals
A - md REER outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 AR credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 8,184,005 420,865 8,604,870 314,368
H fh 32 5 3 3 A = b Other counterparties the
HWRE BB RIERTT exposures to whom are
EEPRK considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 50,138 - 50,138 -
F: FERBREEERFERREREMEERR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

B2 -

other balances of claims on the customers.
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BRI ZHF AR B - RS RE
% o
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BIZHECR LA EREFRREBE 2 EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue loans

by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advances is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of

the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area. The position presented for 2008 has been restated
to incorporate the effect of transfer of risk under guarantee

arrangements described above.

—EEAF —EE)N\F
+=—A=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

REEREE Gross advances to customers
-EH — Hong Kong 48,779,171 52,094,469
- - China 1,479,379 1,229,503
- B - Macau 6,151,486 6,578,169
- Hitb - Others 755,123 1,096,932
57,165,159 60,999,073

R=BBNER-FENFT-A=+-0 B
£EEREB %2 HE 2 AR EAE R
EERBETBBEN 2N ESBEEAE
T e

2. R
(FF) HEMMRT R

AEERAES AR RS M E SIS BT
ENERRBIEAUER -

RREREIXNAAREE : EERR ﬁi%ﬂ
@ MEXRER - RBESREBRIEERR - FE
Rz EATERNAEEZEEAS @ HHhE
EEE HBENTEER  BWANEBERE RN

ERMEREEEBTNOMBEER -

In relation to the Group’s impaired advances and overdue advances,
over 90% of the outstanding balance as at 31 December 2009 and
2008 were classified under Hong Kong after taking into account the

effect of transfer of risk.

2. Risk management
(A) Banking Group

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it

through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on the five major areas of risk — credit
risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase

financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.
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2. EBEEHE @)
() £H BT R @)

RED T HRRTRRER - EREAK
BEERBRAZEERGNEEABRINCE
BEX g (BREMEBZEEER) B -

) 2= L i 4 R R = ) A 1) 58 3 ) 5| B SR B ) B
BOR S T B B LR o

nBEERRELBMARE WK

1BIERBR ENHILSE - BTRRGHZ TRER
RS TE L2 EEREEERZE
B -

BB mRMEIRE M BRR BRI - Kl
FHEZREBRERFRAT

() HEEREERE

EEgUMARINAREREA FEERN
BiE - BREREGSE  EFSHWEE
B

- HOEERRRERBORARREER
SHREEEEEEEREE REAM
[\

- UBEEBIEMERER &R
LEMITRES  BREEEEZZR
TR AR (LEER) - &
BRI MBOREBEREE &

- HWHEE - RERENSTEEIEY
BETR

TBRZEERZAEERREHKERR
BMBEDEZESTEEEREENTF
B AR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Risk management (Continued)
(A) Banking Group (Continued)

Market risk arises mainly in Treasury and is associated principally with
the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and off-
balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge

elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.
Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s statement of financial position.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from

external events.

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below:

(i) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board

in relation to risk control are:

- the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both

the transaction and portfolio levels;

- the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit
Committee; review of key results (against forecasts),

operational statistics and policy compliance; and

- financial performance by analysis against approved
budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial

measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority to
oversee and guide the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk Division

and different functional committees.
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2. EBEEHE @) 2.

() SEEMRITR (#)

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i)  FEE A A E

SENBYER A ERERAEEZEN
BRI EMER - RERMRAMERLEB
RREREZEa R TREZEENESSE
BEBERBRAMR - FIEHBRBRMER T
EWIRE - MEEREEMRIIMETER B
B RRZEFBITEANRR - KEE
REEHMZEREARENEE AR
BE - BREHME - QBTE - A%
FEERMSAKREELEERABRR
BT ANKE - ERERFEERERK
R KERRFEEREECHERER
(IBRE2ERD HIEMNIESl - RBEHRR
REBARNEBRER - KERBRIEIR
FEBELENFIMEENEERRREZR

P
S
= °

AEERREENEXNBHERTEE
MAEMEBEI R WREAKEERNK
BT ZRMEE LI EEEREN
98 A L f 0 3 3

EEERRSEIEEET  AEEHER
RERREEED - WL HNF LR R
HEMABMER ERCQROTE - A&
BEmY A ERBER R AR L
SRA-ZINNAREEBMOT A - Uk
ZTANMHEMAERBRAMEIIARLS T
BTSN AR EMEERIBNE SR - @
REREREERDBEERR 2 — &0
BERAEERRAHN T EER -

(i) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a
whole. Group Risk Division monitors and reports the Group risk
positions to the Board via the Risk Management Committee and
the Executive Committee, sets standards for financial risks and
data integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully
considered in the product planning and pricing process. Group
Risk Division reviews and approves all credit and risk exposure
policies for the Group including the approval of exposures to new
markets, economic sectors, organisations, credit products and
financial instruments which expose the Group to different types
of risks. In determining risk policies, Group Risk Division takes
into account the guidelines established by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”), business direction, and risk
adjusted performance of each business. Group Risk Division is
also represented on the lending or risk committees of the Group’s

operating divisions and businesses.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance
the overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables
the Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and
enter into credit exposures with the confidence that it

understands the associated risks and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management
capabilities under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division,
increasing the focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and
returns on capital. The Group uses a range of risk measurement
and analytical tools in its management of the various risks which
it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these are continually
being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-changing
business needs and the requirements of the regulators. The Risk
Management and Control function is part of Group Risk Division

and reports directly to the Head of Group Risk Division.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i) Business division credit committees

Each of the operating divisions of the Group has its own credit or
risk committee responsible for approving and recommending
policies, limits and mandates for risk control within their
respective business areas. This is consistent with the Group’s
approach of devolving responsibility for risk management to the
individual business areas under the aegis of the Group Risk
function. As such, each business credit risk function reports to

both Group Risk Division and the business area which it supports.

(iv)  Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of
the risk management policies and procedures adopted are set

out in Note 3.3 to the financial statements.

(v)  Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and
operational risk officers from each business and support function,
and operating through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-
kits, operational risk incident reporting and tracking system, and
control self assessment and key risk indicator tools. Together with
a well established internal control systems, operational risk in
most situations can be adequately identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk framework
to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to

time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational
recovery policies and plans have been established and tested for

all critical business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic
independent reviews of internal control systems by external and
internal auditors. Reporting and assessment of the performance
of operational risk management are monitored by the Group Risk
Division and reported to the Group’s Risk Management

Committee.



il 70 B 5

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. EBEEHE @) 2.
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Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i) EZREE

BERAREEOANAEE ZRHEED -
@?%I%@%ﬁﬁT%ﬁXZEEﬁ%
Bl - EEEEEE I HELBE  H7

ESEFELBRRABEEL  HINEP
ERRTIHEE ZHEHFEERAZ A
E R N

AREBBBERFAT— ?WEMEEEE
BB : AR  BREENAR
Wizﬁ%kﬂi%ah&a@@%%
ERKF - ARGERERBRRLERF © 12
HEEZETHINEE  ZERETP
ZRFHADT  ARIAAIRE ZEERE
Bl o ZER [ Bt AT 75 # B 2R E AR 2E L Il BT I
RERERF  WREBRERBRHZEZ K

@& o
=

(vii) I/

R ERRZ AR ES 2 REIERE
$EZWW%E*WG%%ZﬁWM&ﬁ
TATH 35 48 8 R R A5 SUFE B T M B 3 £ 1B B
%&m%#ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ&iﬁ%ﬁ%%
Z IR

EESUERREREEZ R TERAEE
BRIEERR - ERHIETANEE 2 REEM
BIZAREB & - HER ST IS SRBS A

EREZEER BEERBERRANITUR
REEAER 7 RBEEBZE B TR
EBRR - BEALRERNERKAEE 2
BIZ UREEETERASKIVEEEE
LURBEE R -

(vi)  Reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational
errors or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause
customer concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base

or market share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established
by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to

reputation risk.

(vii) ~ Strategic risk

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, improper
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to

the market changes.

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is
directly responsible for the management of strategic risk.
Directors formulate the strategic goals and key direction of the
Group, ensure business strategies are developed to achieve these
goals, oversee the strategic development and implementation to
secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic goals, review
business performance, deploy proper resources to achieve the
Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take

appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

255



fill 70 A 255 BB

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Iy

E;“J/\

ERA IS

= = —
==
L g —

HHUY

Hi

L

256

(ABEE T Thz37R)

S

JoRL i 4 L (48)
HLEBT R ()
(viii) #1772 Z @I E X 7€

RIERT 2 BT R HEZR (BIE 22 A2 A1) 1
—TELFE-ARUMAEREZAME
MM SR B LR - FEZERNR_FTTN
FERBMRERARCGERTTER (B HAD K
CERFTE (HRBR) AN A EpEEERAER

EEREMNZRBRE-AE - F—X
HEERER] T BERERIHEERR LTS
BB 2 BIEITEIN  WIMAT RITH LB
BBz RIEBEARER - £ - FEERIRST
PVRBTEZNFERF - RREAR (B4
ZERBBEF —XEZRAR) 22 HEF
e RERABEREHUEFETERE
REE  UFREEAZRRE - F=X
EEBIBRRTHERRES - EXTE
ElEREBRELQARBEE BTS2
BRERLR  AEPE-—XERF-X
o

BT HF— i RHRITEEAR
TERMBELFEEERR T SRR
RIRAERIEDET ERERR - 1 F1
RBARTE (BAR) RRADATNAZRA T
%o Bt ARBCE2EBREERRLE
BUNARETNEERZRE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A)

Risk management (Continued)
Banking Group (Continued)
(viii) Implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord

The revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il has
come into force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions
in Hong Kong from January 2007. To implement Basel Il, the
HKMA published the final Banking (Capital) Rules and Banking
(Disclosure) Rules at the end of 2006.

Basel Il is structured around three “pillars”. Pillar 1 sets out the
minimum capital requirements for a bank’s operational risk, in
addition to revising the “Basel |” treatment of credit risk and
market risk. Pillar 2 requires that banks should have in place
sound internal processes to assess the adequacy of their capital,
based on a thorough assessment of their risks including those
risks not covered under Pillar 1, and that supervisors should carry
out supervisory review of this process. Pillar 3 complements Pillar
1 and Pillar 2 through enhanced market transparency and market
discipline by requiring banks to make public disclosure of
information on their risk profiles, capital adequacy and risk

management.

Starting January 2007 DBS and MEVAS adopt the standardised
approach for credit risk and market risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. These are the default approaches
as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly, the Group
has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the

standards required for these approaches.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Risk management (Continued)
(B) Insurance Group

The Groups insurance business is exposed to multiple risks, including
insurance risk, product risk, investment risk and business risks. We
believe that effective risk management is an integral part of our
insurance business’ control process and operations, and that effective
control of risks assists to maintain the profitability and stability of our

business.

The key risks of our insurance business and related risk control process

are as follows:

(i) Insurance risk

The Group’s insurance operation is in the business of underwriting
insurance risk and retains various maximum amounts per risk or
event dependent on the type of risk with the excess being
reinsured through various reinsurance and related agreements
which are regularly reviewed. Catastrophe cover arrangements
are also in place whereby a number of claims relating to a specific
incident in aggregate would represent a material risk to the Group

are reinsured.

Underwriting and claims practices and procedures are
documented and reviewed. External independent actuaries are

engaged to evaluate the adequacy of the insurance reserves.

(i)  Product risk

New products and major revisions to existing products undergo
a product approval process with the profitability being reviewed
and where appropriate assessed by internal and external

independent actuaries.

(iii)  Investment risk

Our investment practice is to maintain a conservatively invested
portfolio which attempts to maintain value whilst matching assets
and policyholder liabilities as appropriate, by yield, duration and
currency taking account of the associated risks, taxation and

regulatory requirements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Risk management (Continued)
(B) Insurance Group (Continued)
(iv)  Business risks

DSLA and DSl follow the policies and procedures of the Group in
assessing business risk in terms of contingency and interruption
planning as well as providing training for staff and agents to
comply with the relevant rules and regulations covering their
businesses. MIC Limited and MLIC, have their own policies and

procedures to comply with the relevant requirements in Macau.

(C) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on enhancing
and sustaining sound internal control in all business and operational
units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the Group Audit
Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.
The Division conducts a wide variety of internal control activities such
as compliance audits and operations and systems reviews to ensure
the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control of
the Group.
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To the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 246, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2009 and the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010






